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The interim financial information provided in this report reflects all adjustments that, in the opinion of
management, are necessary for a fair presentation of the results for such periods. Such adjustments are of
a normal recurring nature, unless otherwise disclosed in this Form 10-Q. The results of operations in our
interim financial statements are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the full
year. The interim financial information should be read in conjunction with Fannie Mae’s 2002 Annual
Report on Form 10-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and available on our Web site
at www.fanniemae.com/ir and the SEC’s Web site at www.sec.gov under “Federal National Mortgage
Association” or CIK number 0000310522. We do not intend these internet addresses to be active links.
Therefore, other than our 2002 Annual Report on Form 10-K, the information that appears on these Web
sites is not incorporated into this Form 10-Q.




PART I—FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data includes performance measures and ratios based on our reported
results and core business earnings, a supplemental non-GAAP (generally accepted accounting principles)
measure used by management in operating our business. Our core business earnings measures are not
defined terms within GAAP and may not be comparable to similarly titled measures presented by other
companies. See ‘““Management’s Discussion and Analysis—Core Business Earnings and Business Segment
Results” for a discussion of how we use core business earnings measures and why we believe they are
helpful to investors. Our results for the three-month and six-month periods ended June 30, 2003 and 2002
are unaudited and, in the opinion of management, include all adjustments (consisting only of normal
recurring accruals) necessary for a fair presentation. We have reclassified certain prior period amounts to
conform to our current year presentation. Results for the reported period are not necessarily indicative of

the results that may be expected for the full year.

Reported Earnings Data:

NeEt INCOME . . .ottt
Preferred stock dividends. .......... ... ... ... ... .

Net income available to common stockholders.....................

Basic earnings per common share .................. . ... .. ...
Diluted earnings per common share........................ . .....
Weighted-average diluted common shares outstanding ..............
Cash dividends per common share...............................
Net interest yield, taxable-equivalent basis . .......................
Return on average assets .. ........ovuuttiteniiiii i
Average equity t0 average assets ... ...........o.iiiiiiiiiiieaa.a
Return on common equity. .. ... ..ot

Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and preferred stock

dividends' ) L

Core Business Earnings Data:®

Core business earnings™ . ... ... ... .. ...
Core business earnings per diluted common share..................
Core taxable-equivalent revenues™™ ... .. ... ... .. ... ... ... ......
Net interest margin, taxable-e%uivalent basis® ...

(

Core return on average assels' ... .........o.iiiiieiniiiea
Core return on average realized common equity'” .................

Balance Sheet Data:

Mortgage portfolio, net ...t
Liquid @sSets . ..o oottt
Total @SSets .. ...

Borrowings:

Due within one year. .. ....... ...t

Due after one year . ...t
Total liabilities . ...
Preferred stock ... ... .
Stockholders’ equity . .......oovuiii i
Core capital ® ...
Total capital® ... ...

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,
2003 2002 2003 2002
(Dollars and shares in millions,
except per share amounts)
$ 1,102 $ 1,464 $ 3,042 $ 2,672
(34) (24) (64) (57)
$ 1,068 $ 1,440 $ 2978 § 2615
$ 1.09 $ 1.45 $ 303§ 2.63
1.09 1.44 3.02 2.61
982 1,000 987 1,001
$ .39 $ .33 $ 7% % .66
1.63% 1.33% 1.61% 1.32%
47 .70 66 .64
1.9 2.3 1.9 2.3
31.3 339 43.1 322
1.15:1 1.19:1 1.21:1 1.17:1
$ 1,860 $ 1,573 $ 3,710 $ 3,091
1.86 1.55 3.70 3.03
3,980 2,971 7,583 5,811
1.30% 1.16% 1.28% 1.16%
.80 .76 .80 75
27.7 25.8 27.9 25.8
June 30, December 31,
2003 2002
$ 820,276 $ 797,693
69,089 61,554
923,795 887,515
422,274 382,412
461,807 468,570
906,431 871,227
3,883 2,678
17,364 16,288
30,675 28,079
31,469 28,871



Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,

Other Performance Measures: 2003 2002 2003 2002
Average eﬂ’ectivg 1%uaranty feerate"” . 212% .183% .208% .184%
Credit loss ratiol ) . ... . .005 .004 .004 .005
Administrative expense 1atio'? .. ... 071 .073 .072 .073
Efficiency ratio™ .. 8.9 10.1 9.2 10.2
Mortgage purchases ................ . $ 127,960 $ 56917 $ 259,965 $ 147,863
MBS issues acquired by others™ ... ... ... . 282,502 102,909 486,435 209,713
Outstanding MBS = 1,237,461 945,497 1,237,461 945,497
Book of business''® .. ... 2,049,928 1,686,241 2,049,928 1,686,241

() “Earnings” consists of (a) income before federal income taxes and (b) fixed charges. Fixed charges represent interest expense.

) See Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Core Business Earnings and
Business Segment Results for additional discussion of our supplemental non-GAAP (generally accepted accounting principles)
core business earnings measures and for a reconciliation to comparable GAAP measures.
Core business earnings is a non-GAAP measure developed by management in conjunction with the adoption of FAS 133 to
evaluate and assess the quality of Fannie Mae’s earnings from its principal business activities on a consistent basis. Core business
earnings is presented on a net of tax basis and excludes changes in the time value of purchased options recorded under FAS 133
and includes purchased options premiums amortized on a straight-line basis over the original estimated life of the option,
together with any acceleration of expense related to options extinguished prior to exercise.
A non-GAAP measure that includes revenues net of operating losses primarily on low-income housing tax credit limited
partnerships and purchased options premiums amortization expense, adjusted to include taxable-equivalent amounts of tax-
exempt income using the applicable federal income tax rate of 35 percent.
A non-GAAP measure calculated based on annualized core net interest income on a tax-equivalent basis divided by the
weighted average net investment balance.
A non-GAAP measure calculated based on core business earnings less preferred stock dividends divided by average assets.
A non-GAAP measure calculated based on core business earnings less preferred stock dividends divided by average realized
common stockholders’ equity (common stockholders’ equity excluding accumulated other comprehensive income).
The sum of (a) the stated value of common stock, (b) the stated value of outstanding noncumulative perpetual preferred stock,
(c¢) paid-in capital, and (d) retained earnings, less treasury stock. Core capital represents a regulatory measure of capital.
The sum of (a) core capital and (b) the total allowance for loan losses and guaranty liability for MBS, less (c) the specific loss
allowance. Total capital represents a regulatory measure of capital. Specific loss allowances totaled $13 million at June 30, 2003
and $19 million at December 31, 2002.
Calculated based on guaranty fee and related income from outstanding MBS.
(1 Charge-offs, net of recoveries, and foreclosed property income as a percentage of average mortgage portfolio (on an amortized

cost basis) and average outstanding MBS.

(2 Administrative expenses as a percentage of average net mortgage portfolio and average outstanding MBS.
() Administrative expenses as a percentage of core taxable-equivalent revenues.
U4 Fannie Mae guaranteed MBS and other mortgage-related securities issued and purchased by investors other than Fannie Mae.
U3 Includes MBS and other mortgage-related securities guaranteed by Fannie Mae and held by investors other than Fannie Mae.
19 Mortgage portfolio and outstanding MBS, based on unpaid principal balances.
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Fannie Mae is the nation’s largest source of funds for mortgage lenders and investors. Although we operate
under a federal charter, we are a private, shareholder-owned company. Our purpose is to facilitate the flow
of low-cost mortgage capital to increase the availability and affordability of homeownership for low-,
moderate-, and middle-income Americans. We operate exclusively in the secondary mortgage market by
purchasing mortgages and mortgage-related securities, including Fannie Mae mortgage-backed securities,
from primary market institutions, such as commercial banks, savings and loan associations, mortgage
companies, securities dealers, and other investors. We provide additional liquidity in the secondary market
by guaranteeing mortgages and issuing and guaranteeing mortgage-related securities. We generate revenue
from these activities through our two primary lines of business: Portfolio Investment Business and Credit
Guaranty Business.

This report on Form 10-Q highlights significant factors influencing Fannie Mae’s results of operations and
financial condition. Management’s Discussion and Analysis and other sections of our Form 10-Q contain
forward-looking statements based on management’s estimates of trends and economic factors in the
markets in which Fannie Mae is active as well as the company’s business plans. Such estimates and plans
may change without notice and future results may vary from expected results if there are significant
changes in economic, regulatory, or legislative conditions affecting Fannie Mae or its competitors. For a
discussion of these factors, investors should review our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2002. We undertake no duty to update these forward-looking statements.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview

Our reported net income for the second quarter of 2003 totaled $1.102 billion, a decrease of 25 percent
over our second quarter 2002 reported results of $1.464 billion. Diluted earnings per share (“diluted
EPS”) decreased 24 percent to $1.09 from $1.44 in the second quarter of 2002. The decrease in second
quarter 2003 reported net income and diluted EPS was driven by an increase in purchased options
expense, which more than offset an increase in net interest income, guaranty fee income, and fee and other
income. Our reported net income for the first half of 2003 totaled $3.042 billion, an increase of 14 percent
over our first half 2002 reported results of $2.672 billion. Diluted EPS increased 16 percent to $3.02 from
$2.61 in the first half of 2002. The increase in reported net income and diluted EPS for the first half of
2003 was driven by an increase in net interest income, guaranty fee income, and fee and other income,
which more than offset an increase in purchased options expense. Our reported results are based on
generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”), which include the effects of Financial Accounting
Standard No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (“FAS 133”). FAS 133
generates significant volatility in our reported net income because it requires that we record in our income
statement changes in the time value of purchased options that we use to manage interest rate risk, but it
does not allow us to record in earnings changes in the intrinsic value of some of those options or similar
changes in the fair value of options in all of our callable debt or mortgage assets. We expect purchased
options expense to vary, often substantially, from period to period with changes in interest rates, expected
interest rate volatility, and derivative activity. Purchased options expense for the second quarter and first
half of 2003 increased $1.385 billion and $1.222 billion, respectively, over the corresponding prior year
periods.

Reported net interest income for the second quarter and first half of 2003 increased 38 percent in each
period to $3.501 billion and $6.869 billion, respectively, while guaranty fee income increased 49 percent
and 42 percent to $632 million and $1.179 billion, respectively. Increases in net interest income were
driven primarily by growth in our reported net interest yield and our mortgage portfolio, while increases in
guaranty fee income were driven primarily by growth in outstanding MBS balances and our effective
guaranty fee rate. Our market—residential mortgage debt outstanding—remained strong, growing at an
annualized rate of 11.5 percent during the first quarter of 2003 despite slow economic growth and high
market volatility. Record amounts of refinancing volumes during the first half of 2003 led to strong growth
in our MBS. Rapid refinancings also led to a rise in the effective guaranty fee rate as rapid prepayments
caused deferred guaranty fee revenues to be recognized more quickly. Despite the strong market, our



mortgage portfolio grew slowly during the first half of 2003 due to continued demand for mortgages from
banks and other financial institutions. However, this slow portfolio growth was offset by a further
temporary increase in our net interest yield, which benefited from the steep yield curve and low short-term
interest rates that persisted throughout the first half of the year.

Management also tracks and analyzes Fannie Mae’s financial results based on a supplemental non-GAAP
measure called “core business earnings” (previously referred to by us as “operating net income”). While
core business earnings is not a substitute for GAAP net income, we rely on core business earnings in
operating our business because we believe core business earnings provides our management and investors
with a better measure of our financial results and better reflects our risk management strategies than our
GAAP net income. We developed core business earnings in conjunction with our January 1, 2001 adoption
of FAS 133 to adjust for accounting differences between alternative transactions we use to hedge interest
rate risk that produce similar economic results but require different accounting treatment under FAS 133.
For example, our core business earnings measure allows management and investors to evaluate the quality
of earnings from Fannie Mae’s principal business activities in a way that accounts for comparable hedging
transactions in a similar manner. We discuss our core business earnings results in “MD&A—Core
Business Earnings and Business Segment Results.”

Net Interest Income

Table 1 presents Fannie Mae’s net interest yield based on reported net interest income calculated on a
taxable-equivalent basis. The net interest yield calculation subsequent to our adoption of FAS 133 does not
fully reflect the cost of our purchased options (see “MD&A—Core Business Earnings and Business
Segment Results—Core Net Interest Income” for a discussion of our supplemental non-GAAP measures,
core net interest income and net interest margin).



Table 1: Net Interest Yield

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,

2003 2002 2003 2002
(Dollars in millions)

Interest income:

Mortgage portfolio . . ... ..o o $ 12,256 $ 12,326 $ 24,846 $ 24,497
Nonmortgage investments and cash equivalents ........................... 336 420 642 826
Total interest iNCOME . ... ..ottt et ettt e 12,592 12,746 25,488 25,323
Interest expense:“)
Short-term debt . . ... ... 697 646 1,447 1,430
Long-term debt . ... ... 8,394 9,568 17,172 18,930
Total Interest EXPENSE . . . ..ottt ettt et et e e et 9,091 10,214 18,619 20,360
Net interest iNCOME . . .. ...ttt e 3,501 2,532 6,869 4,963
Taxable-equivalent adjustment on tax-exempt investments® ... ... ... . ... ... 119 126 242 249
Taxable-equivalent net interest income . ...............iiiiiiiiiinennna.. $ 3,620 $ 2,658 $ 7,111 $ 5212

Average balances:®

Interest-earning assets: ¥
Mortgage portfolio, net .. ... $808,215 $732,796 $806,510 $724,200
Nonmortgage investments and cash equivalents ........................... 81,966 69,187 74,550 67,176
Total interest-earning aSSELS . . . . ..o vttt ettt et e 890,181 801,983 881,060 791,376
Interest-free funds™ ... ... . L (32,431) (24,196) (30,432) (24,083)
Total interest-earning assets funded by debt ........ ... ... ... .. ... ... 857,750 771,787 850,628 767,293
Interest-bearing liabilities: "
Short-term debt ... ... . 231,718 128,885 221,063 130,153
Long-term debt ... ... 626,032 648,902 629,565 637,140
Total interest-bearing liabilities .......... ... ... ... . i i i $857,750 $777,787 $850,628 $767,293
Average interest rates:> ¥
Interest-earning assets:
Mortgage portfolio, net . ... . 6.07% 6.77% 6.17% 6.81%
Nonmortgage investments and cash equivalents ........................... 1.66 2.45 1.74 2.49
Total interest- arning aSSETS . . . ..ottt ettt et 5.66 6.40 5.80 6.44
Interest-free return™ ... ... 21 18 18 18
Total interest-earning assets and interest-free return.......................... 5.87 6.58 5.98 6.62
Interest-bearing liabilities:"
Short-term debt . .. ... oo 1.19 1.99 1.29 2.18
Long-term debt ... ... oo 5.36 5.90 5.46 5.94
Total interest-bearing liabilities .......... ... .. i i 4.24 5.25 4.37 5.30
Net interest yield . .. ..ot e 1.63% 1.33% 1.61% 1.32%

() Classification of interest expense and interest-bearing liabilities as short-term or long-term is based on effective maturity or
repricing date, taking into consideration the effect of derivative financial instruments. In the first quarter of 2003, we revised our
method of classifying interest expense between short-term and long-term on certain derivative instruments. This reclassification
does not affect Fannie Mae’s total interest expense. We reclassified $73 million and $31 million between short-term and long-term
interest expense for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2002 to conform to our current year presentation.

Reflects non-GAAP adjustments to permit comparison of yields on tax-exempt and taxable assets based on a 35 percent marginal
tax rate.

Averages have been calculated on a monthly basis based on amortized cost.

Includes average balance of nonaccrual loans of $5.9 billion and $4.5 billion for the three months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002,
respectively, and $5.8 billion and $4.3 billion for the six months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Interest-free funds represent the portion of our investment portfolio funded by equity and non-interest bearing liabilities.
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Reported net interest income for the second quarter and first half of 2003 increased 38 percent in each
period over the corresponding prior year periods to $3.501 billion and $6.869 billion, respectively, driven by
an 11 percent increase in our average net investment balance for each period, and a 30 basis point and

29 basis point expansion in our reported net interest yield to 1.63 percent and 1.61 percent, respectively.
Our average net investment balance (also referred to as total interest-earning assets) consists of our
mortgage portfolio (net of unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities and deferred
balances) and nonmortgage investments. The upfront cost of purchased options is not included in our
reported net interest income and net interest yield. However, the interest expense on callable debt is
included in reported net interest income. Accordingly, our net interest yield benefited from increases in the
amount of purchased options used as a substitute for callable debt.



A rate/volume analysis of the changes in our reported net interest income between the second quarter and
first half of 2003 and the second quarter and first half of 2002 is shown in Table 2.

Table 2: Rate/Volume Analysis of Reported Net Interest Income

Attributable 1t)o
Increase Changes in

(Decrease) Volume Rate
(Dollars in millions)

Second Quarter 2003 vs. Second Quarter 2002
Interest income:

Mortgage portfolio . .. ...\ttt $ (70)  $1,205 $(1,275)
Nonmortgage investments and cash equivalents............. . ..., (84) 68 (152)
Total INtEreSt IMCOME . .« .\ vttt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e (154) 1,273 (1,427)
Interest expense:?
Short-term debt . .. ... 51 378 (327)
Long-term debt .. ... oo (1,174) (328) (846)
Total INTETeSt EXPEISE . . . ..o vttt ettt ettt e e et e e e e e e (1,123) 50 (1,173)
Change in net interest IMCOME . . . .. ...\ttt e $ 969 $1,223 § (254)
Change in taxable-equivalent adjustment on tax-exempt investments™® ... ... ... ... . ... ... ... (7)
Change in taxable-equivalent net interest iNCOME . ... ....ooutitnni ettt $ 962
First Six Months 2003 vs. First Six Months 2002
Interest income:
Mortgage portfolio . . ...ttt $ 349 $2,645  $(2,296)
Nonmortgage investments and cash equivalents........... ... ... . ... (184) 83 (267)
Total interest INCOME . . . . . ..ottt e e e e e 165 2,728 (2,563)
Interest expense:m
Short-term debt . .. ... 17 743 (726)
Long-term debt . ... ... (1,758) (222)  (1,536)
Total INtErest EXPEMSE . . . ..o vttt et ettt e e et e e e e e e e (1,741) 521 (2,262)
Change in net interest iMCOME . . . ... ...\ttt $ 1,906 $2,207 $ (301)
Change in taxable-equivalent adjustment on tax-exempt investments™ ... ... ... ... .. ... .. (7)
Change in taxable-equivalent net interest iNCOME . ... .....ouurttnietiitin e, $ 1,899

(1

Combined rate/volume variances, a third element of the calculation, are allocated to the rate and volume variances based on their
relative size.

Classification of interest expense and interest-bearing liabilities as short-term or long-term is based on effective maturity or
repricing date, taking into consideration the effect of derivative financial instruments.

Reflects non-GAAP adjustments to permit comparison of yields on tax-exempt and taxable assets based on a 35 percent marginal
tax rate.
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Guaranty Fee Income

Guaranty fee income grew 49 percent and 42 percent over the second quarter and first half of 2002 to
$632 million and $1.179 billion, respectively. The increase in guaranty fee income in the second quarter of
2003 was driven by a 29 percent growth in average outstanding MBS and a 16 percent increase in the
average effective guaranty fee rate on outstanding MBS. The increase in guaranty fee income in the first
half of 2003 was driven by a 26 percent growth in average outstanding MBS and a 13 percent increase in
the average effective guaranty fee rate on outstanding MBS. We use the term “MBS” (mortgage-backed
securities) to refer to mortgage-related securities we issue or on which Fannie Mae guarantees timely
payment of scheduled principal and interest.

Average outstanding MBS totaled $1.193 trillion and $1.135 trillion in the second quarter and first half of
2003, respectively, compared with $927 billion and $902 billion in the second quarter and first half of
2002. MBS issues acquired by other investors totaled $283 billion and $486 billion in the second quarter
and first half of 2003, respectively, versus $103 billion and $210 billion in the second quarter and first half
of 2002. MBS issuances expanded in response to increased demand from lenders and investors as the
result of an increase in refinance activity driven by lower interest rates. The growth in the average effective
guaranty fee rate between the second quarters and first six months of 2003 and 2002 was largely the result



of faster revenue recognition of deferred fees due to accelerated mortgage prepayments, together with
somewhat higher fee rates on new business.

Fee and Other Income, Net

Fee and other income totaled $232 million and $345 million in the second quarter and first half of 2003,
up from $42 million and $45 million of income in the second quarter and first half of 2002. During the
first half of 2003, we experienced a significant increase in transaction, technology, and multifamily fees due
to a surge in business volumes associated with a stronger refinancing market. Transaction, technology, and
multifamily fees totaled $283 million and $524 million for the second quarter and first half of 2003,
increases of $187 million and $341 million over the second quarter and first half of 2002.

We recorded $99 million and $32 million of gains from the sale of mortgage-related securities classified as
available-for-sale during the three months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002. We recorded $110 million and
$21 million of gains from the sale of mortgage-related securities classified as available-for-sale during the
six months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002.

We recognized impairment totaling $102 million and $197 million in the second quarter and first half of
2003, respectively, due to other than temporary declines in the fair value of certain mortgage and
nonmortgage securities or investments. These securities were downgraded during the year and their fair
values were significantly lower than cost. It is uncertain whether we will receive all principal and interest
due to us.

Credit-Related Expenses

Our overall credit performance remained relatively stable in the second quarter and first half of 2003
compared to the corresponding prior year periods. Credit-related expenses, which include provision for
losses and foreclosed property income, declined slightly to $23 million and $43 million in the second
quarter and first half of 2003, compared with $24 million and $46 million in the second quarter and first
half of 2002. The decrease in credit-related expenses was driven by a decline in provision for losses, which
more than offset a decline in foreclosed property income. Provision for losses decreased $7 million and
$12 million from the second quarter and first half of 2002 to $26 million and $49 million, respectively.
Foreclosed property income totaled $3 million and $6 million in the second quarter and first half of 2003,
down from $9 million and $15 million in the second quarter and first half of 2002, primarily due to less
income on foreclosed property dispositions.

Credit-related losses, which include charge-offs plus foreclosed property income, remained low in the first
half of 2003 due to continued home price gains resulting from the strong housing market, the use of credit
enhancements to manage our credit risk, and aggressive management of problem loans. Credit-related
losses increased slightly to $23 million and $43 million in the second quarter and first half of 2003, from
$17 million and $39 million in the second quarter and first half of 2002, primarily due to a decline in
foreclosed property income.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses totaled $354 million and $698 million in the second quarter and first half of 2003,
increases of 18 percent over both the second quarter and first half of 2002. The above-average growth in
administrative expenses was due primarily to costs incurred in reengineering Fannie Mae’s core technology
infrastructure to enhance our ability to process and manage the risk on mortgage assets and the expensing
of new stock-based compensation. On January 1, 2003, we adopted the expense recognition provisions of
the fair value method of accounting for stock-based compensation under Financial Accounting Standard
No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (“FAS 123”) and began expensing all new stock-
based compensation.

We evaluate growth in administrative expenses based on growth in core taxable-equivalent revenues and
our average book of business. Core taxable-equivalent revenues is a supplemental non-GAAP measure



discussed further in “MD&A—Core Business Earnings and Business Segment Results.” Despite the
above-average growth in administrative expenses, our efficiency ratio—the ratio of administrative expenses
to core taxable-equivalent revenues—improved to 8.9 percent and 9.2 percent in the second quarter and
first half of 2003 from 10.1 percent and 10.2 percent in the second quarter and first half of 2002. The ratio
of administrative expenses as a percentage of our average book of business improved to .071 percent and
.072 percent in the second quarter and first half of 2003, compared with .073 percent in both the second
quarter and first half of 2002.

Purchased Options Expense

Purchased options expense totaled $1.883 billion and $2.508 billion in the second quarter and first half of
2003, respectively, up significantly from $498 million and $1.286 billion in the second quarter and first half
of 2002. The mark-to-market of the time value of our purchased options will vary from period to period
with changes in interest rates, expected interest rate volatility, and derivative activity.

Debt Extinguishments

We recognized $740 million and $1.132 billion in losses on debt extinguishments during the second quarter
and first half of 2003, respectively, up from $225 million and $396 million in losses on debt
extinguishments that we recognized during the second quarter and first half of 2002. These losses resulted
from the call and repurchase of $73 billion and $121 billion of debt during the second quarter and first
half of 2003, respectively, and the call and repurchase of $30 billion and $60 billion of debt during the
second quarter and first half of 2002, respectively. The year-over-year increase in debt extinguishment
activity was driven by attractive opportunities to repurchase relatively high-cost debt. We regularly call or
repurchase debt as part of our interest rate risk management strategy.

Income Taxes

Our effective tax rate on reported net income in the second quarter and first half of 2003 was 19 percent
and 24 percent based on a provision for federal income taxes of $263 million and $970 million,
respectively. In comparison, our effective tax rate for the same prior year periods was 25 percent and

24 percent and our tax provision totaled $485 million and $848 million in the second quarter and first half
of 2002. Because of the significant decrease in our pre-tax reported income for the second quarter of 2003,
our tax-exempt income and the tax credits we receive on our tax-advantaged investments provided
disproportionate tax benefit to our base of pre-tax reported income which reduced our effective tax rate.
Our effective tax rate based on core business earnings, which is adjusted for the impact of FAS 133 on our
purchased options, was 27 percent and 26 percent in the second quarter and first half of 2003, compared
with 26 percent in the same prior year periods.

CORE BUSINESS EARNINGS AND BUSINESS SEGMENT RESULTS

Management relies primarily on core business earnings, a supplemental non-GAAP measure developed in
conjunction with our adoption of FAS 133, to evaluate Fannie Mae’s financial performance. While core
business earnings is not a substitute for GAAP net income, we rely on core business earnings in operating
our business because we believe core business earnings provides our management and investors with a
better measure of our financial results and better reflects our risk management strategies than our GAAP
net income. Core business earnings excludes the unpredictable volatility in the time value of purchased
options because we intend to hold these options to maturity, and we do not believe the period-to-period
variability in our reported net income from changes in the time value of our purchased options accurately
reflects the underlying risks or economics of our hedging strategies. Core business earnings includes
amortization of purchased option premiums on a straight-line basis over the original expected life of the
options, together with any acceleration of expense related to any options extinguished prior to exercise or
expiration. The net amount of purchased options amortization expense recorded under our core business
earnings measure will equal the net amount of purchased options expense ultimately recorded under

FAS 133 in our reported net income over the life of our options. However, our amortization treatment is
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more consistent with the accounting for embedded options in our callable debt and more accurately
reflects the underlying economics of our use of purchased options as a substitute for issuing callable debt—
two alternate hedging strategies that are economically very similar but require different accounting
treatment. The calculation of core capital and total capital includes retained earnings, which incorporates
GAAP net income, not core business earnings. Our core capital and total capital levels are important
determinants of the amount of capital available to shareholders for dividends and our dividend policies take
into account these capital levels.

Management also relies on several other non-GAAP performance measures related to core business
earnings to evaluate Fannie Mae’s performance. These key performance measures include core taxable-
equivalent revenues, core net interest income, and net interest margin. We discuss these measures further
in this section and provide a discussion of our business segments, which we also evaluate based on core
business earnings. Our core business earnings measures are not defined terms within GAAP and may not
be comparable to similarly titled measures reported by other companies.

Core Business Earnings

Core business earnings for the second quarter of 2003 grew 18 percent over the second quarter of 2002 to
$1.860 billion. Core business earnings per diluted common share increased 20 percent to $1.86 from $1.55
in the second quarter of 2002 and increased 22 percent to $3.70 from $3.03 in the first half of 2002.
Increases in our core business earnings and core business earnings per diluted common share were due
primarily to strong growth in our core net interest income, guaranty fee income, and fee and other income.
Highlights of our second quarter 2003 performance compared with second quarter 2002 include:

e 34 percent increase in core taxable-equivalent revenues to $3.980 billion

o 26 percent increase in core net interest income to $2.785 billion

» 14 basis point increase in the net interest margin to 1.30 percent

* 49 percent increase in guaranty fee income

o 8190 million increase in fee and other income to $232 million

e Losses of 8740 million from the call and repurchase of debt compared with $225 million

e 29 percent annualized growth in our combined book of business (gross mortgage portfolio and
outstanding MBS) during the second quarter of 2003, up from 14 percent annualized growth in the
second quarter of 2002

While our core business earnings measures should not be construed by investors as an alternative to net
income and other measures determined in accordance with GAAP, they are critical performance indicators
for Fannie Mae’s management. Core business earnings is the primary financial performance measure used
by Fannie Mae’s management not only in developing the financial plans of our lines of business and
tracking results, but also in establishing corporate performance targets and determining incentive
compensation. In addition, the investment analyst community has traditionally relied on our core business
earnings measures to evaluate Fannie Mae’s earnings performance and to issue earnings guidance. We
believe these measures also can serve as valuable assessment tools for investors to judge the quality of our
earnings because they provide more consistent accounting and reporting for economically similar interest
rate risk hedging transactions, which allows investors to more readily identify sustainable trends and gauge
potential future earnings trends.

Table 3 shows our line of business and consolidated core business earnings results for the second quarter
and first half of 2003 and 2002. The only difference between core business earnings and reported net
income relates to the FAS 133 accounting treatment for purchased options, which affects our Portfolio
Investment business. Core business earnings does not exclude any other accounting effects related to the
application of FAS 133. The FAS 133 related reconciling items between our core business earnings and
reported results have no effect on our Credit Guaranty business.



Table 3: Reconciliation of Core Business Earnings to Reported Results
Three Months Ended June 30, 2003

Net interest income ...............ooveunn....
Purchased options amortization expense .........

Core net interest income ......................
Guaranty fee income (expense) ................
Fee and other income, net.....................

(O]

Credit-related expenses'’ .....................
Administrative eXpenses . ... ...................

Purchased options expense under FAS 133

Debt extinguishments.........................

Income before federal income taxes.............
Provision for federal income taxes ..............

Netincome ......ooniiniiiniin ..

Net interest income ................ccoveinn ..
Purchased options amortization expense .........

Core net interest income . .....................
Guaranty fee income (expense) ................
Fee and other income, net.....................
Credit-related expenses'’ .....................
Administrative eXpenses . ......................

Purchased options expense under FAS 133

Debt extinguishments . ........................

Income before federal income taxes.............
Provision for federal income taxes ..............

Netincome ........cooiiiiiiinenenn .

(1
@

Total Core Reconciling
Portfolio Credit Business Items Related to Reported
Investment  Guaranty Earnings Purchased Options Results
(Dollars in millions)
$3,280 $ 221 $3,501 — $ 3,501
(716) — (716) 716® —
2,564 221 2,785 716 3,501
(404) 1,036 632 — 632
231 1 232 — 232
— (23) (23) — (23)
(103) (251) (354) — (354)
— — — (1,883)® (1,883)
(740) — (740) — (740)
1,548 984 2,532 (1,1672 1,365
(454) (218) (672) 409 (263)
$1,094 $ 766 $1,860 $ (758) $ 1,102
Three Months Ended June 30, 2002
Total Core Reconciling
Portfolio Credit Business Items Related to Reported
Investment  Guaranty Earnings Purchased Options Results
$2,375 $ 157 $2,532 $ — $2,532
(330) — (330) 330 —
2,045 157 2,202 330 2,532
(336) 759 423 — 423
82 (40) 42 — 42
— (24) (24) — (24)
91) (210) (301) — (301)
— — — (498) (498)
(225) — (225) — (225)
1,475 642 2,117 (168? 1,949
(430) (114) (544) 59 (485)
$1,045 $ 528 $1,573 (109) $1,464

Credit-related expenses include the income statement line items “Provision for losses” and “Foreclosed property income.”
Represents the straight-line amortization of purchased options expense that we allocate to interest expense over the original

expected life of the options. We include this amount in core business earnings instead of recording changes in the time value of
purchased options because this treatment is more consistent with the accounting for the embedded options in our callable debt

and the vast majority of our mortgages.
3

Represents changes in the fair value of the time value of purchased options recorded in accordance with FAS 133. We exclude

this amount from our core business earnings measure because the period-to-period fluctuations in the time value portion of our
options do not reflect the economics of our current risk management strategy, which generally is to hold our purchased options to
maturity or exercise date. Consequently, we do not expect to realize the period-to-period fluctuations in time value. In addition,
the accounting for purchased options under FAS 133 is inconsistent with the accounting for embedded options in our callable debt

and mortgages.
(4

of 35 percent.

Net interest income ...............ccvveunn....
Purchased options amortization expense .........

Core net interest income . .....................
Guaranty fee income (expense) ................
Fee and other income, net.....................
Credit-related expenses'’ .....................
Administrative eXpenses . ... ...................

Purchased options expense under FAS 133

Debt extinguishments . ........................

Income before federal income taxes.............
Provision for federal income taxes ..............

Netincome .......ovviiiiiiiinen..

Six Months Ended June 30, 2003

Represents the net federal income tax effect of core business earnings adjustments based on the applicable federal income tax rate

Total Core Reconciling
Portfolio Credit Business Items Related to Reported
Investment  Guaranty Earnings Purchased Options Results

(Dollars in millions)

$ 6,466 $ 403 $ 6,869 $ — $ 6,869
(1,481) — (1,481) 1,481 —
4,985 403 5,388 1,481 6,869
(807) 1,986 1,179 — 1,179
353 (8) 345 — 345
— (43) (43) — (43)
(204) (494) (698) — (698)
— — — (2,508) (2,508)
(1,132) — (1,132) — (1,132)
3,195 1,844 5,039 (1,027? 4,012
(938) (391) (1,329) 359 (970)
$ 2,257 $1,453 $ 3,710 $ (668) $ 3,042
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Six Months Ended June 30, 2002

Total Core Reconciling

Portfolio Credit Business Items Related to Reported

Investment  Guaranty Earnings Purchased Options Results
Net interest iINCOME . . ... .uoe e $4,647 $ 316 $ 4,963 $  — $ 4,963
Purchased options amortization expense ............... (641) — (641) 641 —
Core net interest income . ..............coiiiiii.. 4,006 316 4,322 641 4,963
Guaranty fee income (exXpense) ...................... (654) 1,485 831 — 831
Fee and other income, net........................... 142 97) 45 — 45
Credit-related expenses'" .. ... ... ... ... ... .. ..... — (46) (46) — (46)
Administrative eXpenses . . ... ........uieiiiiinaeea.. (176) (415) (591) — (591)
Purchased options expense under FAS 133 ............. — — — (1,286)(3) (1,286)
Debt extinguishments . .......... ... . o (396) — (396) — (396)
Income before federal income taxes................... 2,922 1,243 4,165 (6452 3,520
Provision for federal income taxes .................... (858) (216) (1,074) 226 (848)

Net INCOME ..o e ettt i $2,064 $1,027 $ 3,091 $ (419) $ 2,672

(1
@

Credit-related expenses include the income statement line items “Provision for losses” and “Foreclosed property income.”

Represents the straight-line amortization of purchased options expense that we allocate to interest expense over the original
expected life of the options. We include this amount in core business earnings instead of recording changes in the time value of
purchased options because this treatment is more consistent with the accounting for the embedded options in our callable debt
and the vast majority of our mortgages.

Represents changes in the fair value of the time value of purchased options recorded in accordance with FAS 133. We exclude
this amount from our core business earnings measure because the period-to-period fluctuations in the time value portion of our
options do not reflect the economics of our current risk management strategy, which generally is to hold our purchased options to
maturity or exercise date. Consequently, we do not expect to realize the period-to-period fluctuations in time value. In addition,
the accounting for purchased options under FAS 133 is inconsistent with the accounting for embedded options in our callable debt
and mortgages.

Represents the net federal income tax effect of core business earnings adjustments based on the applicable federal income tax rate
of 35 percent.

3

(4

The guaranty fee income that we allocate to the Credit Guaranty business for managing the credit risk on
mortgage-related assets held by the Portfolio Investment business is offset by a corresponding guaranty fee
expense allocation to the Portfolio Investment business in our line of business results. Thus, there is no
inter-segment elimination adjustment between our total line of business guaranty fee income and our
reported guaranty fee income. For line of business reporting purposes, we allocate transaction fees that we
earn for structuring and facilitating securities transactions primarily to our Portfolio Investment business.
We allocate technology-related fees that we earn from providing Desktop Underwriter and other
technology services to our customers and fees we earn for providing credit enhancement alternatives to our
customers primarily to our Credit Guaranty business.

Core Taxable-Equivalent Revenues

Core taxable-equivalent revenues for the second quarter and first half of 2003 increased 34 percent and

30 percent over the second quarter and first half of 2002 to $3.980 billion and $7.583 billion, primarily due
to strong growth in core net interest income, guaranty fee income, and fee and other income. Table 4
reconciles core taxable-equivalent revenues to taxable-equivalent revenues and provides a comparison
between the second quarter and first half of 2003 and 2002.
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Table 4: Core Taxable-Equivalent Revenues

Three Months Six Months
Ended June 30, Ended June 30,
2003 2002 2003 2002

(Dollars in millions)

Net Interest iNCOME . . . o oottt ettt e e e e e e e e e $3,501  $2,532  $ 6,869  $4,963
GUATANTY @S . . oottt ettt e e e s 632 423 1,179 831
Fee and other income, net'!) ... 232 42 345 45

Total TEVENUES . ...ttt 4,365 2,997 8,393 5,839
Taxable-equivalent adjustments:

Investment tax credits® | . ... . 212 178 429 364

Tax-exempt investments™® ... 119 126 242 249
Taxable-equivalent TEVENUES . . . . .ttt ettt ettt e e e et et 4,696 3,301 9,064 6,452
Purchased options amortization expense™ .. ... ... ... ... ... (716) (330)  (1,481) (641)
Core taxable-equivalent TeVEMUES . . . . .. ...\ttt $3,980  $2,971 $ 7,583  $5,811

(1

Includes net losses on certain tax-advantaged investments totaling $52 million and $75 million for the three months ended
June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively, and $124 million and $140 million for the six months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002,
respectively.

Represents non-GAAP taxable-equivalent adjustments for tax credits related to losses on certain affordable housing tax-
advantaged equity investments and other investment tax credits using the applicable federal income tax rate of 35 percent.
Represents non-GAAP adjustments to permit comparisons of yields on tax-exempt and taxable assets based on a 35 percent
marginal tax rate.

Represents non-GAAP adjustment for straight-line amortization of purchased options premiums that would have been recorded
prior to the adoption of FAS 133 in 2001.

(2

3

(4

Core Net Interest Income

Table 5 reconciles taxable-equivalent core net interest income to our reported net interest income and
presents an analysis of our net interest margin. Our taxable-equivalent core net interest income and net
interest margin are significantly different than our reported taxable-equivalent net interest income and net
interest yield because our core measures include the amortization of our purchased options premiums on a
straight-line basis over the life of the option, which is not in accordance with GAAP.
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Table 5: Net Interest Margin

Three Months Six Months Ended
Ended June 30, June 30,
2003 2002 2003 2002
(Dollars in millions)
Net Interest INCOME . . . oo\ttt et e e e e e e e e $ 3501 $ 2532 $ 6,869 $§ 4,963
Purchased options amortization expense" ... ... ... . . . (716) (330) (1,481) (641)
Core net interest INCOME. . . ...ttt e et e e e e e 2,785 2,202 5,388 4,322
Taxable-equivalent adjustment on tax-exempt investments® ... ... .. .. ... .. .. 119 126 242 249
Taxable-equivalent core net interest iNCOMe . ..............ovviiiiinennnnnnnn.. $ 2904 $ 2328 $ 5630 $ 4,571
Average balances:®
Interest-earning assets: ¥
Mortgage portfolio, Net .. ... ... it $808,215  $732,796  $806,510  $724,200
Nonmortgage investments and cash equivalents .................... . ....... 81,966 69,187 74,550 67,176
Total interest-earning assets . . ... .. ..ttt 890,181 801,983 881,060 791,376
Interest-free funds®™ . .. ... .. (32,431)  (24,196)  (30,432)  (24,083)
Total interest-earning assets funded by debt ........ ... ... .. ... .. i 857,750 771,787 850,628 767,293
Interest-bearing liabilities:®
Short-term debt . .. ... 231,718 128,885 221,063 130,153
Long-term debt ... ... ... 626,032 648,902 629,565 637,140
Total interest-bearing liabilities ... ... ... $857,750  $777,787  $850,628  $767,293
Average interest rates:>
Interest-earning assets:
Mortgage portfolio, Net . ... ...ttt 6.07% 6.77% 6.17% 6.81%
Nonmortgage investments and cash equivalents .............................. 1.66 2.45 1.74 2.49
Total interest-earning aSSELs . . . ... ..ttt ettt et e e 5.66 6.40 5.80 6.44
Interest-free return'™ .. ... .20 18 .20 .19
Total interest-earning assets and interest-free return........................ . .... 5.86 6.58 6.00 6.63
Interest-bearing liabilities:®
Short-term debt . . ... ... e 1.43 2.21 1.54 2.39
Long-term debt ... ... oo 5.72 6.06 5.83 6.10
Total interest-bearing liabilities ... .......... ... i 4.56 5.42 4.72 5.47
Net Interest Margin . . . ..o . vv ittt ettt et e et 1.30% 1.16% 1.28% 1.16%

(1

Reflects non-GAAP adjustment for straight-line amortization of purchased options premiums that would have been recorded prior
to the adoption of FAS 133 in 2001.

Reflects non-GAAP adjustments to permit comparison of yields on tax-exempt and taxable assets based on a 35 percent marginal
tax rate.

Averages have been calculated on a monthly basis based on amortized cost.

Includes average balance of nonaccrual loans of $5.9 billion and $4.5 billion for the three months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002,
respectively, and $5.8 billion and $4.3 billion for the six months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Interest-free funds represent the portion of our investment portfolio funded by equity and non-interest bearing liabilities.
Classification of interest expense and interest-bearing liabilities as short-term or long-term is based on effective maturity or

repricing date, taking into consideration the effect of derivative financial instruments. The cost of debt includes expense for the
amortization of purchased options.

(2

3
(4

s
G

Core net interest income for the second quarter and first half of 2003 increased $583 million and

$1.066 billion, or 26 percent and 25 percent, over the second quarter and first half of 2002 to $2.785 billion
and $5.388 billion. The increase was due primarily to 11 percent growth in our average net investment
balance (total interest earning assets) in each period and a 14 basis point and 12 basis point increase in
the net interest margin to 1.30 percent and 1.28 percent in the second quarter and first half of 2003,
respectively. Table 6 shows changes in core net interest income between the second quarter and first half
of 2003 and the second quarter and first half of 2002.
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Table 6: Rate/Volume Analysis of Changes in Core Net Interest Income

Attributable to

Increase Changes in

(Decrease)  Volume Rate
(Dollars in millions)

Second Quarter 2003 vs. Second Quarter 2002
Interest income:

Mortgage POrtfolio . . ... ... $ (70) $ 1,205  $(1,275)
Nonmortgage investments and cash equivalents.............. ... . ... .. i, (84) 68 (152)
Total INtEreSt INCOME . .« . ottt ettt ettt e et e e e e e e e e et e e e e (154) 1,273 (1,427)
Interest expense:'”
Short-term debt . ... ... 51 378 (327)
Long-term debt ... ..o o (1,174) (328) (846)
Total INtErest EXPEISE . . . ..ottt e e e e e e e e e e e (1,123) 50 (1,173)
Change in net interest IMCOMIE . . ... ...\ttt e $ 969 $ 1,223 $ (254)
Change in purchased options amortization expense™ ... ... ... ... ... .. .. ... ... .. ... ... (386)
Change in core net interest IMNCOME . . . ..ottt ettt ettt e e ettt $ 583
Change in taxable-equivalent adjustment on tax-exempt investments™® ... ... ... .. .. ... .. ... (7)
Change in taxable-equivalent core net interest iNCOME . .........oviiiuunneiiinnneennnn... $ 576

First Six Months 2003 vs. First Six Months 2002
Interest income:

Mortgage POTtIOlio . . . ..ttt $ 349 $ 2,645  $(2,296)
Nonmortgage investments and cash equivalents........... ... ... .. .. (184) 83 (267)
Total INtEreSt IMCOME .+« . vttt et et e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 165 2,728 (2,563)
Interest expense:m
Short-term debt . . ... o 17 743 (726)
Long-term debt ... ..o o (1,758) (222)  (1,536)
Total INtEreSt EXPEMSE . . .. o v ettt et ettt e et e e e e e e e s (1,741) 521 (2,262)
Change in net interest iMCOMIE . . ... ...\ttt e $ 1,906 $ 2,207 $ (301)
Change in purchased options amortization expense® .. ... ... .. .. ... . ... .. .. . ... ... (840)
Change in core net interest iNCOME . . . ..ottt ettt e ettt e e et e s $ 1,066
Change in taxable-equivalent adjustment on tax-exempt investments™ .. ... ... . L. (7)
Change in taxable-equivalent core net interest inCOMe . ... ..........uuuuruuuuuneunnunennn.. $ 1,059

(1

Combined rate/volume variances, a third element of the calculation, are allocated to the rate and volume variances based on their
relative size.

Classification of interest expense and interest-bearing liabilities as short-term or long-term is based on effective maturity or
repricing date, taking into consideration the effect of derivative financial instruments.

Reflects non-GAAP adjustment for straight-line amortization of purchased options premiums that we would have recorded under
GAAP prior to adopting FAS 133.

Reflects non-GAAP adjustments to permit comparison of yields on tax-exempt and taxable assets based on a 35 percent marginal
tax rate.

@

3)

(4

Business Segment Results

Portfolio Investment Business

Fannie Mae’s Portfolio Investment business manages the interest rate risk of our mortgage portfolio and
nonmortgage investments. Core business earnings generated by our Portfolio Investment business is
primarily reflected in core net interest income. Second quarter and first half 2003 core business earnings
for our Portfolio Investment business grew 5 percent and 9 percent over the corresponding periods in 2002
to $1.094 billion and $2.257 billion, respectively. This growth was driven primarily by strong growth in core
net interest income in both periods, partially offset by a significant increase in losses from debt
extinguishments.

The increase in core net interest income for our Portfolio Investment business was driven by an increase in
our net interest margin, which averaged 130 basis points and 128 basis points in the second quarter and
first half of 2003, respectively, compared with 116 basis points in both the second quarter and first half of
2002. These increases in our net interest margin were partially offset by slower growth in our mortgage
portfolio, which declined at an annualized rate of 2 percent during the second quarter of 2003 and slowed
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to an annualized growth rate of 6 percent during the first half of 2003. This relatively slow growth in the
portfolio was driven by continued high levels of liquidations together with strong competition for mortgages
from banks and other investors that periodically narrowed spreads between mortgage yields and our debt
costs (mortgage-to-debt spreads) which produced less attractive purchase opportunities. In addition, during
the second quarter of 2003 we took advantage of favorable pricing in the forward market and delayed
settlement on many of our mortgage purchase commitments. As these commitments settle during the
second half of the year, our portfolio growth should accelerate noticeably.

Our net interest margin for the second quarter and first half of 2003 benefited significantly from very low
mortgage rates and high levels of anticipated refinancing. We had expected our net interest margin to
begin to decline in early 2003 as interest rates leveled off or moved higher. However, interest rates dropped
further in the first half of 2003, resulting in an increase in projected mortgage liquidations. As a result, we
maintained an unusually high percentage of short-term financing at a lower cost for longer than we had
anticipated, which reduced our interest expense and caused a further temporary increase in our net interest
margin.

Losses from debt extinguishments increased by $515 million and $736 million during the second quarter
and first half of 2003, respectively. These increases were driven by attractive opportunities to repurchase
high-cost debt.

Mortgage Portfolio

Table 7 summarizes mortgage portfolio activity on a gross basis and average yields for the second quarter
and first half of 2003 and 2002, and Table 8 shows the distribution of Fannie Mae’s mortgage portfolio by
product type at June 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002.
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Table 7: Mortgage Portfolio Activity"

Single-family:

Government insured or guaranteed .................

Conventional:

Long-term, fixed-rate ..........................
Intermediate-term, fixed-rate ... .................
Adjustable-rate. . ........ .. i

Total conventional single-family ................ ...

Total single-family.......... ...,
Multifamily. . ...

Total ... ..
Average netyield....... ... ... . .. i

Annualized repayments as a percentage of average

mortgage portfolio .......... ... .. ... ...

Single-family:

Government insured or guaranteed .................

Conventional:

Long-term, fixed-rate ..........................
Intermediate-term, fixed-rate ....................
Adjustable-rate......... ...

Total conventional single-family ................ ...

Total single-family............ ... . ... . ...
Multifamily. . ... ..

Total ...
Average netyield............ ... ...

Annualized repayments as a percentage of average

mortgage portfolio ........ ... ... . i

Purchases Sales Repayments®
Three Months Three Months Three Months
Ended June 30, Ended June 30, Ended June 30,
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002

(Dollars in millions)

$ 1,493 $5879 $§ — $ 67 $ 4536 § 2708
102,204 35,712 5,116 3,562 102,860 34,621
17,904 11,667 107 — 15,239 6,715
3,896 1,928 202 — 2,817 2,030
124,004 49,307 5,425 3,562 120,916 43,366
125,497 55,186 5,425 3,629 125,452 46,074
2,463 1,731 — — 494 401
$127,960  $56,917  $5,425 $3,629  $125946  $46,475

5.09% 6.37% 6.45% 6.89%

61.8% 25.2%
Purchases Sales Repayments®
Six Months Six Months Six Months
Ended June 30, Ended June 30, Ended June 30,
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
$ 2421 $ 7,034 $§ 58 $ 73 $§ 8818 $§ 5,549
207,988 109,974 6,075 6,120 196,917 85,549
37,474 23,535 307 74 19,540 11,019
7,451 3,442 256 114 5,231 4,420
252,913 136,951 6,638 6,308 221,688 100,988
255,334 144,085 6,696 6,381 230,506 106,537
4,631 3,778 — 379 1,048 910
$259,965  $147,863  $6,696 $6,760  $231,554  $107,447
5.22% 6.34% 6.52% 6.96%

M Excludes premiums, discounts, and other deferred price adjustments.
@) Includes mortgage loan prepayments, scheduled amortization, and foreclosures.
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Table 8: Mortgage Portfolio Composition”

June 30, December 31,
2003 2002

(Dollars in millions)

Mortgages
Single-family:
Government insured Or UATANtEEd. . . ... ... ...ttt e $ 6,045 $ 5,458
Conventional:
Long-term, fIXed-Tate . . .. ... ..t 110,488 103,220
Intermediate-term, fixed-rate'® ... ... 67,946 54,503
AdJustable-Tate . ... ..ot 10,600 9,045
Total conventional single-family . ........ ... .. . . . . 189,034 166,768
Total single-family . . . ... ... 195,079 172,226
Multifamily:
Government insured Or gUArANtEEd. . . ... ...ttt e 1,212 1,353
Conventional . . ... .. . 14,855 12,218
Total multifamily ... ... 16,067 13,571
TOtAl MOTTZAZES . . . v v vttt et e $211,146 $185,797

Mortgage-related securities

Single-family:
Government insured or gUAranteed. . ... ...ttt $ 26,137 $ 33,293
Conventional:
Long-term, fiXed-Tate . . . . ... .ottt e 506,704 510,435
Intermediate-term, fixed-rate ) .. ... . 43,284 39,409
AJUSTADIE-TALE . . . oottt e e 14,564 13,946
Total conventional single-family ........ ... ... . 564,552 563,790
Total single-family . . ... ... o 590,689 597,083
Multifamily:
Government insured or UATanteed. . ... ... ... ...ttt e 8,012 7,370
Conventional . ... ... . 7,620 7,050
Total multifamily . .. ... e 15,632 14,420
Total mortgage-related SECUTIHIES . ... ...ttt et e e $606,321 $611,503

Mortgage portfolio, net

Single-family:
Government insured or guaranteed. . ... ........ .. $ 32,182 $ 38,751
Conventional:
Long-term, fiXed-Tate . . . . ..\ ottt ettt e 617,192 613,655
Intermediate-term, fixed-rate® ... .. ... 111,230 93,912
AdJustable-Tate . . . ... 25,164 22,991
Total conventional single-family ........ ... ... 753,586 730,558
Total single-family . . ... ... e 785,768 769,309
Multifamily:
Government insured Or GUAranteed. . ... ... ... ..ttt e 9,224 8,723
Conventional . . .. ... . 22,475 19,268
Total multifamily . . .. ... 31,699 27,991
Total mortgage portfolio . ... ... ...t 817,467 797,300
Unamortized premium, discount, and deferred price adjustments, net® . 2,892 472
Allowance for loan losses ™ . .. .. ... (83) (79)
Mortgage portfolio, NET . .. ...ttt et e $820,276 $797,693
Average net yield .. ..o 5.99% 6.45%
(1)

Data reflects unpaid principal balance adjusted to include mark-to-market gains and losses on available-for-sale securities.
Intermediate-term, fixed-rate consists of portfolio loans with contractual maturities at purchase equal to or less than 20 years and
MBS and other mortgage-related securities held in portfolio with maturities of 15 years or less at issue date.

Includes net unamortized premiums of $1,587 million at June 30, 2003 and $135 million at December 31, 2002 related to
available-for-sale and held-to-maturity mortgage-related securities.

Guaranty liability for probable losses on loans underlying Fannie Mae guaranteed MBS is included in “Guaranty liability for
MBS.”

(2)

3

(4

Nonmortgage Investments

Nonmortgage investments consist of our Liquid Investment Portfolio (“LIP”) and other non-mortgage
related investments. Nonmortgage investments increased 12 percent to $67 billion at June 30, 2003, from
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$60 billion at December 31, 2002. We regularly review these investments for other than temporary declines

in their fair value and record impairment where appropriate in fee and other income.

Table 9 shows the composition, weighted-average maturities, and credit ratings of our available-for-sale
and held-to-maturity nonmortgage investments at June 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002.

Table 9: Nonmortgage Investments
Available-for-Sale

Available-for-sale:
Asset-backed securities. .......... ... ... ...
Floating rate notes"™. . .......................
Corporate bonds . ........ ... ... o
Taxable auction notes . .......................
Auction rate preferred stock ..................
Other ..o

Available-for-sale:
Asset-backed securities. . ........ ... . oL
Floating rate notes'’) .. ... ... ... ... ... ... ...
Corporate bonds . ........ ... ... o
Taxable auction notes .. ......................
Commercial paper...........coueeeiuinnen...
Auction rate preferred stock ............... ...
Other . ...

" As of June 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002, 100 percent of floating rate notes repriced at intervals of 90 days or less.

June 30, 2003

Weighted
Gross Gross Average
Amortized  Unrealized  Unrealized Fair Maturity % Rated A
Cost Gains Losses Value in Months or Better
(Dollars in millions)
$27,533 $ 83 $(40) $27,576 24.0 99.3
12,649 17 (4) 12,662 144 92.5
1,134 44 — 1,178 21.8 73.1
784 — — 784 5 100.0
63 2 — 65 1.0 —
50 — — 50 18 100.0
$42,213 $146 $(44) $42,315 20.6 96.4
December 31, 2002
Weighted
Gross Gross Average
Amortized  Unrealized  Unrealized Fair Maturity % Rated A
Cost Gains Losses Value in Months or Better
(Dollars in millions)
$22,281 $ 98 $ (68) $22,311 30.0 100.0
11,754 10 (29) 11,735 10.6 87.6
1,149 42 — 1,191 12.8 25.2
949 — — 949 2 100.0
100 — — 100 2.2 100.0
112 — (4) 108 2.5 43.5
400 — 400 11 100.0
$36,745 $150 $(101) $36,794 22 93.5
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Held-to-Maturity

Held-to-maturity:
Repurchase agreements

Federal funds.............

Auction rate preferred stock
Other

Held-to-maturity:
Repurchase agreements

Federal funds.............

Auction rate preferred stock

Eurodollar time deposits. . . .
Commercial paper.........

Other

Our nonmortgage investments combined with cash and cash equivalents represent our total liquid

June 30, 2003

Weighted
Gross Gross Average
Amortized  Unrealized  Unrealized Fair Maturity % Rated A
Cost Gains Losses Value in Months or Better
(Dollars in millions)
$18,294 $— $— $18,294 5 100.0
5,100 — — 5,100 3 100.0
774 — — 774 8 100.0
441 = = 441 13 100.0
$24,609 $— $— $24,609 .6 100.0
December 31, 2002
Weighted
Gross Gross Average
Amortized  Unrealized  Unrealized Fair Maturity % Rated A
Cost Gains Losses Value in Months or Better
(Dollars in millions)
$20,732 $— $— $20,732 5 100.0
150 — — 150 1.9 100.0
402 — — 402 1.0 100.0
1,398 — — 1,398 .8 100.0
100 — — 100 N 100.0
268 1 = 269 4.9 100.0
$23,050 $ 1 $— $23,051 .6 100.0

investments. Our liquid investments totaled $69 billion at June 30, 2003, compared with $62 billion at

December 31, 2002.

Debt Securities

Total debt outstanding increased 4 percent to $884 billion at June 30, 2003 from $851 billion at
December 31, 2002. Table 10 shows a comparison of debt issuances and repayments between the second
quarter and first half of 2003 and the second quarter and first half of 2002.

Table 10: Debt Activity

Issued:

Redeemed:

AMOUNT. ..ottt
AVETAZE COSL. . vttt ettt e e

Issued:

Redeemed:

AMOUNT. ..ot
AVETAZE COSL. . vttt ettt e e

Three Months
Ended June 30,

2003 2002
(Dollars in millions)

$ 686,729 $ 389,024
1.23% 2.27%
$ 679,863 $ 372,815
1.78% 2.31%
Six Months
Ended June 30,
2003 2002
$1,337,602 $ 912,889
1.32% 2.19%
$1,308,238 $ 890,169
1.75% 2.28%

We adjust the maturity and redemption value of our outstanding debt to show the effect of our use of
derivatives to supplement our issuance of debt and to hedge against fluctuations in interest rates. Table 11
shows that we increased the relative amount of our effective short-term debt relative to effective long-term
debt and lowered our effective debt costs at June 30, 2003 compared to December 31, 2002 due to the rise
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in mortgage asset liquidations and the steep yield curve. Table 12 shows the maturity and cost of our
effective long-term debt.

Table 11: Effective Short-Term and Long-Term Debt

June 30, December 31,
2003 2002

(Dollars in millions)

Outstanding:
Short-term: "
NEt AMOUNT .« o oottt et et e e e e e e e e e $294,432 $192,702
GOS8t o ottt 1.28% 1.52%
Weighted-average maturity (in months) ........ ... 2 3
Percent of total debt outstanding. .. .......... .. 34% 23%
Long-term:?
INEE AMOUINT .« .« &ttt $579,676 $651,827
G0t o e et 5.57% 5.48%
Weighted-average maturity (in months) ........ ... .. 74 75
Percent of total debt outstanding. .. ... ... .. ... e 66% 77%
Total:
Net amount®) oo $874,108 $844,529
GOS8t o ottt 4.13% 4.81%
Weighted-average maturity (in months) ....... ... .. 50 58

() Represents the redemption value of short-term debt adjusted to include the effect of derivative instruments that replicate short-
term, variable-rate debt securities and exclude short-term debt securities that have been economically converted into long-term
debt funding through interest rate swaps.

@ Represents the redemption value of long-term debt adjusted to include the effect of short-to-long interest rate swaps that
economically convert short-term debt securities into long-term debt securities and exclude long-term debt securities that have
been economically converted into short-term funding through interest rate swaps.

©) Represents the redemption value of outstanding debt at period end. Excludes the effect of amortization of premiums, discounts,
issuance costs, and hedging results.

Table 12: Maturities of Effective Long-Term Debt

Assuming Callable Debt
Redeemed at Initial

Contractual Maturity Call Date
Amount Accounting Amount Accounting
Outstanding” Cost® Outstanding” Cost®
(Dollars in millions)

Currently callable ........ ... .. . . $ — —% $ 3,445 5.08%
2003 L 28,889 6.07 132,125 4.57
2004 . 89,444 4.99 195,942 5.24
2005 84,890 421 82,386 5.28
2000 ..t 78,622 4.24 70,922 5.27
2007 49,411 5.95 36,562 7.11
2008 and later . ... 248,420 6.55 58,294 8.88

$579,676 5.57 $579,676 5.57

" Amount outstanding includes long-term debt, effective fixed-rate debt and notional amount of long-term interest rate swaps. Also
includes debt linked to swaptions, which makes it effective callable debt. Excludes effective variable-rate debt.

@) Accounting cost represents the monthly equivalent yield that discounts the amount due at maturity to the net proceeds over the
expected life of the debt. Includes the impact of debt swaps.

Seventy-five percent of our mortgage portfolio had option-embedded protection at June 30, 2003, the same
level that we had at December 31, 2002, but still above the average range of the past three years.
Effectively callable debt accounted for 78 percent of the $618 billion in option-embedded debt outstanding
at June 30, 2003. In comparison, effectively callable debt accounted for 58 percent of the $601 billion in
option-embedded debt outstanding at December 31, 2002. Table 13 presents option-embedded debt
instruments as a percentage of our net mortgage portfolio at June 30, 2003 and 2002, and December 31,
2002.

20



Table 13: Option-Embedded Debt Instruments

Six Months
Ended
_June 30, pecember 31,
2003 2002 2002
(Dollars in millions)

Issued during period. . .. ... ...ttt $213  $117 $384
OULSTANAING . . . o oot et e e 618 430 601
Percentage of net mortgage portfolio . .. ... ... i 75%  58% 75%

Credit Guaranty Business

Our Credit Guaranty business has primary responsibility for managing all of our mortgage credit risk. Core
business earnings generated by our Credit Guaranty business are primarily reflected in guaranty fee
income, administrative expenses, and net interest income. Second quarter and first half 2003 core business
earnings for our Credit Guaranty business grew 45 percent and 41 percent over the corresponding periods
in 2002 to $766 million and $1.453 billion, respectively. The increase in core business earnings for our
Credit Guaranty business was driven primarily by a 36 percent and 34 percent increase in guaranty fee
income. Guaranty fee income for our Credit Guaranty business increased largely due to 20 percent and
19 percent growth in our average book of business and a 2 basis point increase in the average fee rate for
each period to 20.8 basis points and 20.5 basis points, respectively. The increase in the average fee rate
was a result of higher fee rates on new business, together with the faster revenue recognition of deferred
fees due to accelerated prepayments. The average fee rate for our Credit Guaranty business includes the
effect of guaranty fee income allocated to the Credit Guaranty business for managing the credit risk on
mortgage-related assets held by the Portfolio Investment business. It therefore differs from our
consolidated average effective guaranty fee rate, which excludes guaranty fees on Fannie Mae MBS held
in our portfolio because these fees are reported as interest income.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

We enter into off-balance sheet arrangements to facilitate our statutory purpose of providing mortgage
funds to the secondary market and reduce Fannie Mae’s exposure to interest rate fluctuations. These
arrangements may involve elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of amounts recognized on
Fannie Mae’s balance sheet. Table 14 shows our off-balance sheet arrangements at June 30, 2003 and
December 31, 2002, which primarily include guaranteed MBS and other mortgage-related securities and
commitments to purchase mortgage assets or issue and guarantee MBS.

Table 14: Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
June 30, December 31,
2003 2002

(Dollars in billions)

Contractual amounts:

Outstanding MBS ) L $1,237 $1,029
Master commitments:

MaANAatOry ..ottt e e e e e 60 41

OpHiONal . . . 10
Portfolio purchase commitments:

MaANAatOTY . ..ottt et e e e e 135 85

O IONaAl . .o 4 3
Credit enhanCemMents . . .. ... ...ttt ettt e e 12 12
Other INVESTMENTS . . ...ttt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e 3 3

) MBS held by investors other than Fannie Mae.
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Table 15 summarizes outstanding MBS and total MBS outstanding at June 30, 2003 and December 31,
2002. In addition, it presents total MBS issued plus MBS issues acquired by others, including REMICs, in
the second quarter and first half of 2003 and 2002.

Table 15: Outstanding MBS™"
June 30, December 31,

2003 2002
(Dollars in millions)
Outstanding MBS held by other inVestors. ... ...t $1,237,461 $1,029,456
Total MBS outstanding® . .. ... .. ... 1,749,896 1,538,287
Three Months Ended
June 30,
2003 2002
MBS issues acquired Dy Others ... ... ... it $282,502 $102,909
Total MBS dssued™® .. ..o 352,985 132,042
Six Months Ended
June 30,
2003 2002
MBS issues acquired Dy Others ... ... ... it $486,435 $209,713
Total MBS issued ™ ..o 645,558 305,958

(1

MBS may be resecuritized to back Fannie Megas, SMBS, or REMICs. With respect to those MBS, the amounts shown only
include the principal amount of the MBS once. Amounts also include REMICs created from whole loans not owned or
guaranteed by Fannie Mae.

Includes $512 billion at June 30, 2003 and $509 billion at December 31, 2002 of MBS in Fannie Mae’s portfolio.

Total issued for the three months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002 includes $70 billion and $29 billion, respectively, of MBS
purchased by Fannie Mae. Total issued for the three months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002 excludes $3 billion of MBS that we
issued from loans in our portfolio.

Total issued for the six months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002 includes $159 billion and $96 billion, respectively, of MBS
purchased by Fannie Mae. Total issued for the six months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002 excludes $9 billion and $5 billion,
respectively, of MBS that we issued from loans in our portfolio.

2
3

(4

REMIC issuances totaled $72 billion and $145 billion in the second quarter and first half of 2003,
compared with $22 billion and $58 billion in the second quarter and first half of 2002. Lower interest rates
continued to fuel MBS issuances, making more collateral available for REMICs. The REMIC market
continued to be attractive to investors because of the effect of the steep yield curve. The outstanding
balance of REMICs (including REMICs held in Fannie Mae’s portfolio) was $382 billion at June 30,
2003, compared with $347 billion at December 31, 2002.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fannie Mae’s financial statements and reported results are based on GAAP, which requires us in some
cases to use estimates and assumptions that may affect our reported results and disclosures. We believe the
application of the following accounting policies involve the most critical or complex estimates and
assumptions used in preparing Fannie Mae’s financial statements: determining the adequacy of the
allowance for loan losses and guaranty liability for MBS; projecting mortgage prepayments to calculate the
amortization of deferred price adjustments on mortgages and mortgage-related securities held in portfolio
and guaranteed mortgage-related securities; and estimating the time value of our purchased options. We
discuss the assumptions involved in applying these policies in Fannie Mae’s 2002 Annual Report on

Form 10-K under “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operation—Application of Critical Accounting Policies”

As of June 30, 2003, we have not made any significant changes to the estimates and assumptions used in
applying our critical accounting policies from our audited financial statements except as follows. In
conjunction with this ongoing assessment and continual updating of assumptions, management significantly
changed the prepayment projections for mortgages and mortgage-related securities held in portfolio and
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guaranteed mortgage-related securities as a result of substantially lower interest rates. This resulted in an
acceleration of the recognition of deferred price adjustments related to our guaranty business as discussed
in the guaranty fee section. While we believe our estimates and assumptions are reasonable based on
historical experience and other factors, actual results could differ from those estimates and these
differences could be material to the financial statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Fannie Mae is exposed to several major areas of risk, including interest rate risk and credit risk, that are
discussed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 under
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation—Risk
Management.”

Corporate Financial Disciplines

We recently completed a comprehensive assessment of our corporate financial disciplines. We concluded
that with our risk-based capital standard in place—and given the growing scale of our business and the
potential for continued financial market volatility—it was prudent to review our financial disciplines, and to
consider updating the business risk management strategies they govern. During our review we formalized
the following internal financial discipline objectives.

* To maintain a standalone “risk-to-the-government” credit rating from Standard and Poor’s of at least
AA-, and to maintain a standalone “bank financial strength” credit rating from Moody’s of at least A-:

Our senior debt securities carry AAA/Aaa ratings. We also are given “standalone” credit ratings by
both Standard and Poor’s and Moody’s. These standalone ratings are important external indicators of
Fannie Mae’s intrinsic financial strength.

 To sufficiently capitalize and hedge our mortgage portfolio and credit guaranty business so that each is
able to withstand internal and external “stress tests” set to at least a AA/Aa standard:

The most common way that regulators, rating agencies and financial analysts judge the adequacy of a
company’s capital and the quality of its risk management practices is by assessing how well that
company would perform under conditions of extreme and prolonged economic and financial stress.

Our regulator now uses a quarterly risk-based capital stress test to evaluate Fannie Mae’s capital
adequacy, and it makes the results of these tests public. This risk-based capital test provides the
company with a direct regulatory incentive to maintain a low risk profile. We traditionally have used
stress tests internally as well.

* To keep our mortgage prepayment and credit risks low enough that over time our core business earnings
are less variable than the median of all AA/Aa and AAA/Aaa S&P 500 companies.

We examined the net income pattern over the past ten years of all of the companies that were able to
maintain ratings of AA-/Aa3 or higher during the entire period. From this review we determined that
we should set as an objective to manage our interest rate and credit risks so that Fannie Mae’s long-
term earnings variability remains below the median of all AA/Aa and AAA/Aaa companies. In
conjunction with our stress test standards, we believe that meeting this income variability objective
will allow us to maintain our standalone ratings with a comfortable margin of safety, and possibly to
improve them.

Interest Rate Risk Management

Interest rate risk is the risk of loss to future earnings or long-term value that may result from changes in
interest rates. We utilize a wide range of risk measures and analyses to manage the interest rate risk
inherent in the mortgage portfolio, including ongoing business risk measures and run-off measures of the
existing portfolio. We rely on net interest income at risk as our primary ongoing business measure of
interest rate risk and the portfolio duration gap as our primary run-off measure of interest rate risk. We
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disclose our net interest income at risk and duration gap measures on a monthly basis. We believe these
measures together provide a more informative profile of our overall interest rate risk position than either
measure alone.

e Net Interest Income at Risk

Net interest income at risk measures the projected impact of changes in the level of interest rates and the
shape of the yield curve on the mortgage portfolio’s expected or “base” core net interest income over the
immediate future one- and four-year periods. Our net interest income at risk disclosure represents the
extent to which our core net interest income over the next one-year and four-year periods is at risk due to
a plus or minus 50 basis point parallel change in the current Fannie Mae yield curve and from a 25 basis
point change in the slope of Fannie Mae’s yield curve. These changes in interest rates were selected as
part of our six voluntary initiatives announced in 2000.

Table 16 compares our June 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002 net interest income at risk over a one-year
and four-year period under each of the interest rate scenarios. A positive number indicates the percent by
which projected adjusted net interest income could be reduced by the rate shock. These calculations reflect
management’s assumptions of most likely market conditions. Actual portfolio core net interest income may
differ from these calculations because of specific interest rate movements, changing business conditions,
changing prepayments, and management actions.

Table 16: Net Interest Income at Risk

Assuming a 50 basis Assuming a 25 basis
point change in point change in slope
interest rates of the yield curve
One-year  Four-year One-year  Four-year
June 30, 2003 . .. ... 2.1% 6.6% 3.9% 5.9%
December 31, 2002 . . ..o i .6 1.6 4.7 6.6

* Duration Gap

We apply the same interest rate process, prepayment models, and volatility assumptions used in our net
interest income at risk measure to generate the portfolio duration gap. However, we do not incorporate
projected future business activity or nonmortgage investments into our duration gap measure. The duration
gap measures the difference between the estimated durations of portfolio assets and liabilities and
summarizes the extent to which estimated cash flows for assets and liabilities are matched, on average,
over time and across interest rate scenarios. A positive duration gap signals a greater exposure to rising
interest rates because it indicates that the duration of our assets exceeds the duration of our liabilities. A
negative duration gap signals a greater exposure to declining interest rates because the duration of our
assets is less than the duration of our liabilities.

For March 2003, disclosed in April, we began reporting our duration gap as a weighted average for the
month. Previously, we had reported the duration gap as of the last business day of each month. We believe
that reporting a weighted average monthly duration gap provides a more representative measure of our
portfolio’s risk position for the month and reduces the effect of any financial anomalies that may occur on
the last day of the month. Fannie Mae’s duration gap for June 2003 calculated on a monthly average basis
was minus 1 month. In comparison, the duration gap calculated at month end was minus 5 months at
December 31, 2002.

We maintain to the extent possible a relatively close match between the durations of the assets and
liabilities in our mortgage portfolio investment business, using a combination of option-based funding and
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rebalancing actions to meet this objective. Prior to this year, Fannie Mae’s duration gap has been wider
than plus or minus 6 months approximately one-third of the time. Going forward, our objective will be to
maintain the portfolio’s duration gap within a range of plus-or-minus six months substantially all of the
time. This narrower range for the portfolio duration gap should reduce potential core business earnings
variability, but also could produce a somewhat lower net interest margin over the longer term.

Derivatives

Derivative instruments are important tools that we use to manage interest rate risk and supplement our
issuance of debt in the capital markets. We are an end user of derivatives and do not take speculative
positions with derivatives. We primarily use interest rate derivative instruments as a substitute for notes
and bonds we issue in the debt markets. The ability to either issue debt securities or modify debt through
the use of derivatives increases our funding flexibility and potentially reduces our overall funding costs. The
funding flexibility provided by using derivatives also helps us to better match the cash flow variability
inherent in mortgages. The types of derivatives we use—primarily interest-rate swaps, basis swaps,
swaptions, and caps—are generally regarded in the marketplace as relatively straightforward interest rate
derivatives.

Table 17 summarizes the notional balances and fair values of our derivatives by type at June 30, 2003 and
December 31, 2002.

Table 17: Derivative Notional Amounts and Net Fair Values

June 30, 2003 December 31, 2002
Notional Net Fair Notional Net Fair
Amounts Values Amounts Values"
(Dollars in millions)

Pay-fiIxed SWaps . ...ttt s $219,307 $(20,433)  $168,512 $(17,892)
Receive-fiIxed SWaps . .. .o oottt 142,938 6,676 52,370 4,010
BasiS SWaAPS « . o o et 24,250 1 25,525 4
Caps and SWAPHIONS . .. .ottt ettt e et e 410,733 15,265 397,868 12,834
Ot . o 14,165 (1,007) 12,320 (987)
Total oo $811,393 $ 502 $656,595 $ (2,031)

() Based on end of period fair values, estimated by calculating the cost, on a net present value basis, to settle at current market rates
all outstanding derivative contracts.
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Table 18 shows the additions and maturities of derivatives by type during the first and second quarters of
2003, along with the expected maturities of derivatives outstanding at June 30, 2003.

Table 18: Derivative Activity and Maturity Data
Pay-Fixed/Receive-Variable

)
Swaps Receive-Fixed/
Pay Receive  Pay-Variable Basis Caps and
Amount  Rate®  Rate® Swaps Swaps Swaptions  Other” Total
(Dollars in millions)
Notional Amounts:")
Notional balance at
December 31, 2002 .......... $168,512 6.07% 1.67% $ 52,370 $25,525 $397,868 $12,320  $656,595
Additions .................. 32,515 3.12 1.36 29,409 5,975 18,350 5,138 91,387
Maturities™ ................ 4,700  5.50 1.69 11,438 9,785 41,000 3,701 70,624
Notional balance at March 31,
2003, $196,327 5.59% 1.39% $ 70,341 $21,715 $375,218 $13,757  $677,358
Additions .................. 34,125 2.83 1.18 87,186 10,280 100,285 5,745 237,621
Maturities™ ................ 11,145 5.08 1.34 14,589 7,745 64,770 5337 103,586
Notional balance at June 30,
2003, $219,307 5.32% 1.28% $142,938 $24250  $410,733 $14,165  $811,393
Future Maturities of Notional
Amounts:®
2003 $ 14,085 4.90% 1.26% $ 3,365 $ 5,050 $ 49,228 $ 4908 $ 76,636
2004 . . 15,550 5.54 1.27 11,420 18,125 66,850 1,200 113,145
2005 25,160 3.92 1.28 12,125 175 68,500 1,409 107,369
2006 .. 21,265 4.58 1.26 12,690 430 15,650 300 50,335
2007 . 16,000 5.26 1.27 27,585 — 14,000 3,346 60,931
Thereafter .................. 127,247 5.73 1.28 75,753 470 196,505 3,002 402,977
Total .................. $219,307 5.32% 1.28% $142,938 $24250  $410,733 $14,165  $811,393

(1

Dollars represent notional amounts that indicate only the amount on which payments are being calculated and do not represent
the amount at risk of loss.

Notional amounts include callable swaps of $36 billion, $35 billion, and $35 billion with weighted-average pay rates of

6.73 percent, 6.74 percent, and 6.75 percent and weighted-average receive rates of 1.29 percent, 1.40 percent and 1.68 percent at
June 30, 2003, March 31, 2003, and December 31, 2002, respectively.

The weighted-average interest rate payable and receivable is as of the date indicated. The interest rates of the swaps may be
variable rate, so these rates may change as prevailing interest rates change.

Includes foreign currency swaps, futures contracts, and derivative instruments that provide a hedge against interest rate
fluctuations. Derivatives that served as economic hedges but did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting under FAS 133
totaled $444 million at June 30, 2003.

Includes matured, called, exercised, and terminated amounts.

Based on stated maturities. Assumes that variable interest rates remain constant at June 30, 2003 levels.

(2

3

(4

s
G

At June 30, 2003, 100 percent of the $811 billion notional amount of our outstanding derivative
transactions were with counterparties rated A or better both by Standard & Poor’s (“S&P”’) and Moody’s
Investors Service (“Moody’s”). Our derivative instruments were diversified to reduce our credit risk
concentrations among 22 counterparties at June 30, 2003, compared with 21 counterparties at

December 31, 2002. At June 30, 2003, six counterparties with credit ratings of A or better represented
approximately 69 percent of the total notional amount of outstanding derivatives transactions. The
outstanding notional amount for each of these six counterparties ranged between 7 percent and 14 percent
of our total outstanding notional amount at June 30, 2003. Each of the remaining counterparties accounted
for less than five percent of the total outstanding notional amount at June 30, 2003. In comparison,

eight counterparties with credit ratings of A or better represented approximately 76 percent of the total
notional amount of outstanding derivatives transactions at December 31, 2002.

Our primary credit exposure on a derivative transaction is that a counterparty might default on payments
due, which could result in Fannie Mae having to replace the derivative with a different counterparty at a
higher cost. Although notional principal is a commonly used measure of volume in the derivatives market,
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it is not a meaningful measure of market or credit risk since the notional amount does not change hands
other than in the case of foreign currency swaps. Counterparties use the notional amounts of derivative
instruments to calculate contractual cash flows to be exchanged. However, the notional amount is
significantly greater than the potential market or credit loss that could result from such transactions. The
replacement cost, after consideration of offsetting arrangements such as master netting agreements and
collateral held, to settle at current market prices all outstanding derivatives in a gain position is a more
meaningful measure of our credit market exposure on derivatives. Table 19 shows our exposure on
derivatives at June 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002 by maturity and counterparty credit ratings based on
these maturities.

Table 19: Derivative Credit Loss Exposure”

June 30, 2003 December 31, 2002
Credit Rating Credit Rating
AAA AA A BBB  Total AAA AA A BBB  Total
(Dollars in millions)
Less than 1 year ............ $ — 3 28§ 16 $— $ 4 8 — 3 69 $ 6 $— § 75
ltoSyears................. 1 843 388 — 1,232 — 486 116 — 602
Over Syears................ 28 2,086 3,080  — 5,194 21 1,334 2,328 — 3,683
Subtotal ........ ... ... .. 29 2,957 3484 — 6,470 21 1,889 2,450 — 4,360
Maturity Distribution
Netting® .............. (29) (485) (572) — (1,086) (21) (368) (670) — (1,059)
Exposure . .................. — 2,472 2912 — 5,384 — 1,521 1,780 — 3,301
Collateral Held ............. — 2,223 2,864 — 5,087 — 1,382 1,722 — 3,104
Exposure Net of Collateral”.. $§ — § 249 § 48 $— § 297 § — § 139 § S8 $— $ 197
Notional Amount™® ... ... .. $19,120 $397,526 $394,380 $ 0 $811,026 $21,045 $316,813 $318,487 $250 $656,595
Number of Counterparties . . .. 3 11 8 0 22 2 11 7 1 21

() Represents the exposure to credit loss on derivative instruments, which is estimated by calculating the cost, on a present value
basis, to replace all outstanding derivative contracts in a gain position. Reported on a net-by-counterparty basis where a legal right
of offset exists under an enforceable master settlement agreement. Derivative gains and losses with the same counterparty in the
same maturity category are presented net within the maturity category.

Represents impact of netting of derivatives in a gain position and derivatives in a loss position for the same counterparty across
maturity categories.

“Exposure Net of Collateral” may not be exactly equal to “Exposure” minus “Collateral Held” due to rounding.

Total at June 30, 2003 excludes $367 million notional amount of unrated, mortgage-related derivatives with a fair value of less
than $1 million.

@

3
“

Our derivative credit loss exposure, net of collateral held, was $297 million at June 30, 2003, compared
with $197 million at December 31, 2002. We expect the credit exposure on derivative contracts to
fluctuate as interest rates change. Our derivative credit loss exposure, net of collateral held, at June 30,
2003 represented approximately 2 weeks of annualized pre-tax core business earnings.

At June 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002, 100 percent of our exposure on derivatives, before consideration
of collateral held, was with counterparties rated A or better by S&P and Moody’s. Five counterparties with
credit ratings of A or better accounted for approximately 88 percent and 92 percent, respectively, of our
exposure on derivatives before consideration of collateral held at June 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002.
Seventy-four percent of our net exposure of $297 million at June 30, 2003 was with five counterparties
rated AA or better by S&P and Aa or better by Moody’s. The percentage of our exposure with each of
these five counterparties ranged from 12 to 17 percent. In comparison, six counterparties rated AA or
better by S&P and Aa or better by Moody’s accounted for 71 percent of our net exposure of $197 million
at December 31, 2002.

Fannie Mae has never experienced a loss on a derivative transaction due to credit default by a
counterparty. The credit risk on our derivative transactions is low because our counterparties are of very
high credit quality. Our counterparties consist of large banks, broker-dealers, and other financial
institutions that have a significant presence in the derivatives market, most of whom are based in the
United States. We manage derivative counterparty credit risk by contracting only with experienced
counterparties that have high credit ratings. We initiate derivative contracts only with counterparties rated
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A or better. As an additional precaution, we have a conservative collateral management policy with
provisions for requiring collateral on our derivative contracts in gain positions. Additional information on
derivative instruments is presented in the Notes to Financial Statements.

Credit Risk Management

Credit risk is the risk of loss to future earnings or future cash flows that may result from the failure of a
borrower or institution to fulfill its contractual obligation to make payments to Fannie Mae or an
institution’s failure to perform a service for us.

Mortgage Credit Risk

As shown in Table 20, our overall credit performance remained relatively stable in the second quarter and
first half of 2003 compared to the second quarter and first half of 2002 despite an increase in the number
of properties acquired through foreclosure. The serious delinquency rate information in Table 20 is based
on conventional loans in our single-family mortgage credit book for which we have access to loan level
data and our total multifamily mortgage credit book of business.

Table 20: Mortgage Credit Performance

Number of
Credit-Related Properties Serious
Losses” Acquired Delinquency Rate®
Three Months Three Months
Ended June 30, Ended June 30, June 30, December 31,
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
(Dollars in millions)
Single-family .. ... ... o o $19 $16 6,569 4,688 .56% 57%
Multifamily ........ .. _ 4 1 2 — A3 .05
Total . o $23 $17
Credit loss ratio™ . .. ... ... .. .. ... .005% .004%
Charge-off ratio™ . . ... ... ... ... . .005% .006%
Number of
Credit-Related Properties Serious
Losses" Acquired Delinquency Rate'®
Six Months Six Months
Ended June 30, Ended June 30, June 30, December 31,
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
(Dollars in millions)
Single-family . ...... .. o $ 38 $ 37 12,487 9,025 .56% .57%
Multifamily ... 5 2 3 — 13 .05
Total . .t $ 43 $ 39
Credit loss ratio® .. ... ... .. i .004% .005%
Charge-off ratio™ . ... ... .. .. .. ... .005% .007%

(1)
2

Includes charge-offs and foreclosed property income.

Serious delinquency rate for conventional single-family includes loans 90 days or more past due and loans in the process of
foreclosure and is calculated based on number of loans. Serious delinquency rate for multifamily includes loans 60 days or more
past due and is calculated based on unpaid principal balance (“UPB”).

Represents annualized credit losses divided by average book of business.
Represents annualized charge-offs divided by average book of business.

(3)
(4

Our credit loss ratio—annualized credit losses as a percentage of Fannie Mae’s average book of business—
was .5 basis points in the second quarter of 2003 and .4 basis points in the first half of 2003, compared
with .4 basis points in the second quarter of 2002 and .5 basis points in the first half of 2002. Our book of
business includes mortgages and MBS in our mortgage portfolio and outstanding MBS held by other
investors. Our lower credit loss ratio in the first half of 2003 reflects some economic strengthening since
the recessionary lows of 2001 and 2002 combined with continued strong housing markets, the efficacy of
our loss mitigation strategies, and the targeting of our credit enhancements. While the number of single-
family properties acquired rose by 1,881 to 6,569 properties as of June 30, 2003, our single-family credit-
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related losses, which include charge-offs plus foreclosed property income, only increased $3 million and
$1 million in the second quarter and first half of 2003 from the prior year periods.

Table 21 compares the serious delinquency rates for conventional single-family loans with credit
enhancements and without credit enhancements at June 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002. The
information in Table 21 is based on conventional loans in our single-family mortgage credit book for which
we have access to loan level data.

Table 21: Conventional Single-Family Serious Delinquency Rates

June 30, 2003 December 31, 2002
Serious Serious
Book Delinquency Book Delinquency
Outstanding” Rate® Outstanding'” Rate?
Credit enhanced........ ... ... i 23% 1.42% 27% 1.29%
Non-credit enhanced . .......... ... ... . i, 71 .29 13 31
Total conventional loans ..................coiiiinniun... 100% .56% 100% 57%

() Reported based on unpaid principal balance.
) Reported based on number of loans.

The serious delinquency rate for conventional loans in our single-family mortgage credit book at June 30,
2003 decreased to .56 percent from the December 31, 2002 rate of .57 percent. The serious delinquency
rate for conventional loans in our single-family mortgage credit book without credit enhancement improved
to .29 percent at June 30, 2003, compared with .31 percent at December 31, 2002. The serious
delinquency rate for conventional loans in our single-family mortgage credit book with credit enhancement
increased to 1.42 percent from 1.29 percent at the end of 2002. These loans have a higher risk profile and
tend to be more sensitive to changes in the economy than loans without credit enhancement.

Institutional Counterparty Credit Risk

Non-derivative institutional counterparty risk primarily includes exposure created through the potential
nonperformance of our counterparties on mortgage insurance policies, other credit enhancement
arrangements with lenders and others, mortgage servicing contracts with lenders, and liquidity investments
in corporate obligations or nonmortgage asset-backed securities.

Mortgage Servicers

We have purchased mortgage-related securities secured by manufacturing housing loans that were issued
by entities other than Fannie Mae both for our portfolio and, to a limited extent, for securitization into
REMIC securities we have issued and guaranteed. At July 31, 2003, we owned or guaranteed
approximately $9.1 billion of these securities, approximately 70 percent of which are serviced by Green
Tree Investments Holding LLC, successor as servicer of the securities to Conseco Finance Corp. On
March 14, 2003, the U.S. Bankruptcy Court for the Northern District of Illinois issued a final order
approving the servicing arrangements for the securities then serviced by Conseco Finance. The order, based
upon an agreement reached between Conseco Finance, Green Tree (under its former name, CFN
Investment Holdings), Fannie Mae and other certificate holders, provided for revised servicing fees and an
enhanced servicing protocol. Green Tree completed the acquisition in June 2003.

Table 22 presents the credit ratings of the securities (or for insured securities, the credit rating of the
financial institution providing credit enhancement) purchased or guaranteed by Fannie Mae as of July 31,
2003. As of July 31, 2003, a majority of our securities were rated AA- or better by the major rating
agencies or were insured by counterparties rated AA- or better. We have reviewed these securities for
other than temporary declines in their fair value and recorded impairment where appropriate in fee and
other income. Future ratings will be influenced by the performance of the underlying manufactured
housing loan collateral. Additional downgrades may occur in the future, but management believes that any
potential additional impairment that might be recorded will not be material to Fannie Mae’s operating
results.
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Table 22: Credit Ratings of Mortgage-Related Securities Secured by Manufactured Housing Loans

Credit rating as of July 31, 2003: UPB % of Total UPB
(Dollars in millions)

Investment Grade:

AAATAQA ... $3,316 36.27%
AAT/AAL 10 AA—/AQ3 L. 2,723 29.79
AFTAL 10 A=/ A3 o 775 8.47
BBB+/Baal to BBB—/Baald .. ... ... .. 2,253 24.64
Total UPB of Investment Grade Securities .. .. ... ...ttt e 9,067 99.17
Non-Investment Grade:
BB+/Bal t0 BB—/Ba3 ... . 18 .20
BH/B1 to B—/ B3 . oo 58 .63
Total UPB of Non-Investment Grade Securities ............... ...t iiniineennennn . 76 .83
Total UPB Of SeCUTIIES . . . . oo\ttt e e e et e e e e et e e $9,143 100.00%

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Liquidity

Our primary sources of liquidity include proceeds from the issuance of debt, principal and interest received
on our mortgage portfolio, guaranty fees earned on our MBS, and principal and interest received on our
liquid investment portfolio. Primary uses of liquidity include the purchase of mortgage assets, repayment of
debt, interest payments, administrative expenses, taxes, and fulfillment of Fannie Mae’s MBS guaranty
obligations. Our mortgage asset purchases based on unpaid principal balance totaled $260 billion in the
first half of 2003. We issued $1.338 trillion in debt to fund those purchases and to replace maturing, called
or repurchased debt. Our debt securities, and the interest payable thereon, are not guaranteed by the

United States and do not constitute a debt or obligation of the United States or any agency or
instrumentality thereof other than Fannie Mae.

As part of our voluntary commitments, we have publicly pledged to maintain a portfolio of high-quality,
liquid, nonmortgage-related securities equal to at least 5 percent of total on-balance-sheet assets. Our
liquid assets totaled $69 billion at June 30, 2003, compared with $62 billion at December 31, 2002. The
ratio of our liquid assets to total assets was 7.5 percent at June 30, 2003 and 6.9 percent at December 31,
2002.

Capital Resources

Fannie Mae is subject to capital adequacy standards established by the Federal Housing Enterprises
Financial Safety and Soundness Act of 1992 (“1992 Act”) and continuous examination by the Office of
Federal Housing Enterprise Oversight (“OFHEQO”), which was established by the 1992 Act. The capital
adequacy standards require that our core capital (defined by OFHEO as the stated value of outstanding
common stock, the stated value of outstanding noncumulative perpetual preferred stock, paid-in capital,
and retained earnings, less treasury stock) equal or exceed a minimum capital standard and a critical
capital standard. Core capital excludes accumulated other comprehensive income/loss (“AOCI’) because
AOCIT incorporates gains (losses) on derivatives and certain securities, but not the gains (losses) on the
remaining mortgages and securities or liabilities used to fund the purchase of these items. Table 23
compares Fannie Mae’s core capital and total capital at June 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002 to our
capital requirements. Total capital is defined by OFHEO as core capital plus the general allowance for
losses. Core capital grew to $30.7 billion at June 30, 2003 from $28.1 billion at December 31, 2002, while
total capital increased by $2.6 billion to $31.5 billion at June 30, 2003.
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Table 23: Capital Requirements”

June 30, March 31, December 31,

2003 2003 2002
(Dollars in millions)
Core capital @ $30,675  $29,517 $28,079
Required minimum capital @@ 29,147 28,226 27,203
Excess of core capital over minimum capital .............. ... ... ... ... L. $ 1,527 $ 1,291 $ 877
Total capital'® ... ... .. $31,469  $30,309 $28,871
Required risk-based capital'® ... ... .. . Not available 16,555 17,434
Excess of total capital over required risk-based capital® .. ... ... .. .. ... .. ... .. ... Not available $13,753 $11,437
Required critical capital'™ ... .. ... $14,912 $14,414 $13,880

Excess of core capital over required critical capital . . ................ . ... . ... 15,762 15,103 14,199
) Amounts at June 30, 2003 represent estimates, pending OFHEQ?s certification, which is generally provided no later than
3 months following the end of each quarter.

@

The sum of (a) the stated value of outstanding common stock; (b) the stated value of outstanding noncumulative perpetual
preferred stock; (c) paid-in capital; and (d) retained earnings, less treasury stock. Core capital excludes accumulated other
comprehensive income (AOCI).

@3

The sum of (a) 2.50 percent of on-balance sheet assets; (b) .45 percent of outstanding MBS; and (c) .45 percent of other
off-balance sheet obligations, which may be adjusted by the Director of OFHEO under certain circumstances (See
12 CFR 1750.4 for existing adjustments made by the Director of OFHEO).

These amounts do not reflect the effect of the December 31, 2002 balance sheet reclassification of amounts associated with the
guaranty obligation for MBS that we own from our “Allowance for loan losses” to a “Guaranty liability for MBS.”

(4

5

The sum of (a) core capital and (b) the total allowance for loan losses and guaranty liability for MBS, less (c) the specific loss
allowance. Specific loss allowances totaled $13 million and $19 million at June 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002, respectively.

Amounts at June 30, 2003 will not be available until the end of September 2003. OFHEO reports on Fannie Mae’s risk-based
capital at the end of each quarter on a lagged quarterly basis.

G
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The sum of (a) 1.25 percent of on-balance sheet assets; (b) .25 percent of outstanding MBS; and (c) .25 percent of other
off-balance sheet obligations, which may be adjusted by the Director of OFHEO under certain circumstances.

Common shares outstanding, net of shares held in treasury, totaled approximately 976 million and

989 million at June 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002, respectively. During the first half of 2003, Fannie
Mae issued approximately 1.4 million common shares from treasury for employee and other stock
compensation plans. We repurchased 13.9 million common shares during the first half of 2003 at a
weighted average cost of $65.04 per share.

We raised additional equity from the issuance of 8 million shares or $400 million of variable rate Non-
Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series K on March 18, 2003, from the issuance of 6.9 million shares or
$345 million of fixed rate Non-Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series L on April 29, 2003, and from the
issuance of 9.2 million shares or $460 million of fixed rate Non-Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series M on
June 10, 2003. Preferred stock accounted for 12.7 percent of our core capital at June 30, 2003, versus

9.5 percent at December 31, 2002.

Subordinated debt totaled $11.5 billion at June 30, 2003, or 1.2 percent of on-balance sheet assets. Total
capital and outstanding subordinated debt represented 3.9 percent of on-balance sheet assets at June 30,
2003 and 3.7 percent of on-balance sheet assets at December 31, 2002. Subordinated debt serves as a
supplement to our equity capital, although it is not a component of core capital. By the end of 2003, we
intend to issue sufficient subordinated debt to bring the sum of total capital and outstanding subordinated
debt to at least 4 percent of on-balance sheet assets, after providing adequate capital to support off-balance
sheet MBS.

Our credit quality is continuously monitored by rating agencies. At the end of June 2003 and year-end
2002, our senior unsecured debt had a rating of AAA by S&P, Aaa by Moody’s, and AAA by Fitch, Inc,
unchanged from the ratings at December 31, 2002. Our short-term debt was rated A-1+, Prime-1 or P-1,
and F1+ by S&P, Moody’s, and Fitch, respectively, at June 30, 2003, also unchanged from the ratings at
December 31, 2002.
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PENDING ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Commitments to Purchase or Sell Mortgages and Mortgage-Related Securities

In April 2003, the FASB issued FASB Statement No. 149, Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities (“FAS 149”). FAS 149 requires Fannie Mae to account for many
commitments to purchase or sell mortgage-related securities existing or entered into after June 30, 2003
and mortgages entered into after June 30, 2003 as derivatives, which will increase our notional balance of
derivatives outstanding. Under FAS 149, some of these derivatives will qualify as cash flow hedges of
forecasted mortgage purchases or sales. Therefore, we will record changes in the fair values of these
derivatives as assets or liabilities with a corresponding increase or decrease in AOCI in the future. Some of
these derivatives will not qualify for hedge accounting, particularly those where we have a matched
purchase and sale commitment. We will mark those commitments to market through earnings and their
values should offset to a significant extent. We expect to record a cumulative after-tax transition gain as a
result of the adoption of FAS 149 on July 1, 2003.

Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities

FASB Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities (“FIN 46”), was issued in
January 2003. FIN 46 provides guidance on when a company should include the assets, liabilities, and
activities of a variable interest entity (“VIE”) in its financial statements and when it should disclose
information about its relationship with a VIE. A VIE is a legal structure used to conduct activities or hold
assets, which must be consolidated by a company if it is the primary beneficiary because it absorbs the
majority of the entity’s expected losses, the majority of the expected returns, or both. Qualified special
purpose entities (“QSPEs”), which we use to issue MBS, are exempt from FIN 46 unless a company has
the unilateral ability to liquidate or change the QSPE. The provisions of FIN 46 were effective

February 1, 2003 for all arrangements entered into after January 31, 2003. FIN 46 is effective in the third
quarter of 2003 for those arrangements entered into prior to January 31, 2003.

We are currently reviewing whether we have relationships with VIEs and, if so, whether we should
consolidate them and disclose information about them as the primary beneficiary or disclose information
about them as an interest holder. We may have to consolidate some of our equity investments in
partnerships based on recent interpretations from accounting professionals. We currently record the amount
of our investment in these partnerships as an asset on our balance sheet, recognize our share of partnership
income or losses in our income statement, and disclose how we account for material types of these
investments in our 2002 financial statements. However, we do not yet know the extent of the impact of
consolidating the assets and liabilities of these partnerships on our balance sheet because of the
complexities of applying FIN 46, the evolving interpretations from accounting professionals, and the
nuances of each individual partnership.

Effect on the Calculation of Earnings per Share for the Redemption or Induced Conversion of Preferred Stock

In July 2003, the SEC issued a clarification of Emerging Issues Task Force Topic D-42, “The Effect on the
Calculation of Earnings per Share for the Redemption or Induced Conversion of Preferred Stock (Topic
D-42).” The SEC stated that the carrying amount of preferred stock should be reduced by the related
issuance costs, regardless of where in the stockholders’ equity section those costs were initially classified at
the time of issuance. As a result, the excess of the fair value of the consideration transferred to preferred
stockholders over the carrying amount of the preferred stock must be subtracted from net earnings to
determine net earnings available to common stockholders in the calculation of earnings per share. The
clarification of Topic D-42 will be effective for us beginning with the third quarter of 2003, and we will
restate the financial statements for the corresponding prior periods because we have not previously considered
issuance costs in determining the carrying amount of the preferred stock we redeemed in 2003 and 2002.
Our reported basic and diluted earnings per share for the three and six months ended June 30, 2003, and the
three months ended June 30, 2002, will not change. Our reported basic and diluted earnings per share for
the six months ended June 30, 2002 will be reduced by $.01 per share.
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Item 1. Financial Statements

Independent Accountant’s Review Report

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Fannie Mae:

We have reviewed the accompanying balance sheet of Fannie Mae as of June 30, 2003 and related
statements of income, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the three-month and six-month
periods ended June 30, 2003 and 2002. These condensed financial statements are the responsibility of
Fannie Mae’s management.

We conducted our review in accordance with standards established by the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. A review of interim financial information consists principally of applying analytical
procedures to financial data and making inquiries of persons responsible for financial and accounting
matters. It is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion
regarding the financial statements taken as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Based on our review. We are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the
condensed financial statements referred to above for them to be in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have previously audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, the balance sheet of Fannie Mae as of December 31, 2002 (presented herein) and the related
statements of income, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the year then ended (not
presented herein). In our report dated January 14, 2003, we expressed an unqualified opinion on those
financial statements.

/s/ KPMG LLP

KPMG LLP

Washington, D.C.
July 10, 2003
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FANNIE MAE
Statements of Income
(Dollars and shares in millions, except per share amounts)

Three Months
Ended June 30,

Six Months
Ended June 30,

2003 2002 2003 2002
(Unaudited)
Interest income:
Mortgage portfolio . .. ... u et $12,256  $12,326  $24,846  $24,497
Nonmortgage investments and cash equivalents ................. .. ... .. ..... 336 420 642 826
Total interest INCOME . .. ...ttt ettt e ettt 12,592 12,746 25,488 25,323
Interest expense:
Short-term debt . . ... . 697 646 1,447 1,430
Long-term debt ... ... oo 8,394 9,568 17,172 18,930
Total INterest EXPENSE . . . ..ot v ettt ettt e et e e e 9,091 10,214 18,619 20,360
Net interest INCOME . . . . ..ottt e e et e e et 3,501 2,532 6,869 4,963
Other income:
Guaranty fee income (includes imputed interest of $18 million and $21 million for the
three and six months ended June 30, 2003—see Note 2) .................ooo... 632 423 1,179 831
Fee and other income, Net .. ... ... .. it 232 42 345 45
Total other iNCOME . .. ... . i e 864 465 1,524 876
Other expenses (income):
Provision for 10SSes . ... ...t 26 33 49 61
Foreclosed property inCome . ... .........oiiouniiet i (3) 9) (6) (15)
AdmInIStrative EXPEISES . . ... v v vttt ettt ettt 354 301 698 591
Purchased options EXPEense . ... ...ttt e 1,883 498 2,508 1,286
Debt extinguishments, net ... ... ... i 740 225 1,132 396
Total other expenses (INCOME) .. ... .ottt t ettt e 3,000 1,048 4,381 2,319
Income before federal income taxes . ..........o.iinii et 1,365 1,949 4,012 3,520
Provision for federal inCome taxes . .. ...ttt (263) (485) (970) (848)
NEt INCOMIE. . o oottt ettt et e e e e e e e e e e e e $ 1,102 $ 1464 $ 3,042 $ 2,672
Preferred stock dividends ... ... ... .. .. (34) (24) (64) (57)
Net income available to common stockholders ............. ... ... ... ............. $ 1,068 $ 1,440 $ 2978 $ 2,615
Basic earnings per common share .. .............. i $ 109 $ 145 § 303 §$ 263
Diluted earnings per COMMON ShATE ... ...\t vutt ettt ettt it aee s $ 1.09 § 144 $ 302 $ 261
Cash dividends per common share ................ i $ 39 $ 33 § I8 § .66
Weighted-average common shares outstanding:
BaSiC oot 979 995 983 996
Diluted . ..o 982 1,000 987 1,001

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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FANNIE MAE

Balance Sheets
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

Assets
Mortgage portfolio:
Mortgage-related securities:
Held-to-maturity. . .« oot e
Available-for-sale . ... ... ...

Allowance for 10an LOSSES. . . ... v vttt ettt e e e
Unamortized premiums, discounts, and deferred price adjustments, net ...............
Loans held-for-sale. . ... ... ... i

Mortgage portfolio, Net .. ... ... oo
Nonmortgage investments:

Held-to-maturity. . . . oot

Available-for-sale . ... ... ...
Cash and cash equivalents. .. ... it
Accrued interest receivable . ... ...
Acquired property and foreclosure claims, net . ............ ... i
Derivatives in gain poSItions ... ... .. ...ttt
Ot o

TOtal ASSEES . . o vttt e e e

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Liabilities:
Debentures, notes and bonds, net:
Senior debt:
Due Within 0ne Year. . ... ...t e
Due after One Year ... ..ottt
Subordinated debt:
Due after one year . ... ...t

Accrued interest payable . ... ...
Derivatives in 10SS POSItIONS . . . .. vttt ettt e e e e e
Guaranty liability for MBS . ... .
OtheT o

Total Habilities . .. ...ttt e e

Stockholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock, $50 stated value, 100 million shares authorized—77.7 million shares issued and
outstanding at June 30, 2003 and 53.6 million shares issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2002 . ..o
Common stock, $.525 stated value, $.78 of dividends per share paid in the first half of 2003
and $1.32 of dividends per share paid in 2002; no maximum authorization—1,129 million
ShAres ISSUCA . . .« oot
Additional paid-in capital . ... ... ...
Retained arnings . . .. ..ottt
Accumulated other comprehensive 10SS . ... .....oo it

Less: Treasury stock, at cost, 153 million shares at June 30, 2003 and 140 million shares at
December 31, 2002 . .. ..o

Total stockholders’ equity . ... ... ...ttt e
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity .. ... ...ttt i

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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June 30, December 31,
2003 2002
(Unaudited)
$458,333 $437,932
149,575 173,706
607,908 611,638
211,136 185,652
(83) (79)
1,305 337
10 145
820,276 797,693
24,609 23,050
42,315 36,794
2,165 1,710
5,424 4915
1,242 1,033
5,934 3,666
21,330 18,654
$923,795 $887,515
$422.274 $382,412
450,288 458,600
11,519 9,970
884,081 850,982
8,620 8,379
5,432 5,697
725 729
7,573 5,440
906,431 871,227
3,883 2,678
593 593
1,842 1,839
31,595 29,385
(13,311) (11,792)
24,602 22,703
7,238 6,415
17,364 16,288
$923,795 $887,515




FANNIE MAE
Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity
(Dollars and shares in millions)

Accumulated
Other
Net Additional Comprehensive Total
Common Shares Preferred Common Paid-In  Retained Income Treasury Stockholders’
Outstanding Stock Stock Capital  Earnings (Loss) Stock Equity
(Unaudited)
Balance, December 31, 2002 989 $2,678 $593 $1,839 $29,385 $(11,792) $(6,415) $16,288
Comprehensive income:
Net income................. — — — — 3,042 — — 3,042
Other comprehensive income,
net of tax effect:
Net cash flow hedging losses — — — — — (702) — (702)
Unrealized losses on
available-for-sale securities — — — — — (817) — (817)
Total comprehensive income . . 1,523
Dividends .................... — — — — (832) — — (832)
Shares repurchased ............ (14) — — — — — (906) (906)
Preferred stock issued .......... — 1,205 — (11) — — — 1,194
Treasury stock issued for stock
options and benefit plans. .. ... 1 — — 14 — — 83 97
Balance, June 30, 2003 976 $3,883 $593 $1,842 $31,595 $(13,311) $(7,238) $17,364
Balance, December 31, 2001 997 $2,303 $593 $1,651 $26,175 $ (7,065) $(5,539) $18,118
Comprehensive income:
Net income................. — — — 2,672 — — 2,672
Other comprehensive income,
net of tax effect:
Net cash flow hedging losses — — — — — (2,154) — (2,154)
Unrealized gains on
available-for-sale securities — — — — — 567 — 567
Total comprehensive income . . 1,085
Dividends .................... — — — — (714) — — (714)
Shares repurchased ............ (11) — — — — — (841) (841)
Preferred stock redeemed . ... ... — (375) — — — — — (375)
Treasury stock issued for stock
options and benefit plans. .. ... 3 — — 58 — — 99 157
Treasury stock issued for special
contribution ................ 4 — — 136 — — 164 300
Balance, June 30, 2002 993 $1,928 $593 $1,845 $28,133 $ (8,652) $(6,117) $17,730

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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FANNIE MAE
Statements of Cash Flows
(Dollars in millions)

Six Months Ended

June 30,
2003 2002
(Unaudited)
Cash flows from operating activities:
NEtINCOME . .« . ottt e e e e e e $ 3042 $ 2,672
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Amortization of discount/premium and deferred price adjustments ................ ... .......... 2,495 3,161
Provision for L0SSES . .. ...ttt 49 61
Loss on debt extinguishments ... ....... ... 1,132 396
Purchased Options €XPEMSE . . . ..ottt tt ettt e e ettt e e e e e e e et 2,508 1,286
Deferred INCOME TAXES . . ..ttt et ettt e et et e e et e e e e e e e (1,041) (557)
Other INCTEASES, MEL. . . o\ttt et et e e e e e e e e e e e 512 90
Net cash provided by operating activities . . ... ...ttt e e 8,697 7,109
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities:
Mortgage portfolio pUrChases . .. ... .. ...t e (262,667) (148,999)
Proceeds from sales from mortgage portfolio ... ... ... ... 6,923 6,783
Mortgage portfolio principal repayments. . . ... ..ottt 229,852 106,342
Net proceeds from disposition of foreclosed properties .. ...........cc..uiiiiiiiineiinneen. 1,474 1,061
Purchases of held-to-maturity nonmortgage Mvestments ... .............uuueeeeuunneeeennnnn.n (1,470,026) (656,678)
Maturities of held-to-maturity nonmortgage investments ... .............uuiiiiiinnneennnnn. . 1,468,471 668,900
Purchases of available-for-sale nonmortgage investments ... ...........c.uuiieiiiinneennnnn. . (41,343) (36,876)
Maturities of available-for-sale nonmortgage investments ...................oiiiiiiaeiiii. . 34,437 33,555
Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale nonmortgage investments .................... .. ....... 1,425 1,707
Net cash used in investing ACHVItIES . .. . ..o\ttt ettt et e e (31,454) (24,205)
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt ....... ... .. 154,759 111,909
Payments to redeem long-term debt .. ... ... ... (162,303) (76,197)
Proceeds from issuance of short-term debt. . ... ... .. .. .. . . . . .. 1,180,619 798,359
Payments to redeem short-term debt . ......... ... . e (1,145,879) (813,972)
Net payments to purchase or settle hedge instruments............. . ... i, (3,470) (1,829)
Net payments from stock activities ... ... ... ..o (514) (1,819)
Net cash provided by financing activities . ... ... i 23,212 16,451
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ........... ... .o i, 455 (645)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period . ........ ... .. . i 1,710 1,518
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period .. ........ ... i $ 2,165 $ 873
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the period for:
IR 1 $ 18,386  $ 20,174
INCOME tAXES . ..ot 2,015 1,542

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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FANNIE MAE
Notes to Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited condensed financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (“GAAP”) for interim financial
information. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by GAAP for
complete financial statements. In the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting only of normal
recurring accruals) considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included. The preparation of
financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. Results for the three-month and six-month periods ended June 30, 2003 may
not necessarily be indicative of the results for the year ending December 31, 2003. The unaudited financial
statements should be read in conjunction with Fannie Mae’s audited financial statements and related notes
included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities Exchange Commission on

March 31, 2003. We have reclassified certain amounts in 2002 to conform to the current presentation.

2. New Accounting Standards

Stock-Based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2003, Fannie Mae adopted the expense recognition provisions of the fair value method
of accounting for employee stock compensation pursuant to Financial Accounting Standard No. 123,
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (“FAS 123”). Prior to this date, we used the intrinsic value
method under Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees
(“APB 25”) and disclosed the pro forma effect of the fair value method. Under the fair value expense
recognition provisions of FAS 123, compensation expense is recognized over the vesting period based on
the fair value of stock based compensation as of the date of grant. We elected to apply the prospective
method of adoption described in the transition provisions of Financial Accounting Standard No. 148,
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure (“FAS 148”). In accordance with
these provisions, we will determine the fair value of all new stock-based compensation awarded on
January 1, 2003 and thereafter at the grant date and recognize this amount as expense over the vesting
period. We will continue to account for stock-based compensation awarded prior to January 1, 2003 under
APB No. 25. The effect on net income and diluted earnings per share in the second quarter and first

half of 2003 from the prospective adoption of the fair value method was not material to our financial
results. Had compensation cost for all options granted been determined based on the fair value at grant
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date consistent with the FAS 123 fair value method, our net income and earnings per share would have
been as follows for the second quarter and first half of 2003 and 2002.
Three Months Six Months
Ended June 30, Ended June 30,
2003 2002 2003 2002

(Dollars in millions,
except per share amounts)

Net income available to common stockholders, as reported . ........... ..., $1,068 $1,440 $2,978  $2,615
Plus: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported net income, net of
related tax effects . ... . 19 8 33 17
Less: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair value method
for all awards, net of related tax effects ........... ... .. i (30) (27) (58) (54)
Pro forma net income available to common stockholders............ ... ... ... .......... $1,057 $1,421  $2,953  $2,578
Basic—as reported . ... ... ... $1.09 $145 $303 $263
Basic — pro forma. . .. ... 1.08 1.43 3.00 2.59
Diluted — as reported . . ... ..ot 1.09 1.44 3.02 2.61
Diluted — pro forma . . .. ... 1.08 1.42 2.99 2.58

The following table summarizes information about our nonqualified stock options outstanding at June 30,
2003.

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Number Weighted-Average Number
of Remaining Weighted-Average of Weighted-Average
Range of Exercise Prices Options" Contractual Life Exercise Price Options" Exercise Price

$18.00-$35.00 ...l 3,780 1.4 yrs $23.16 3,780 $23.16
3500 5200 ...l 3,795 4.1 46.25 3,642 45.98
52.001- 7000 ...l 10,109 7.3 65.61 3,343 66.01
70.01 - 87.00 ...... ... ..ol 9,814 7.6 77.21 4,582 75.62
Total ... 27,498 6.2 yrs $61.24 15,347 $53.57

) Options in thousands.

Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees

In November 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Interpretation No. 45,
Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of
Indebtedness of Others (“FIN 45”). FIN 45 requires that upon issuance of a guarantee, the guarantor
must disclose and recognize a liability for the fair value of the obligation it assumes under that guarantee.
The initial recognition and measurement requirement of FIN 45 is effective for guarantees issued or
modified after December 31, 2002. FIN 45 applies primarily to MBS issued and guaranteed by

Fannie Mae, acting as trustee, to investors other than Fannie Mae on or after January 1, 2003. We use the
term “MBS” (mortgage-backed securities) to refer to mortgage-related securities we issue and on which
Fannie Mae guarantees payment of interest and principal.

Under FIN 45, we are required to recognize the fair value of our guaranty obligations as a liability. We
record a corresponding amount on our balance sheet as an asset because we are compensated for assuming
the guaranty obligation. We subsequently allocate the cash received related to the guaranty fee receivable
between a reduction of the receivable and interest income using an imputed interest rate calculated based
on the present value of the estimated future cash flows of the guaranty fee receivable. We include the
imputed interest income recognized on the guaranty fee receivable in our income statement as a
component of “Guaranty fee income.” As we reduce the guaranty fee receivable, we will amortize the
guaranty fee obligation by a corresponding amount and recognize the reduction of the guaranty fee
obligation in our income statement as “Guaranty fee income.” Hence, the guaranty fee income reported in
our income statement subsequent to the adoption of FIN 45 will equal the cash received on our guaranty
obligation and be comparable to guaranty fee income reported prior to our adoption of FIN 45.
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During the first half of 2003 we recognized a guaranty fee obligation of $1.829 billion in accordance with
FIN 45 and a corresponding guaranty fee receivable of $1.829 billion. The guaranty fee obligation is
included in our June 30, 2003 balance sheet under “Other liabilities” and the guaranty fee receivable is
included in our balance sheet under “Other assets.” During the second quarter and first half of 2003, we
recognized $18 million and $21 million, respectively, of imputed interest income on the guaranty fee
receivable that is a component of guaranty fee income and amortized $35 million and $39 million,
respectively, of the related guaranty fee obligation into guaranty fee income.

Commitments to Purchase or Sell Mortgages and Mortgage-Related Securities

In April 2003, the FASB issued FASB Statement No. 149, Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities (“FAS 149”). FAS 149 requires Fannie Mae to account for many
commitments to purchase or sell mortgage-related securities existing or entered into after June 30, 2003
and mortgages entered into after June 30, 2003 as derivatives, which will increase our notional balance of
derivatives outstanding. Under FAS 149, some of these derivatives will qualify as cash flow hedges of
forecasted mortgage purchases or sales. Therefore, we will record changes in the fair values of these
derivatives as assets or liabilities with a corresponding increase or decrease in AOCI in the future. Some of
these derivatives will not qualify for hedge accounting, particularly those where we have a matched
purchase and sale commitment. We will mark those commitments to market through earnings and their
values should offset to a significant extent. We expect to record a cumulative after-tax transition gain as a
result of the adoption of FAS 149 on July 1, 2003.

Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities

FASB Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities (“FIN 46”), was issued in
January 2003. FIN 46 provides guidance on when a company should include the assets, liabilities, and
activities of a variable interest entity (“VIE”) in its financial statements and when it should disclose
information about its relationship with a VIE. The provisions of FIN 46 were effective February 1, 2003
for all arrangements entered into after January 31, 2003. FIN 46 is effective in the third quarter of 2003
for those arrangements entered into prior to January 31, 2003.

We are currently reviewing whether we have relationships with VIEs and, if so, whether we should
consolidate them and disclose information about them as the primary beneficiary or disclose information
about them as an interest holder. We may have to consolidate some of our equity investments in
partnerships based on recent interpretations from accounting professionals. We currently record the amount
of our investment in these partnerships as an asset on our balance sheet, and we currently recognize our
share of partnership income or losses in our income statement. However, we do not yet know the extent of
the impact of consolidating the assets and liabilities of these partnerships on our balance sheet because of
the complexities of applying FIN 46, the evolving interpretations from accounting professionals, and the
nuances of each individual partnership. Our maximum exposure to loss as a result of our investments in
these entities is our investment balance of $4 billion and the risk of recapture of tax credits previously
recognized. The risk of tax credit recapture is low. Our exposure to loss on these partnerships is mitigated
by the strength of our investment sponsors and third party asset managers as well as the condition and
financial performance of the underlying properties. Our exposure to loss on guaranteed partnerships is
mitigated by the factors above and because our economic return is guaranteed by an investment grade
counterparty. The accounting policies for our investments in low income housing tax credit partnerships as
a limited partner, our primary partnership investments, are detailed in our 2002 financial statements.

Effect on the Calculation of Earnings per Share for the Redemption or Induced Conversion of Preferred
Stock

In July 2003, the SEC issued a clarification of Emerging Issues Task Force Topic D-42, “The Effect on
the Calculation of Earnings per Share for the Redemption or Induced Conversion of Preferred Stock
(Topic D-42).” The SEC stated that the carrying amount of preferred stock should be reduced by the

40



related issuance costs, regardless of where in the stockholders’ equity section those costs were initially
classified at the time of issuance. As a result, the excess of the fair value of the consideration transferred
to preferred stockholders over the carrying amount of the preferred stock must be subtracted from net
earnings to determine net earnings available to common stockholders in the calculation of earnings per
share. The clarification of Topic D-42 will be effective for us beginning with the third quarter of 2003, and
we will restate the financial statements for the corresponding prior periods because we have not previously
considered issuance costs in determining the carrying amount of the preferred stock we redeemed in 2003
and 2002. Our reported basic and diluted earnings per share for the three and six months ended June 30,
2003, and the three months ended June 30, 2002, will not change. Our reported basic and diluted earnings
per share for the six months ended June 30, 2002 will be reduced by $.01 per share.

3. Mortgage Portfolio

Mortgage-Related Securities

We classify mortgage loans on our balance sheet as either held-for-investment or held-for-sale. Our
mortgage portfolio also includes MBS and other mortgage-related securities that we classify as either
held-to-maturity or available-for-sale. The following table shows gross unrealized gains and losses on our
MBS and mortgage-related securities at June 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002.

June 30, 2003

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized  Unrealized Fair
CostV Gains Losses Value
(Dollars in millions)
Held-to-maturity portfolio. .. ... $458,333 $18,273 $(405) $476,201
Available-for-sale portfolio ........ ... ... 144,575 5,670 (670) 149,575

December 31, 2002

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized  Unrealized Fair
CostV Gains Losses Value
(Dollars in millions)
Held-to-maturity portfolio. .............. .. ... .. ... $437,932 $18,325 $(133) $456,124
Available-for-sale portfolio ........ ... . i 167,202 6,885 (381) 173,706

" Amortized cost includes unamortized premiums, discounts, and other deferred price adjustments.

We recorded the following gross realized gains and losses from the sale of mortgage-related securities
classified as available-for-sale during the three months and six months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002.

For the
Three Months Ended
June 30,
2003 2002
(Dollars in millions)
Gross realized gains ... ........... $100 $37
Gross realized 10SSES. . ... oottt 1 5

For the Six Months
Ended June 30,

2003 2002
(Dollars in millions)
Gross realized gaings .. ..........u $112 $41
Gross realized 10SSES. . ..o v it 2 20

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2003, we transferred $7 billion of mortgage-related securities
classified as available-for-sale to held-to-maturity, which is permitted by FAS 115. There were no transfers
of mortgage-related securities classified as available-for-sale to held-to-maturity in the corresponding prior

year periods.
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Retained Interests

In some cases, we create real estate mortgage investment conduits (“REMICs”) using assets from our
mortgage portfolio and retain an interest in the REMICs. In these instances, we measure our retained
interests by allocating the carrying amount of the assets we retained based on their fair value at the
transfer date relative to the assets we sold. We are a passive investor with regard to the transferred assets,
as our continuing involvement is limited to guaranteeing some of the assets underlying these REMICs.

The following table shows the book value and fair value of our retained interests in REMICs, the
weighted-average life, the key assumptions used in measuring the fair value of retained interests at the
time of securitization and sensitivities of the key assumptions at June 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002.

June 30, December 31,
2003 2002
Net book value of retained interests (dollars in billions) .......... ... ... ... ... ... ..... $ 29.3 $ 419
Fair value of retained interests (dollars in billions) . .......... ... ... ... 29.6 42.7
Weighted-average life .. ... ... oo 3.2 years 3.7 years

Key assumptions at date of securitization:
Weighted-average life .. ... ... oo 6.0 6.0
Average lifetime constant prepayment rate (“CPR”) prepayment speed assumption . ....... 15.8 % 16.1
Average discount rate asSUMPION . ... ...ttt ettt et e 5.2 5.2

years
%

Estimated effect on fair value of adverse change in assumptions (dollars in millions):
Prepayment speed assumptions:

5 percent change in 12 month CPR ............... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ......... $ (59) $  (68)

10 percent change in 12 month CPR ... ... ... .. . (117) (131)

15 percent change in 12 month CPR . ... ... ... .. . . (171) (203)
Average 12 month CPR prepayment speed assumption . ...............cooiieeiinnnn... 531 % 49.2 %
Discount rate assumptions (dollars in millions):

Spercent Change . ....... ... o $ (220) $ (358)

10 percent Change . ... ... ...ttt ettt e e e e e (434) (711)

IS percent Change . ... ...t (642) (1,049)
Average discount rate asSUMPLON . .. ... vuttttn ettt 2.8 % 33 %

4. Allowance for Loan Losses and Guaranty Liability for MBS

We maintain a separate allowance for loan losses for our mortgage portfolio as well as a guaranty liability
for our guaranty of MBS. The following table summarizes changes during the first and second quarter of
2003.

Combined Allowance
Allowance  Guaranty for Loan Losses and
for Loan Liability Guaranty Liability

Losses for MBS for MBS
(Dollars in millions)
Balance at December 31, 2002 . ... ...ttt $79 $729 $808
PrOVISION . ..o 2 21 23
Charge-offs . ... o (2 (21) (23)
Balance at March 31, 2003 . ... ... ... $79 $729 $808
PrOVISION . . o 6 20 26
Charge-offs . ...t (2 (24) (26)
Balance at June 30, 2003 . . ... ... $83 $725 $808

The following table summarizes the unpaid principal balance (“UPB”) of impaired loans and specific loss
allowance on these loans at June 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002. We recognized approximately
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$.2 million in interest income during both the first half of 2003 and the first half of 2002 on loans that
were impaired at June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

June 30, December 31,

2003 2002

(Dollars in millions)
UPB of impaired loans ! ... $307 $314
UPB of impaired loans with specific loss allowance .......... ... ... i 107 137
Specific loss allowance on impaired and restructured loans .......... ... .. ... .. . i 13 17
UPB of impaired loans without syeciﬁc Toss alloWanCe . .. ..ottt 200 177
Average UPB of impaired loans'? . ... ... .. ... .. . 319 285

M A loan is impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable we will be unable to collect all amounts due
according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement.

@) Averages have been calculated on a monthly average basis.

5. Nonmortgage Investments

We classify and account for nonmortgage investments as either held-to-maturity or available-for-sale
according to FAS 115. The following table shows the amortized cost, fair value, yield, and remaining
maturities of our held-to-maturity and available-for sale investments.

June 30, 2003 December 31, 2002
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
CostV Value Yield Cost Value Yield

(Dollars in millions)
Available-for-sale:

Due within one year. . ..............uuuuiiinnnnnn.. $ 7,742 $ 7,758 1.72% $ 8,844 $ 8,851 2.31%
Due after one year through five years ..................... 6,938 6,981 1.88 5,620 5,632 242
14,680 14,739 1.80 14,464 14,483 235
Asset backed securities® ..., 27,533 27,576 1.76 22,281 22311 222
Total available-for-sale ............................... 42213 42,315 36,745 36,794
Held-to-maturity:
Due withinone year. . .......... ... i, 24,609 24,609 1.52 23,016 23,017 1.76
Due after one year through five years ..................... — - = 34 34 621
Total held-to-maturity ........... ... ... .o i ... 24,609 24,609 1.52 23,050 23,051 1.76
Total ... $66,822 $66,924 1.68% $59,795 $59,845  2.08%

(1)
)

Amortized cost includes unamortized premiums, discounts, and other deferred price adjustments.

Contractual maturity of asset-backed securities is not a reliable indicator of expected life because borrowers generally have the
right to repay their obligation at any time.

The unrealized gains and losses in our available-for-sale and held-to-maturity nonmortgage investments at
June 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002 are as follows:

Available-for-Sale
June 30, 2003

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

(Dollars in millions)
Available-for-sale:

Asset-backed securities ........... . $27,533 $ 83 $ (40) $27,576
Floating rate notes'" .. ... .. .. ... ... .. 12,649 17 (4) 12,662
Corporate bonds . . .. ...t 1,134 44 — 1,178
Taxable aucCtion NOTES . . . ..ottt ettt et et 784 — — 784
Auction rate preferred stock .. ... ... ... 63 2 — 65
Other . oo 50 — — 50

TOMAl vttt $42,213 $146 $ (44)  $42,315
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December 31, 2002

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
(Dollars in millions)
Available-for-sale:
Asset-backed SECUTIIES .. ... ..t $22,281 $ 98 $ (68) $22,311
Floating rate notes')) ... ... ... 11,754 10 (29) 11,735
Corporate bonds . . ... ...t 1,149 42 — 1,191
Taxable auction NOtES ... ...ttt 949 — — 949
Commercial PAPET . . ...t 100 — — 100
Auction rate preferred stock . ... .. 112 — (4) 108
Other . .o 400 = = 400
Total .o $36,745 $150 $(101) $36,794
" As of June 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002, 100 percent of floating rate notes repriced at intervals of 90 days or less.
Held-to-Maturity
June 30, 2003
Gross Gross
Amortized  Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
(Dollars in millions)
Held-to-maturity:
Repurchase agreements. ... ....vuu ettt $18,294 $— $— $18,294
Federal funds . ....... ... . . . 5,100 — — 5,100
Auction rate preferred stock .. ....... ... 774 — — 774
OReT . . o 441 = = 441
Total .ot $24,609 $— $— $24,609
December 31, 2002
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
(Dollars in millions)
Held-to-maturity:
Repurchase agreements. ... ... $20,732 $— $— $20,732
Federal funds . ...... ... o i 150 — — 150
Auction rate preferred stock . ....... . L 402 — — 402
Eurodollar time deposits ... ... ...ttt 1,398 — 1,398
Commercial PAPET . . ...ttt 100 — — 100
OtheT . oo 268 1 = 269
Total .ottt $23,050 $ 1 $— $23,051

We recorded the following gross realized gains and losses from the sale of nonmortgage investments

classified as available-for-sale during the three months and six months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002.

Gross realized gains
Gross realized losses

Gross realized gains
Gross realized losses

For the Three Months
Ended June 30,

2003 2002
(Dollars in millions)
.......................................... $— $—

For the Six Months
Ended June 30,

2003 2002
.......................................... $ 3 $ 1
.......................................... — 2
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6. Earnings per Common Share

The following table shows the computation of basic and diluted earnings per common share:

Three Months Ended June 30,

2003 2002

Basic Diluted Basic

Diluted

(Dollars in millions,
except per share amounts)

Net INCOME . . ..ottt et e e e e $1,102 $1,102 $1,464  $1,464
Preferred stock dividends .. ....... ... (34) (34) (24) (24)
Net income available to common stockholders . ............ ... ..o ui .. $1,068  $1,068  $1,440  $1,440
Weighted average common shares outstanding ............... ..ot 979 979 995 995
Dilutive potential common shares'™ .. ... . . . — 3 — 5
Average number of common shares outstanding used to calculate earnings per

COMMON SHATE . . ..ottt e e e 979 982 995 1,000
Net earnings per COMMON SHATE .. ... ..ottt $1.0 $1.09 $145 §$ 1.44

Six Months Ended June 30,

2003 2002
Basic  Diluted Basic  Diluted
NEt INCOME . . ..ottt e e e e e $3,042 $3,042 $2,672 $2,672
Preferred stock dividends . ...... ... . (64) (64) (57) (57)
Net income available to common stockholders . ........ ... . .uiuiieeinnn.. $2,978 $2,978 $2,615 $2,615
Weighted average common shares outstanding .......... ... .. o i i i, 983 983 996 996
Dilutive potential common shares'" ... ... — 4 — 5
Average number of common shares outstanding used to calculate earnings per
COMMON ShATE . .. .. 983 987 996 1,001
Net earnings per common share ............... .. ... ... ... . i $303 $302 $263 §26l

) Dilutive potential common shares consist primarily of the dilutive effect from employee stock options and other stock
compensation plans.

7. Line of Business Reporting

The following tables reconcile our line of business core business earnings to our reported net income for

the three months and six months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002.

Three Months Ended June 30, 2003

Total Core  Reconciling Items

Portfolio Credit Business Related to Reported
Investment  Guaranty Earnings Purchased Options Results
(Dollars in millions)

Net interest inCOME .. ..o vvvveiteie e $3,280 $ 221 $3,501 $  — $ 3,501
Purchased options amortization expense ............... (716) — (716) 16 @ —
Core net interest iNCOME .. .....ovvtinienennenenn.. 2,564 221 2,785 716 3,501
Guaranty fee income (€Xpense) ...................... (404) 1,036 632 — 632
Fee and other income, net........................... 231 1 232 — 232
Credit-related expenses" ........................... — (23) (23) — (23)
Administrative eXpenses . . ... ........oeeeiiiiiaeaa.. (103) (251) (354) — (354)
Purchased options expense under FAS 133 ............. — — — (1,883)@ (1,883)
Debt extinguishments............. . ... . ... .. (740) — (740) — (740)
Income before federal income taxes................... 1,548 984 2,532 (1,167) 1,365
Provision for federal income taxes .................... (454) (218) (672) 409 @ (263)
Net inCOmMe .. ..o oottt $1,094 $ 766 $1,860 $ (758) $ 1,102
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Three Months Ended June 30, 2002

Total Core  Reconciling Items
Portfolio Credit Business Related to Reported
Investment  Guaranty Earnings Purchased Options Results

(Dollars in millions)

Net interest iNCOMe ... ..o vttt $2,375 $ 157 $2,532 $ — $ 2,532
Purchased options amortization expense ............... (330) — (330) 330 @ —
Core net interest income . ...............cuiniinaon.. 2,045 157 2,202 330 2,532
Guaranty fee income (€Xpense) ...................... (336) 759 423 — 423
Fee and other income, net........................... 82 (40) 42 — 42
Credit-related expenses") . .......................... — (24) (24) — (24)
Administrative eXpenses . . ... ........ueeeiiiinaaea.. 91) (210) (301) — (301)
Purchased options expense under FAS 133 ............. — — — (498)® (498)
Debt extinguishments . ..............o .. (225) — (225) — (225)
Income before federal income taxes and effect of

accounting change. ............. . ... .. 1,475 642 2,117 (168) 1,949
Provision for federal income taxes .................... (430) (114) (544) 59" # (485)

Net iNCOME .. oo vttt e $1,045 $ 528 $1,573 $(109) $ 1,464

¢
¢

3
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)

Credit-related expenses include the income statement line items “Provision for losses” and “Foreclosed property income.”
Represents the straight-line amortization of purchased options expense that we allocate to interest expense over the original
expected life of the options. We include this amount in core business earnings instead of recording changes in the time value of
purchased options because this treatment is more consistent with the accounting for the embedded options in our callable debt
and the vast majority of our mortgages.

Represents changes in the fair value of the time value of purchased options recorded in accordance with FAS 133. We exclude
this amount from our core business earnings measure because the period-to-period fluctuations in the time value portion of our
options do not reflect the economics of our current risk management strategy, which generally is to hold our purchased options to
maturity or exercise date. Consequently, we do not expect to realize the period-to-period fluctuations in time value. In addition,
the accounting for purchased options under FAS 133 is inconsistent with the accounting for embedded options in our callable debt
and mortgages.

Represents the net federal income tax effect of core business earnings adjustments based on the applicable federal income tax rate
of 35 percent.

Six Months Ended June 30, 2003
Total Core  Reconciling Items

Portfolio Credit Business Related to Reported
Investment  Guaranty Earnings Purchased Options Results
Net interest inCOMe . ... .........uueeuiieenennnnnn.. $ 6,466 $ 403 $6,869 — $ 6,869
Purchased options amortization expense ............... (1,481) — (1,481) 1,481 @ —
Core net interest income . ................c.uiina... 4,985 403 5,388 1,481 6,869
Guaranty fee income (expense) ...................... (807) 1,986 1,179 — 1,179
Fee and other income, net........................... 353 (8) 345 — 345
Credit-related expenses'” .............. . ... ... — (43) (43) — (43)
Administrative eXpenses . ... ........oveeeiiiinaeea.. (204) (494) (698) — (698)
Purchased options expense under FAS 133 ............. — — — (2,508) @ (2,508)
Debt extinguishments . ........... ... .. (1,132) — (1,132) — (1,132)
Income before federal income taxes ................... 3,195 1,844 5,039 (1,027) 4,012
Provision for federal income taxes .................... (938) (391) (1,329) 359 @ (970)
NEt INCOME . .. vv e $ 2,257 $1,453 $3,710 $ (668) $ 3,042
Six Months Ended June 30, 2002
Total Core  Reconciling Items
Portfolio Credit Business Related to Reported
Investment  Guaranty Earnings Purchased Options Results
Net interest income . ............iiuiiieinnninn.. $ 4,647 $ 316 $4,963 $ — $ 4,963
Purchased options amortization expense ............... (641) — (641) 641 @ —
Core net interest income . ................c.uiinio... 4,006 316 4,322 641 4,963
Guaranty fee income (€Xpense) .................oun.. (654) 1,485 831 — 831
Fee and other income, net........................... 142 97) 45 — 45
Credit-related expenses'" .. ... ... .. ... ... ... ..... — (46) (46) — (46)
Administrative eXpenses ... .......uverreinerneen. (176) (415) (591) — (591)
Purchased options expense under FAS 133 ............. — — — (1,286) @ (1,286)
Debt extinguishments . ........... ..., (396) — (396) — (396)
Income before federal income taxes and effect of
accounting change............... ...t 2,922 1,243 4,165 (645) 3,520
Provision for federal income taxes .................... (858) (216) (1,074) 226 @ (848)
NEt INCOME ... vvt e $ 2,064 $1,027 $3,091 $ (419) $ 2,672
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Credit-related expenses include the income statement line items “Provision for losses” and “Foreclosed property income.”

Represents the straight-line amortization of purchased options expense that we allocate to interest expense over the original
expected life of the options. We include this amount in core business earnings instead of recording changes in the time value of
purchased options because this treatment is more consistent with the accounting for the embedded options in our callable debt
and the vast majority of our mortgages.

Represents changes in the fair value of the time value of purchased options recorded in accordance with FAS 133. We exclude
this amount from our core business earnings measure because the period-to-period fluctuations in the time value portion of our
options do not reflect the economics of our current risk management strategy, which generally is to hold our purchased options to
maturity or exercise date. Consequently, we do not expect to realize the period-to-period fluctuations in time value. In addition,
the accounting for purchased options under FAS 133 is inconsistent with the accounting for embedded options in our callable debt
and mortgages.

Represents the net federal income tax effect of core business earnings adjustments based on the applicable federal income tax rate
of 35 percent.

3

(4

The only difference between our core business earnings and reported net income relates to the accounting
treatment for purchased options under FAS 133. This difference only affects our Portfolio Investment
business. Core business earnings and reported net income are the same for our Credit Guaranty business.
The Portfolio Investment business represented $901 billion, or 98 percent of total assets, at June 30, 2003
and $869 billion, or 98 percent of total assets, at December 31, 2002.

8. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The following table shows the outstanding notional balances of derivatives at June 30, 2003 and
December 31, 2002 based on the hedge classification. We had no open hedge positions on the anticipatory
issuance of debt at June 30, 2003.

June 30, 2003 December 31, 2002
Cash Flow Fair Value No Hedge Cash Flow Fair Value
Hedges Hedges Designation Total Hedges Hedges Total

(Dollars in millions)
Interest rate swaps:

Pay-fixed....... ... .o i $193,689 $ 25,618 $ — $219,307 $152,157 $ 16,355 $168,512

Receive-fixed and basis . .................. 109,018 58,170 — 167,188 48,259 29,636 717,895
Interest rate caps . .......oovvuiiinennann 138,228 — — 138,228 122,393 — 122,393
Swaptions:

Pay-fixed............ . ... 152,280 — — 152,280 129,225 — 129,225

Receive-fixed ............ ... .. ... ... ... 34,750 85,475 — 120,225 51,500 94,750 146,250
Other .. ... .. 6,275 7,446 444 14,165 8,200 4,120 12,320
Total ... ... o $634,240  $176,709 $444 $811,393 $511,734  $144,861 $656,595

M Includes foreign currency swaps, forward starting swaps, asset swaps, and other derivatives used to hedge anticipated debt issues.

FAS 133 requires that changes in the fair value of derivative instruments be recognized in earnings unless
specific hedge accounting criteria are met. Although Fannie Mae’s derivatives may be effective economic
hedges and critical in our interest rate risk management strategy, they may not meet the hedge accounting
criteria of FAS 133. At June 30, 2003, we had $444 million in outstanding notional amount of derivatives
that did not qualify for hedge accounting under FAS 133, which we are required to mark-to-market
through earnings.

The following table shows the change in AOCI, net of taxes, associated with FAS 133 between
December 31, 2002 and June 30, 2003:

FAS 133
Impact
on AOCI
(Dollars in millions)
Balance at December 31, 2002 .. ...ttt $(16,251)
Losses on cash flow hedges, net . ........ .. e (840)
Reclassifications to €arnings, NEt. .. ... ...ttt 1,242
Balance at March 31, 2003 . ... ... (15,849)
Losses on cash flow hedges, net ... ... ... .. (2,301)
Reclassifications to €arnings, NEt . . ... ... ...ttt e 1,198
Balance at June 30, 2003 . . ... $(16,952)
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Quantitative and qualitative disclosure about market risk is set forth on pages 23 to 25 of this Form 10-Q
under the caption “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations — Risk Management — Interest Rate Risk Management” and is incorporated herein by
reference.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

We carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the
end of the period covered by this quarterly report. Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

In addition, based on this most recent evaluation, we have concluded that there were no changes in our
internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the period covered by this quarterly report
that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.
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PART II—OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary course of business, we are involved in legal proceedings that arise in connection with
properties acquired either through foreclosure on properties securing delinquent mortgage loans we own or
by receiving deeds to those properties in lieu of foreclosure. For example, claims related to possible tort
liability and compliance with applicable environmental requirements arise from time to time, primarily in
the case of single-family REO.

We are a party to legal proceedings from time to time arising from our relationships with our seller/
servicers. Disputes with lenders concerning their loan origination or servicing obligations to us, or disputes
concerning termination by us (for any of a variety of reasons) of a lender’s authority to do business with
us as a seller and/or servicer, can result in litigation. Also, loan servicing and financing issues have resulted
from time to time in claims against us brought as putative class actions for borrowers. We also are a party
to legal proceedings from time to time arising from other aspects of our business and administrative
policies.

Fannie Mae is the subject of a lawsuit filed on September 13, 2002, as a class action in the United States
District Court for the District of Columbia seeking declaratory and injunctive relief, as well as statutory
and punitive damages. The complaint identifies as a class all minority borrowers who have been denied
loans as a result of Fannie Mae’s automated underwriting systems (“AUS”). The lawsuit alleges that
Fannie Mae’s AUS unlawfully fails to give adverse action notices to borrowers who are not approved for
the loans for which they apply, and unlawfully discriminates against minorities.

Fannie Mae moved to dismiss the complaint in its entirety and the court granted that motion in part and
denied it in part. The court held that Fannie Mae did not have a legal obligation to provide adverse action
notices and the court declined plaintiff’s motion to reconsider that decision or certify it for appeal. The
court held that the plaintiff had met the minimal requirements for pleading the discrimination claim, but
that plaintiff must demonstrate that she was qualified to obtain a loan. Fannie Mae anticipates that it will
file dispositive motions on a variety of factual and legal grounds, as well as file briefs to defeat class
certification.

Claims and proceedings of all types are subject to many uncertain factors that generally cannot be
predicted with assurance. However, in the case of the legal proceedings and claims that are currently
pending against us, management believes that their outcome will not have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Item 2. Changes in Securities and Use of Proceeds
(a) None.
(b) None.

(¢) The securities Fannie Mae issues are “exempt securities” under laws administered by the SEC to
the same extent as securities that are obligations of, or guaranteed as to principal and interest by,
the United States. Registration statements with respect to Fannie Mae securities are not filed
with the SEC, except for the voluntary filing on March 31, 2003, of Form 10 under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 with respect to Fannie Mae common stock.

During the quarter ended June 30, 2003, Fannie Mae sold (i) 6,900,000 shares of Non-
Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series L, through a syndicate of underwriters led by Lehman
Brothers and Goldman, Sachs & Co.; the aggregate offering price was $345,000,000 and the
aggregate underwriting discount was $3,018,750; and (ii) 9,200,000 shares of Non-Cumulative
Preferred Stock, Series M, through a syndicate of underwriters led by Lehman Brothers and
Merrill Lynch & Co.; the aggregate offering price was $460,000,000 and the aggregate
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underwriting discount was $4,025,000. The proceeds from both such sales were used for general
corporate purposes.

(d) Not applicable.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

The shareholders of the company voted on four matters at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders held on
May 20, 2003:

1. The election of 12 directors;

2. Ratification of the appointment of KPMG LLP as independent auditors for 2003;
3. Approval of the Fannie Mae Stock Compensation Plan of 2003; and

4. A shareholder proposal to reinstate cumulative voting for directors.

The following persons were elected as directors of Fannie Mae by the respective votes indicated following
their names: Stephen B. Ashley (845,297,830 votes for; 12,681,635 votes withheld); Kenneth M.
Duberstein (838,883,157 votes for; 19,096,308 votes withheld); Thomas P. Gerrity (835,236,010 votes for;
22,743,455 votes withheld); Timothy Howard (841,938,392 votes for; 16,041,073 votes withheld); Ann
McLaughlin Korologos (844,468,293 votes for; 13,511,172 votes withheld); Frederic V. Malek
(835,042,300 votes for; 22,937,165 votes withheld); Donald B. Marron (845,184,528 votes for; 12,794,937
votes withheld); Daniel H. Mudd (841,958,669 votes for; 16,020,796 votes withheld); Anne M. Mulcahy
(835,468,474 votes for; 22,510,991 votes withheld); Joe K. Pickett (845,438,154 votes for; 12,541,311 votes
withheld); Franklin D. Raines (837,466,596 votes for; 20,512,869 votes withheld); H. Patrick Swygert
(841,797,517 votes for; 16,181,948 votes withheld).

In addition to the directors elected by the shareholders, the President of the United States has the
authority to appoint five members of Fannie Mae’s board. In May, the President reappointed Victor H.
Ashe, Molly H. Bordonaro, William R. Harvey, Manual J. Justiz, and Taylor C. Segue, III to the board
for a term expiring on the date of the May 2004 annual meeting of shareholders.

The ratification of KPMG LLP as independent auditors for 2003 was approved as follows:

Votes for ratification: 812,238,118
Votes against ratification: 40,243,450
Abstentions: 5,497,897

The Fannie Mae Stock Compensation Plan of 2003 was approved as follows:

Votes for approval: 798,163,864
Votes against approval: 52,174,400
Abstentions: 7,641,201

The shareholder proposal to reinstate cumulative voting for directors was defeated as follows:

Votes for reinstatement: 122,627,153
Votes against reinstatement: 640,653,184
Abstentions: 8,513,420
Broker non-votes: 86,185,708

50



Item 5. Other Information
Recent Legislative and Regulatory Developments

Several bills recently have been introduced in Congress that propose to alter the regulatory regime under
which Fannie Mae operates. These bills seek to transfer regulatory responsibility for overseeing Fannie
Mace’s financial safety and soundness from our current regulator, OFHEO, to a bureau under the

U.S. Department of the Treasury. Some of the bills would also move various of the Department of
Housing and Urban Development’s regulatory authorities over Fannie Mae to the Treasury bureau. Several
bills seek to provide additional or expanded powers to Fannie Mae’s regulators. We cannot predict whether
any legislation will be approved by Congress and signed into law by the President and, if so, the final form
or effective date of such legislation.

Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K

(a)

(b)

Exhibits:

Exhibit 3.1 Fannie Mae Bylaws, effective as of July 15, 2003

Exhibit 4.1 Certificate of Designation of Terms of Fannie Mae Preferred Stock,
Series L (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Fannie Mae’s
quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2003)

Exhibit 4.2 Certificate of Designation of Terms of Fannie Mae Preferred Stock,
Series M

Exhibit 10.1 Employment Agreement between Fannie Mae and Franklin D. Raines

Exhibit 10.2 Employment Agreement between Fannie Mae and Daniel H. Mudd

Exhibit 10.3 Employment Agreement between Fannie Mae and J. Timothy Howard

Exhibit 10.4 Fannie Mae Stock Compensation Plan of 2003

Exhibit 12 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and
Preferred Stock Dividends

Exhibit 31.1 Certification of CEO pursuant to Securities Exchange Act of 1934
Rule 13a-14

Exhibit 31.2 Certification of CFO pursuant to Securities Exchange Act of 1934
Rule 13a-14

Exhibit 32.1 Certification of CEO pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Exhibit 32.2 Certification of CFO pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Reports on Form 8-K

On April 15, 2003, we filed a Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 15, 2003, reporting our
earnings for the first quarter of fiscal year 2003, and certain other financial data, under Item 9.
On May 14, 2003, we filed a Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 13, 2003, reporting
monthly business volumes and certain statistical data for the month of April 2003, under Item 5.
On May 21, 2003, we filed a Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 20, 2003, reporting the
appointment of a vice chairman of the corporation, under Item 5.

On May 23, 2003, we filed a Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 23, 2003, disclosing the
quarterly business activity supplement for the first quarter of fiscal year 2003, under Item 5.

On June 13, 2003, we filed a Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 12, 2003, reporting
monthly business volumes and certain statistical data for the month of May 2003, under Item 5.
No other reports on Form 8-K were filed during the second quarter of 2003; however, on July 15,
2003, we filed a Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 14, 2003, reporting our earnings for the
second quarter of fiscal year 2003, and certain other financial data, under Item 9, and on

August 13, 2003, we filed a Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 13, 2003, reporting
monthly business volumes and certain statistical data for the month of July 2003.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

Federal National Mortgage Association

Date: August 14, 2003

By: /s/ J. TiMmOoTHY HOWARD

J. Timothy Howard
Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Officer

By: /s/ LEANNE G. SPENCER

Leanne G. Spencer
Senior Vice President and Controller
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit 3.1 Fannie Mae Bylaws, effective as of July 15, 2003

Exhibit 4.1 Certificate of Designation of Terms of Fannie Mae Preferred Stock, Series L (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Fannie Mae’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended March 31, 2003)

Exhibit 4.2 Certificate of Designation of Terms of Fannie Mae Preferred Stock, Series M
Exhibit 10.1 Employment Agreement between Fannie Mae and Franklin D. Raines
Exhibit 10.2 Employment Agreement between Fannie Mae and Daniel H. Mudd

Exhibit 10.3 Employment Agreement between Fannie Mae and J. Timothy Howard
Exhibit 10.4 Fannie Mae Stock Compensation Plan of 2003

Exhibit 12 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock
Dividends

Exhibit 31.1 Certification of CEO pursuant to Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Rule 13a-14*
Exhibit 31.2 Certification of CFO pursuant to Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Rule 13a-14*

Exhibit 32.1 Certification of CEO pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Exhibit 32.2 Certification of CFO pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

* Exhibits 31.1 and 31.2 appear immediately following this index in printed copies of the Form 10-Q. Other exhibits filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission as part of the Form 10-Q have been omitted from the printed copy, but may be seen on the
Web site of the Commission (www.sec.gov) or on our Web site (www.fanniemae.com/ir).
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT RULE 13a-14

I, Franklin D. Raines, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Fannie Mae (formally, the Federal
National Mortgage Association);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))
for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating
to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) [paragraph omitted pursuant to SEC Release Nos. 33-8238 and 34-47986]

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented
in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or
is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s control over internal control over
financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of
the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 14, 2003

/s/  FRANKLIN D. RAINES

Franklin D. Raines
Chairman of the Board of Directors and
Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION

PURSUANT TO SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT RULE 13a-14

I, J. Timothy Howard, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Fannie Mae (formally, the Federal
National Mortgage Association);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))
for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating
to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) [paragraph omitted pursuant to SEC Release Nos. 33-8238 and 34-47986]

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented
in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or
is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s control over internal control over
financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of
the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 14, 2003

/s/ J. TiIMOTHY HOWARD

J. Timothy Howard
Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Officer
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FANNIE MAE BYLAWS
As Amended Through July 15, 2003

ARTICLE 1
General Provisions

Section 1.01. Name. The name of the corporation is Federal National Mortgage Association. The corporation may also do business under
the name Fannie Mae.

Section 1.02. Principal Office and Other Offices. The principal office of the corporation shall be in the District of Columbia. Other offices
of the corporation shall be in such places as may be deemed by the Board of Directors or the Chairman of the Board to be necessary or
appropriate.

Section 1.03. Seal. The seal of the corporation shall be of such design as shall be approved and adopted from time to time by the Board of
Directors, and the seal or a facsimile thereof may be affixed by any person authorized by the Board of Directors or these Bylaws by
impression, by printing, by rubber stamp, or otherwise.

Section 1.04. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the corporation shall end on the 31st day of December of each year.

Section 1.05. Corporate Governance Practices and Procedures. Pursuant to Section 1710.10(b) of the Office of Federal Housing Enterprise
Oversight (“OFHEO”) corporate governance regulation, 12 CFR 1710.1 et seq., to the extent not inconsistent with the Charter Act and other
Federal law, rules, and regulations, the corporation has elected to follow the applicable corporate governance practices and procedures of the
Delaware General Corporation Law, as the same may be amended from time to time. The inclusion of provisions in these Bylaws shall
constitute inclusion in the corporation’s “certificate of incorporation” for all purposes of the Delaware General Corporation Law.

ARTICLE 2
Capital Stock

Section 2.01. Common Stock. The common stock, all of which is voting and has no par value, shall have a stated value per share as
determined from time to time by the Board of Directors. Shares of the corporation may be acquired and held in the treasury of the corporation,
and may be disposed of by the corporation for such consideration and for such purposes as may be determined from time to time by the Board
of Directors.

Section 2.02. Preferred Stock. The corporation shall have authority to issue up to 200,000,000 shares of preferred stock having no par
value. The preferred stock may be issued from time to time in one or more series upon approval by the Board of Directors, or a committee
thereof appointed for such purpose, and the Board of Directors or such committee may, by resolution providing for the issuance of such
preferred stock, designate with respect to such shares: (a) their voting powers; (b) their rights of redemption; (c) their right to receive dividends
(which may be cumulative or non-cumulative) including the dividend rate or rates, conditions to



payment, and the relative preferences in relation to the dividends payable on any other class or classes or series of stock; (d) their rights upon
the dissolution of, or upon any distribution of the assets of, the corporation; (e) their rights to convert into, or exchange for, shares of any other
class or classes of stock of the corporation, including the price or prices or the rate of exchange; and (f) other relative, participating, optional or
special rights, qualifications, limitations or restrictions. Notwithstanding Sections 4.12(a)(6) and 4.15 of these Bylaws, the Board of Directors
may authorize a committee of the Board to declare dividends on preferred stock.

Section 2.03. Payment for Shares. The consideration to be received by the corporation for the issuance of common shares shall be fixed
from time to time by the Board of Directors. A subscriber shall be entitled to issuance of shares upon receipt by the corporation of the
consideration for which the shares are to be issued. No certificates shall be issued for any share until the share is fully paid, and, when issued,
such shares shall be nonassessable.

Section 2.04. Certificates Representing Shares. Each registered holder of the capital stock of the corporation shall be entitled to a certificate
or certificates signed by the Chairman of the Board of Directors or the President and by the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of the
corporation, and sealed with the seal of the corporation certifying the number of shares owned by him in the corporation. The certificates shall
be in such form as the Board, from time to time, may approve. If any certificate is manually signed (i) by a transfer agent other than the
corporation or its employee, or (ii) by a registrar other than the corporation or its employee, any other signature on the certificate, including
those of the aforesaid officers of the corporation, may be a facsimile. In case any officer, transfer agent or registrar who has signed or whose
facsimile signature has been placed upon a certificate shall have ceased to be such officer, transfer agent or registrar before such certificate is
issued, it may be issued by the corporation with the same effect as if he or she were such officer, transfer agent or registrar at the date of issue.

Section 2.05. Transfers of Stock. Transfers of stock shall be made upon the books of the corporation (i) upon presentation of the certificates
by the registered holder in person or by duly authorized attorney, or (ii) upon presentation of proper evidence of succession, assignment or
authority to transfer the stock, and upon surrender of the appropriate certificate(s).

Section 2.06. Holder of Record. The corporation shall be entitled to treat the holder of record of any share or shares of stock as the holder in
fact thereof and accordingly shall not be bound to recognize any equitable or other claim to or interest in such share on the part of any other
person whether or not it shall have express or other notice thereof, save as expressly provided by the laws of the State of Delaware insofar as
they are applicable to the stock of stock corporations organized under the Delaware General Corporation Law.

Section 2.07. Loss or Destruction of Certificate of Stock. In case of loss or destruction of any certificate of stock, another may be issued in
its place, pursuant to such requirements and procedures as may be established by the Secretary of the corporation with the concurrence of the
General Counsel (including, without limitation, requiring provision of a surety bond).

Section 2.08. Stockholder Records.



(a) The corporation shall keep at its principal place of business, or at the office of its transfer agent or registrar, a record of its stockholders,
giving the names and addresses of all stockholders and the number of shares held by each.

(b) The officer who has charge of the stock ledger of the corporation shall prepare and make, at least 10 days before every meeting of
stockholders, a complete list of the stockholders entitled to vote at said meeting, arranged in alphabetical order, showing the address of and the
number of shares registered in the name of each stockholder. Such list shall be open to the examination of any stockholder, for any purpose
germane to the meeting, for a period of at least 10 days prior to the meeting, during ordinary business hours, at the principal place of business
of the corporation or as may otherwise be permitted by the Delaware General Corporation Law. The list shall be produced and kept at the time
and place of the meeting during the whole time thereof and may be inspected by any stockholder who is present.

Section 2.09. Registration of Common Stock. The corporation shall register its common stock with the Securities and Exchange
Commission pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and shall take appropriate steps to maintain such
registration. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in Article 7 of these Bylaws, this Section 2.09 may be altered, amended, or
repealed only by the unanimous vote or consent of all the then incumbent Members of the Board then in office.

ARTICLE 3
The Stockholders

Section 3.01. Place of Meetings. Meetings of the stockholders of the corporation shall be held at such place or places, within or without the
District of Columbia, as shall be determined by the Board of Directors; and the Chairman of the Board shall preside at all such meetings.

Section 3.02. Annual Meeting. The annual meeting of the stockholders shall be held at ten o’clock in the morning of the third Thursday in
May of each year, if that day is not a legal holiday, and if a holiday, then on the first following day that is not a legal holiday. If any annual
meeting is not held at the designated time, the meeting shall be held as promptly as practicable thereafter at a time to be determined by the
Board of Directors.

Section 3.03. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the stockholders may be called by the Board of Directors or the Chairman of the Board,
or at the request of the holders of not less than one-third of all the shares entitled to vote, to be determined as of the close of the first day of the
month preceding the month in which the request is presented to the Secretary. Business transacted at all special meetings shall be confined to
the subjects stated in the notice of special meeting.

Section 3.04. Notice of Meetings—Waiver and Adjourned Meetings. Written notice stating the place, date and hour of the meeting, and the
purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called, shall be delivered not less than 20, nor more than 55, days before the date of the meeting,
by the Secretary of the corporation, to each registered holder entitled to vote at such meeting. If mailed, such notice shall be deemed to be
delivered when deposited in the United States mail addressed to the registered holder at his address as it appears on the stock transfer books of
the



corporation, with first class postage prepaid. Waiver by a stockholder in writing of notice of a stockholders’ meeting, signed by him either
before or after the time of the meeting, shall be equivalent to the giving of such notice. Attendance by a stockholder at a stockholders’ meeting,
whether in person or by proxy, without objection to the notice or lack thereof, shall constitute a waiver of notice of the meeting. Any meeting
of stockholders may be adjourned by the chair of the meeting to reconvene at another time or place. When a meeting is adjourned to another
time or place, notice need not be given of the adjourned meeting if the time and place thereof are announced at the meeting at which the
adjournment is taken. At the adjourned meeting the corporation may transact any business which might have been transacted at the original
meeting. If the adjournment is for more than 30 days, or if after the adjournment a new record date is fixed for the adjourned meeting, a notice
of the adjourned meeting shall be given to each stockholder of record entitled to vote at the meeting.

Section 3.05. Fixing Record Date.

(€))] For the purpose of determining stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at any meeting of stockholders or any adjournment
thereof, the Board of Directors may fix a date as the record date. Such date, in any case, shall not precede the date upon which the resolution
fixing the record date is adopted by the Board of Directors and shall be not more than 55 days and not less than 20 days prior to the date of
such meeting. If no such record date is fixed, the close of business on the day next preceding the day on which notice is given, or, if notice is
waived, the close of business on the day next preceding the date on which the meeting is held shall be the record date for the determination of
stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of stockholders. When a determination of stockholders entitled to vote at any meeting
of stockholders has been made, as provided in this section, the determination shall apply to any adjournment thereof, provided, however, that
the Board of Directors may fix a new record date for the adjourned meeting.

(b) For the purpose of determining stockholders entitled to receive payment of any dividend, or in order to make a determination of
stockholders for any other purpose (except as provided in Section 3.05(a)), the Board of Directors or a duly authorized Committee thereof may
fix a date as the record date. Such date, in any case, shall not precede the date upon which the resolution fixing the record date is adopted and
shall be not more than 55 days prior to the date on which the particular action is to be taken. If no such record date is fixed, the close of
business on the day on which the resolution relating thereto is adopted shall be the record date for the determination of stockholders.

Section 3.06. Quorum. A majority of the shares entitled to vote, represented in person or by proxy, shall constitute a quorum at a meeting of
stockholders. The stockholders present at a duly organized meeting may continue to do business until adjournment, notwithstanding the
withdrawal of the holders of enough shares to leave less than a quorum. If a meeting cannot be organized because a quorum has not attended,
either the chair of the meeting, or those stockholders present, in person or by proxy, by a majority of the votes cast by such stockholders so
present, may adjourn the meeting from time to time until a quorum is present when any business may be transacted that may have been
transacted at the meeting as originally called.

Section 3.07. Proxies. A stockholder may vote either in person or by proxy



executed in writing by the stockholder or his duly authorized representative. No proxy shall be valid after 11 months from the date of its
execution, unless otherwise expressly provided in the proxy.

Section 3.08. Voting. At every meeting of the stockholders, every holder of the common stock shall be entitled to one vote for each share of
common stock registered in the name of such holder on the stock transfer books of the corporation at the close of the record date. A proxy
purporting to be executed by a corporation shall be presumed to be valid and the burden of proving invalidity shall rest on any challenger. A
proxy purporting to be executed by a partnership shall be presumed to be valid and the burden of proving invalidity shall rest on any
challenger. At each election for Members of the Board of Directors, every such holder of the common stock shall have the right to cast, for
each Board position to be filled, a number of votes equal to the number of shares held by such holder. Such holders shall have no right to
cumulate their votes for directors. Unless a higher percentage of affirmative votes is required by the Charter Act, these Bylaws, applicable
stock exchange rules or regulations, or other applicable Federal law, rules, or regulations, the stockholders will have approved any matter if, at
a meeting at which a quorum is present, the votes cast by the stockholders present, either in person or by proxy and entitled to vote thereon, in
favor of such matter exceed the votes cast by such stockholders against such matter. Members of the Board of Directors shall be elected by a
plurality of the votes cast.

Section 3.09. Inspectors of Votes. The Board of Directors, in advance of any meeting of stockholders, shall appoint one or more Inspectors
of Votes to act at the meeting or any adjournment thereof and make a written report thereof. One or more persons may be designated as
alternates to replace any Inspector of Votes who fails to act. In case any person so appointed Inspector of Votes or alternate resigns or fails to
act, the vacancy shall be filled by appointment made by the chairman of the meeting. The Inspectors of Votes shall (a) ascertain the number of
shares outstanding and the voting power of each and determine all questions concerning the qualification of voters; (b) determine the shares
represented at the meeting and the validity of proxies and ballots; (c) determine all questions concerning the acceptance or rejection of votes
and, with respect to each vote by ballot, shall collect and count all votes and ballots; (d) determine and retain for a reasonable period a record
of the disposition of any challenges made to any determination by the Inspectors of Votes; and (e) report in writing to the secretary of the
meeting their determination of the number of shares represented at the meeting, and their count of all votes and ballots. The Inspectors of Votes
need not be stockholders of the corporation. No person who is an officer or Member of the Board of Directors of the corporation, or who is a
candidate for election as a Member of the Board of Directors, shall be eligible to be an Inspector of Votes. Any report or certificate by the
Inspectors of Votes shall be prima facie evidence of the facts stated and of the votes as certified by them.

Section 3.10. Stockholder Notices to the Corporation. Whenever notice is to be given to the corporation by a stockholder under any
provision of law or of these Bylaws, such notice shall be delivered to the Secretary at the principal executive offices of the corporation. If
delivered by electronic mail or facsimile, the stockholder’s notice shall be directed to the Secretary at the electronic mail address or facsimile
number, as the case may be, specified in the corporation’s most recent proxy statement.



Section 3.11. Conduct of Meetings. The date and time of the opening and the closing of the polls for each matter upon which the
stockholders will vote at a meeting shall be announced at such meeting by the person presiding over the meeting. The Board of Directors may
adopt by resolution such rules or regulations for the conduct of meetings of stockholders as it shall deem appropriate. Except to the extent
inconsistent with such rules and regulations as adopted by the Board of Directors, the chair of any meeting of stockholders shall have the right
and authority to prescribe such rules, regulations and procedures and to do all such acts as, in the judgment of such chair, are appropriate for
the proper conduct of the meeting. Such rules, regulations or procedures, whether adopted by the Board of Directors or prescribed by the chair
of the meeting, may include, without limitation, the following: (a) the establishment of an agenda or order of business for the meeting; (b) rules
and procedures for maintaining order at the meeting and the safety of those present; (c) limitations on attendance at or participation in the
meeting to stockholders of record of the corporation, their duly authorized and constituted proxies, or such other persons as the chair shall
permit; (d) restrictions on entry to the meeting after the time fixed for the commencement thereof; and (e) limitations on the time allotted to
questions or comments by participants. Meetings of stockholders shall not be required to be held in accordance with rules of parliamentary
procedure.

Section 3.12. Notice of Stockholder Proposal. At an annual meeting of the stockholders, only such business shall be conducted as shall have
been properly brought before the meeting. To be properly brought before an annual meeting, business must be (a) specified in the notice of
meeting (or any supplement thereto) given by or at the direction of the Board of Directors; (b) otherwise properly brought before the meeting
by or at the direction of the Board of Directors; or (c) otherwise properly brought before the meeting by a stockholder. For business to be
properly brought before an annual meeting by a stockholder (other than the nomination of a person for election as a director, which is governed
by Section 4.19 of these Bylaws), the stockholder must have given timely notice thereof in writing to the Secretary of the corporation. To be
timely, a stockholder’s notice must be delivered to or mailed and received at the principal executive offices of the corporation not later than the
following dates (1) 60 days in advance of such meeting if such meeting is to be held on a day that is within 30 days preceding the anniversary
of the previous year’s annual meeting, or 90 days in advance of such meeting if such meeting is to be held on or after the anniversary of the
previous year’s annual meeting; and (2) with respect to an annual meeting of stockholders held on any other date, the close of business on the
10th day following the date of public disclosure of the date of such meeting. (For purposes of these Bylaws, public disclosure shall be deemed
to include a disclosure made in a press release reported by the Dow Jones News Services, Associated Press or a comparable national news
service or in a document filed by the corporation with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Section 13 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.) A stockholder’s notice to the Secretary shall set forth as to each matter the stockholder proposes to bring
before the annual meeting (A) a brief description of the business desired to be brought before the annual meeting and the reasons for
conducting such business at the annual meeting; (B) the name and address, as they appear on the corporation’s books, of the stockholder
proposing such business; (C) the class and number of shares of the corporation that are beneficially owned by the stockholder; and (D) any
material interest of the stockholder in such business. Notwithstanding anything in these Bylaws to the contrary, no business shall be conducted
at any annual meeting except in accordance with the procedures set forth in this Section 3.12. The chair of



the annual meeting shall, if the facts warrant, determine and declare to the meeting that business was not properly brought before the meeting
in accordance with the provisions of this Section 3.12, and if he or she should so determine, he or she shall so declare to the meeting and any
such business not properly brought before the meeting shall not be transacted.

ARTICLE 4
The Board of Directors
Section 4.01. General Policies. General policies governing the operations of the corporation shall be determined by the Board of Directors.
Section 4.02. Membership. The Board of Directors shall consist of those Members appointed and elected as provided by law.

Section 4.03. Term of Members. Each Member shall hold office for the term for which he is elected or appointed and until his successor is
chosen and qualified, or his death, resignation, retirement, or removal in accordance with law, whichever event shall first occur.

Section 4.04. Regular Meetings. The Board of Directors shall meet in regular meeting at such times as shall be determined by the Board
from time to time, except as provided in section 4.05 and except when the Chairman of the Board shall notify the Secretary of a different date
prior to a scheduled regular meeting. Each regular meeting shall be held at the principal office of the corporation in the District of Columbia,
unless special provision is made by the Board, in advance of any such regular meeting, to hold that meeting at another place, either within or
without the District of Columbia.

Section 4.05. Annual Meeting. Immediately following the annual meeting of the stockholders, the Board of Directors shall meet each year
for the purpose of considering any business that may properly be brought before the meeting, and such annual meeting of the Board shall be a
regular meeting.

Section 4.06. Special Meetings. Other meetings of the Board of Directors may be held upon the call of the Chairman of the Board of
Directors, or of a majority of the then incumbent Members of the Board. Each special meeting shall be held at the principal office in the
District of Columbia unless the Chairman of the Board prescribes and the notice specifies another place.

Section 4.07. Notice of Meetings—Waiver. No notice of any kind to Members of the Board of Directors shall be necessary for any regular
meeting that is held on a date determined by the Board, or for the annual meeting. In the case of a regular meeting on a different date, notice
shall be given to each Member by the Secretary; in the case of a special meeting, notice shall be given to each Member by the Secretary at the
direction of the calling authority. Such notice shall be in writing and sent to the address on file with the Secretary of the corporation not later
than during the third day immediately preceding the day for the meeting; or by word of mouth, telephone, facsimile or electronic mail, directed
to the telephone number, facsimile number or electronic mail address, as the case may be, on file with the Secretary of the corporation, not later
than during the second day immediately preceding the day for the meeting. Notice of any such meeting may be waived in writing signed by the



person or persons entitled thereto, either before or after the time of the meeting. Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of, any
meeting of the Board of Directors need be specified in the notice or waiver of notice of the meeting.

Section 4.08. The Chairman of the Board of Directors. The Chairman of the Board of Directors may be chosen by the Board at any meeting
of the Board from among the Members, and his tenure shall commence immediately and continue until the next succeeding annual meeting of
the Board, or until his successor is chosen, whichever first occurs. The Chairman of the Board shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the
corporation, and shall have such powers and perform such duties as the Board may prescribe. Except as otherwise provided by law, the
corporate charter, these Bylaws, or the Board, the Chairman shall have plenary authority to perform all duties ordinarily incident to the office
and such other duties as may be assigned to him from time to time by the Board. The Chairman may prescribe, amend and rescind
requirements and procedures governing the manner in which the general business of the corporation shall be conducted. The officers, agents
and employees, other than the principal officers, shall be appointed by the Chairman or by any other principal officer to whom the Chairman
shall have delegated the authority. During the Chairman’s absence or inability to act or during the vacancy of the office, the Vice Chairman and
Chief Operating Officer shall perform the duties and exercise the authority of the Chairman.

Section 4.08a. The Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may from time to time elect from among the Members
of the Board one or more Vice Chairmen of the Board. Any such Vice Chairman shall have such powers and shall perform such duties as the
Board of Directors may prescribe or as the Chairman of the Board shall delegate to him.

Section 4.09. Quorum. The presence, in person or otherwise in accordance with section 4.16 hereof, of a majority of the then incumbent
Members of the Board of Directors or of a Board Committee, as applicable, at the time of any meeting of the Board or such Committee, shall
constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. The act of the majority of such Members present at a meeting at which a quorum is present
shall be the act of the Board of Directors unless the act of a greater number is required by these Bylaws. Members may not be represented by
proxy at any meeting of the Board of Directors.

Section 4.10. Action Without a Meeting. Any policy or action that may be approved or taken at a meeting of the Board or of any Board
Committee may be approved or taken without a meeting if all incumbent Members of the Board or the Committee, as the case may be, consent
thereto in writing and the writings are filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the Board or the Committee.

Section 4.11. Facsimile Signatures. The Board of Directors, the Chairman of the Board or the President may authorize the use of facsimile
signatures in lieu of manual signatures.

Section 4.12. Executive Commiittee.

(@) The Executive Committee of the Board shall consist of at least five Members who shall be designated by the Board and serve at the
pleasure of the Board. One of the members of the Executive Committee shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the corporation who may also,
but is not required to, be chair of the Committee. The



designation of such Committee and the delegation thereto of authority shall not alone relieve any director of any duty he owes the corporation.
The Executive Committee, during the interim between Board meetings, shall have all the authority of the Board, except that it shall not have
the authority to take any of the following actions:

e)) The submission to stockholders of any action requiring stockholders’ authorization.

2) The filling of vacancies on the Board of Directors or on the Executive Committee.

3) The fixing of compensation of the directors for serving on the Board or on the Executive Committee.

4 The appointment or removal of the Chairman of the Board, President, any Vice Chairman, and any Executive Vice President,

except that vacancies in established positions may be filled subject to ratification by the Board of Directors.

) The amendment or repeal of these Bylaws or the adoption of new bylaws.

©6) The declaration of dividends or the authorizing of the issuance of the corporation’s stock.

@ The amendment or repeal of any resolution of the Board which by its terms is not so amendable or repealable.

®) The adoption of an agreement of merger or consolidation or the adoption of a certificate of ownership and merger.

©) The recommendation to stockholders of the sale, lease or exchange of all or substantially all of the corporation’s property
and assets.

(10)  The recommendation to stockholders of a dissolution of the corporation or a revocation of a dissolution.

(b) The Executive Committee shall meet at the call of its chairman or of a majority of its members, and a majority shall constitute a
quorum. The action of the majority of the members of the Committee shall be the action of the Committee. Members of the Committee may
not be represented by proxy at any meeting of the Committee.

(©) Unless otherwise expressly provided by resolution of the Board of Directors, members of the Executive Committee shall be
compensated and shall be reimbursed for travel and expenses on the same basis and at the same rate as is provided for Members of the Board
of Directors for attendance at meetings of the Board.

(d The Executive Committee shall, at each regular meeting of the Board of Directors, present to the Board its report and such
recommendations as are in its judgment necessary for the proper operation of the corporation.

Section 4.13. Audit Committee. The Board of Directors shall have an Audit Committee and, as required by Section 1710.11(b)(1) of the
OFHEO corporate governance regulation, the Audit Committee shall comply with the charter, independence, composition, expertise and other
requirements of the New York Stock Exchange, as the same may be amended from time to time, unless otherwise required by OFHEO.

Section 4.14. Compensation Committee. The Board of Directors shall have a Compensation Committee and, as required by Section 1710.11
(b)(2) of the OFHEO corporate governance regulation, the Compensation Committee shall include at least

10



three independent directors. The duties of the Compensation Committee shall include overseeing the corporation’s compensation policies and
plans for executive officers and employees and approving the compensation of senior executive officers of the corporation.

Section 4.15. Other Committees. In addition to the Executive, Audit and Compensation committees, the Board of Directors may by
resolution designate from among its Members such other committees as it deems appropriate, each of which, to the extent provided by
resolution of the Board, may exercise all authority of the Board except those actions outside the authority of the Executive Committee. The
designation of any such committee and the delegation thereto of authority shall not alone relieve any director of any duty he owes the
corporation.

Section 4.16. Remote Meetings. Any meeting of the Board of Directors or any meeting of a Board Committee may be held with the
Members of the Board or members of such Committee participating in such meeting by telephone or by any other means of communication by
which all such persons participating in the meeting are able to speak to and hear one another.

Section 4.17. Limitation on Liability. To the fullest extent permitted by Delaware statutory or decisional law, as amended or interpreted, no
director of this corporation shall be personally liable to the corporation or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as
a director. This Section 4.17 does not affect the availability of equitable remedies for breach of fiduciary duties.

Section 4.18. Eligibility to Make Nominations. Nominations of candidates for election as directors at an annual meeting of stockholders
called for election of directors may be made (i) by any stockholder entitled to vote at such meeting only in accordance with the procedures
established by Section 4.19 of these Bylaws, or (ii) by the Board of Directors or by a duly authorized Committee thereof. In order to be eligible
for election as a director, any director nominee must first be nominated in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws.

Section 4.19. Procedure for Nominations by Stockholders. Any stockholder entitled to vote for the election of a director at an annual
meeting may nominate one or more persons for such election only if written notice of such stockholder’s intent to make such nomination is
delivered to or mailed and received by the Secretary of the corporation. Such notice must be received by the Secretary not later than the
following dates: (a) with respect to an annual meeting of stockholders, 60 days in advance of such meeting if such meeting is to be held on a
day that is within 30 days preceding the anniversary of the previous year’s annual meeting or 90 days in advance of such meeting if such
meeting is to be held on or after the anniversary of the previous year’s annual meeting; and (b) with respect to an annual meeting of
stockholders held on any other date, the close of business on the 10th day following the date of public disclosure of the date of such meeting.
The written notice shall set forth: (1) the name, age, business address and residence address of each nominee proposed in such notice; (2) the
principal occupation or employment of each such nominee; (3) the number of shares of capital stock of the corporation which are beneficially
owned by each such nominee; and (4) such other information concerning each such nominee as would be required, under the rules of the
Securities and Exchange Commission in a proxy statement soliciting proxies for the election of such nominee as a director. Such notice shall
include a signed consent of each such nominee to serve as a director of the corporation, if elected.
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Section 4.20. Compliance with Procedures. If the chair of the stockholders’ annual meeting determines that a nomination of any candidate
for election as a director was not made in accordance with the applicable provisions of these Bylaws, such nomination shall be void.

ARTICLE 5
The Officers

Section 5.01. Number. The principal officers of the corporation shall consist of the Chairman of the Board of Directors, a President, one or
more Vice Chairmen of the Board if the Board has elected to fill such position or positions, one or more Executive Vice Presidents and Senior
Vice Presidents, a General Counsel, a Controller, a Treasurer, and a Secretary. There shall be such assistant officers, agents, and employees as
may be deemed necessary. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person.

Section 5.02. General Authority and Duties. All officers, agents, and employees of the corporation shall have such authority and perform
such duties in the management and conduct of the business of the corporation as may be provided for in these Bylaws, as may be established
by resolution of the Board of Directors not inconsistent with these Bylaws, or as may be delegated to them in a manner not inconsistent with
these Bylaws.

Section 5.03. Election, Tenure, and Qualifications. The principal officers shall be selected by the Board of Directors. Each officer shall hold
office until his successor is chosen and qualified, or his death, resignation, retirement, or removal from office, whichever event shall first occur.
Selection or appointment without express tenure, of an officer, agent, or employee shall not of itself create contract rights.

Section 5.04. Removal. Any officer, agent, or employee may be removed by the Board of Directors. Any removal shall be in accordance
with such procedures and safeguards as the corporation may establish and shall be without prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of the person
so removed.

Section 5.05. Vacancies. Any vacancy in any office shall be filled in the manner prescribed in these Bylaws for selection or appointment to
the office.

Section 5.06. The President. The President shall have such powers and perform such duties as the Board of Directors may prescribe, or as
the Chairman of the Board may delegate to him.

Section 5.07. The Vice Presidents. Each Vice President shall have such powers and perform such duties as the Board of Directors may
prescribe or as the Chairman of the Board may delegate to him.

Section 5.08. The Treasurer. The Treasurer shall, in general, perform all the duties ordinarily incident to the office of Treasurer and such
other duties as may be assigned to him by the Board of Directors or by the Chairman of the Board. The Treasurer shall render to the Chairman
and the Board, whenever the same shall be required, an account of all his transactions as Treasurer. The Treasurer shall, if required to do so by
the Board, give the corporation a bond in such amount and with
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such surety or sureties as may be ordered by the Board for the faithful performance of the duties of his office and for the restoration to the
corporation, in case of his death, resignation, retirement, or removal from office, of all books, papers, vouchers, money, and other property of
whatever kind in his possession or under his control belonging to the corporation. The premium for any such bond shall be paid by the
corporation.

Section 5.09. The General Counsel. The General Counsel shall be the principal consulting officer of the corporation in all matters of legal
significance or import; shall be responsible for and direct all counsel, attorneys, employees, and agents in the performance of all legal duties
and services for and on behalf of the corporation; shall perform such other duties and have such other powers as are ordinarily incident to the
office of the General Counsel; and shall perform such other duties as, from time to time, may be assigned to him by the Board of Directors or
by the Chairman of the Board.

Section 5.10. The Secretary. The Secretary shall keep or cause to be kept in books provided for the purpose the minutes of the meetings of
the Board of Directors and the minutes or transcripts of the meetings of the stockholders; shall see that all notices are duly given as required by
law and in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws; shall be responsible for the custody and maintenance of all related records and the
blank stock certificates of the corporation; shall be custodian of the records and of the seal of the corporation; and, in general, shall perform all
the duties ordinarily incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as may be assigned to him by the Board or by the Chairman of the
Board. The Secretary and any Assistant Secretary are expressly empowered to attest signatures of officers of the corporation and to affix the
seal of the corporation to documents.

Section 5.11. The Controller. The Controller shall keep full and accurate accounts of all assets, liabilities, commitments, receipts,
disbursements, and other financial transactions of the corporation; shall certify vouchers for payment by the Treasurer or the Treasurer’s
designee, and shall designate, with the written concurrence of the Chairman of the Board, such other officers, agents, and employees, severally,
who may so certify; and in general, shall perform all the duties ordinarily incident to the office of Controller and such other duties as may be
assigned to him by the Board of Directors or by the Chairman of the Board.

Section 5.12. Assistant Officers. Each assistant to an officer, including but not limited to any Assistant Vice President, any Assistant
Treasurer, any Assistant General Counsel, and any Assistant Secretary, and any other such assistant to any officer, shall perform such duties as
are, from time to time, delegated to him by the officer to whom he is an assistant, by the Chairman of the Board of Directors or by the Board.
At the request of the officer to whom he is an assistant, an assistant officer may temporarily perform the duties of that officer, and when so
acting shall have the powers of and be subject to the restrictions imposed upon that officer.

Section 5.13. Compensation. The compensation of the Chairman, President, any Vice Chairman, and any Executive Vice President shall be
fixed, from time to time, by the Board of Directors.

Section 5.14. Repealed.
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ARTICLE 6
Indemnification

Section 6.01. General Indemnification. The Board of Directors may, in such cases or categories of cases as it deems appropriate, indemnify
and hold harmless, or make provision for indemnifying and holding harmless, Members of the Board of Directors, officers, employees, and
agents of the corporation, and persons who formerly held such positions, and the estates of any of them against any or all claims and liabilities
(including reasonable legal fees and other expenses incurred in connection with such claims or liabilities) to which any such person shall have
become subject by reason of his having held such a position or having allegedly taken or omitted to take any action in connection with such
position.

Section 6.02. Indemnification of Board Members and Officers.

(a) To the fullest extent permitted by the Delaware General Corporation Law for a corporation subject to such law, as the same exists or
may hereafter be amended (but, in the case of any such amendment, only to the extent that such amendment permits a Delaware corporation to
provide broader indemnification rights than said law permitted such corporation to provide prior to such amendment), the corporation will
indemnify and hold harmless each Member of the Board and officer of the corporation or any subsidiary against any and all claims, liabilities,
and expenses (including attorneys’ fees, judgments, fines, and amounts paid in settlement) actually and reasonably incurred and arising from
any threatened, pending, or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative, or investigative, to which any such
person shall have become subject by reason of having held such a position or having allegedly taken or omitted to take any action in
connection with any such position. However, the foregoing shall not apply to:

® any breach of such person’s duty of loyalty to the corporation or its stockholders;

(i)  any act or omission by such person not in good faith or which involves intentional misconduct or where such person had
reasonable cause to believe his conduct was unlawful; or

(iii)  any transaction from which such person derived any improper personal benefit.

(b) The decision concerning whether a particular indemnitee has satisfied the foregoing shall be made by (i) the Board of Directors by a
majority vote of a quorum consisting of Members who are not parties to the action, suit, or proceeding giving rise to the claim for indemnity
(“Disinterested Directors”), whether or not such majority constitutes a quorum; (ii) a committee of Disinterested Directors designated by a
majority vote of Disinterested Directors, whether or not such majority constitutes a quorum; (iii) if there are no Disinterested Directors, or if
the Disinterested Directors so direct, by independent legal counsel in a written opinion; or (iv) a vote of the stockholders.

© The Board of Directors may authorize the advancement of expenses to any Member of the Board or officer, subject to a written
undertaking to repay such advance if it is later determined that the indemnitee does not satisfy the standard of conduct required for
indemnification. The Chairman of the Board is authorized to enter into contracts of indemnification with each Member and officer of the
corporation with respect to the indemnification provided in the Bylaws and to
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renegotiate such contracts as necessary to reflect changing laws and business circumstances.
ARTICLE 7
Amendments

The power to alter, amend, or repeal these Bylaws, or to adopt new bylaws, is vested in the Board of Directors, but the affirmative vote of
two-thirds of the then full number of authorized Members of the Board of Directors shall be necessary to effect any such action; or such action
may be effected in the manner provided in Section 4.10 of these Bylaws. Except by unanimous consent of all the then incumbent Members of
the Board, no such action shall be undertaken until at least one week shall have elapsed from either (i) the introduction of the proposal at a
meeting of the Board of Directors at which a quorum shall have attended, or (ii) the circulation of such proposed action to all the then
incumbent Members of the Board.

ARTICLE 8
Regulatory Powers

Nothing in these Bylaws shall be deemed to affect the regulatory powers of the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development pursuant to
the Charter Act, as amended.
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Exhibit 4.2

CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATION OF TERMS OF
4.75% NON-CUMULATIVE PREFERRED STOCK, SERIES M

1. Designation, Par Value and Number of Shares.

The designation of the series of preferred stock of the Federal National Mortgage Association (“Fannie Mae”) created by this resolution
shall be “4.75% Non-Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series M” (the “Series M Preferred Stock™), and the number of shares initially constituting
the Series M Preferred Stock is 8,000,000*. Shares of Series M Preferred Stock will have no par value and a stated value and liquidation
preference of $50 per share. The Board of Directors of Fannie Mae, or a duly authorized committee thereof, in its sole discretion, may reduce
the number of shares of Series M Preferred Stock, provided such reduction is not below the number of shares of Series M Preferred Stock then
outstanding.

2. Dividends.

(a) Holders of record of Series M Preferred Stock (each individually a “Holder”, or collectively the “Holders”) will be entitled to receive,
when, as and if declared by the Board of Directors of Fannie Mae, or a duly authorized committee thereof, in its sole discretion out of funds
legally available therefor, non-cumulative quarterly cash dividends which will accrue from and including June 10, 2003 and will be payable on
March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 31 of each year (each, a “Dividend Payment Date”), commencing September 30, 2003 at the
annual rate of $2.375 per share or 4.75% of the stated value and liquidation preference of $50 per share (without taking into account any
adjustments referred to in clause (b) below). If a Dividend Payment Date is not a Business Day, the related dividend (if declared) will be paid
on the next succeeding Business Day with the same force and effect as though paid on the Dividend Payment Date, without any increase to
account for the period from such Dividend Payment Date through the date of actual payment. A “Business Day” shall mean any day other than
a Saturday, Sunday, or a day on which banking institutions in New York, New York are authorized by law to close. Dividends will be paid to
Holders on the record date fixed by the Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee thereof, which may not be earlier than 45 days or
later than 10 days prior to the applicable Dividend Payment Date. If declared, the initial dividend, which will be for the period from and
including June 10, 2003 to but excluding September 30, 2003, will be $0.7257 per share and will be payable on September 30, 2003 and,
thereafter, if declared, quarterly dividends will be $0.5938 per share. After the initial dividend, the dividend period relating to a Dividend
Payment Date will be the period from and including the preceding Dividend Payment Date to but excluding the related Dividend Payment
Date. If Fannie Mae redeems the Series M Preferred Stock, the dividend that would otherwise be payable for the then-current quarterly
dividend period accrued to but excluding the date of redemption will be included in the redemption price of the shares redeemed and will not
be separately payable. Dividends payable on the Series M Preferred Stock for any period greater or less than a full dividend period will be
computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. The amount of dividends per share payable at redemption will be
rounded to the fourth digit after the decimal point. (If the fifth digit to the right of the decimal point is five or greater, the fourth digit will be
rounded up by one.)

(b) No dividend (other than dividends or distributions paid in shares of, or options, warrants or rights to subscribe for or purchase shares of,
the common stock of Fannie Mae or any other stock of Fannie Mae ranking, as to the payment of dividends and the distribution of assets upon
dissolution, liquidation or winding up of Fannie Mae, junior to the Series M Preferred Stock) may be declared or paid or set apart for payment
on Fannie Mae’s common stock (or on any other stock of Fannie Mae ranking, as to the payment of dividends, junior to the Series M Preferred
Stock) unless dividends have been declared and paid or set apart (or ordered to be set apart) on the Series M Preferred Stock for the then-
current quarterly dividend period; provided, however, that the foregoing dividend preference shall not be cumulative and shall not in

* Plus up to 1,200,000 additional shares pursuant to the Underwriters’ overallotment option.

1



any way create any claim or right in favor of the Holders of Series M Preferred Stock in the event that dividends have not been declared or paid
or set apart (or ordered to be set apart) on the Series M Preferred Stock in respect of any prior dividend period. If the full dividend on the

Series M Preferred Stock is not paid for any quarterly dividend period, the Holders of Series M Preferred Stock will have no claim in respect of
the unpaid amount so long as no dividend (other than those referred to above) is paid on Fannie Mae’s common stock (or any other stock of
Fannie Mae ranking, as to the payment of dividends, junior to the Series M Preferred Stock) for such dividend period.

(c) The Board of Directors of Fannie Mae, or a duly authorized committee thereof, may, in its discretion, choose to pay dividends on the
Series M Preferred Stock without the payment of any dividends on Fannie Mae’s common stock (or any other stock of Fannie Mae ranking, as
to the payment of dividends, junior to the Series M Preferred Stock).

(d) No full dividends shall be declared or paid or set apart for payment on any stock of Fannie Mae ranking, as to the payment of dividends,
on a parity with the Series M Preferred Stock for any period unless full dividends have been declared and paid or set apart for payment on the
Series M Preferred Stock for the then-current quarterly dividend period. When dividends are not paid in full upon the Series M Preferred Stock
and all other classes or series of stock of Fannie Mae, if any, ranking, as to the payment of dividends, on a parity with the Series M Preferred
Stock, all dividends declared upon shares of Series M Preferred Stock and all such other stock of Fannie Mae will be declared pro rata so that
the amount of dividends declared per share of Series M Preferred Stock and all such other stock will in all cases bear to each other the same
ratio that accrued dividends per share of Series M Preferred Stock (but without, in the case of any noncumulative preferred stock, accumulation
of unpaid dividends for prior dividend periods) and such other stock bear to each other.

(e) No dividends may be declared or paid or set apart for payment on any shares of Series M Preferred Stock if at the same time any arrears
exist or default exists in the payment of dividends on any outstanding class or series of stock of Fannie Mae ranking, as to the payment of
dividends, prior to the Series M Preferred Stock.

(f) Holders of Series M Preferred Stock will not be entitled to any dividends, whether payable in cash or property, other than as herein
provided and will not be entitled to interest, or any sum in lieu of interest, in respect of any dividend payment.

3. Optional Redemption.

(a) The Series M Preferred Stock shall not be redeemable prior to June 10, 2008. On or after that date, subject to the notice provisions set
forth in Section 3(b) below and subject to any further limitations which may be imposed by law, Fannie Mae may redeem the Series M
Preferred Stock, in whole or in part, at any time or from time to time, out of funds legally available therefor, at the redemption price of $50 per
share plus an amount equal to the amount of the dividend (whether or not declared) for the then-current quarterly dividend period accrued to
but excluding the date of such redemption, but without accumulation of unpaid dividends on the Series M Preferred Stock for prior dividend
periods. If less than all of the outstanding shares of Series M Preferred Stock are to be redeemed, Fannie Mae will select the shares to be
redeemed from the outstanding shares not previously called for redemption by lot or pro rata (as nearly as possible) or by any other method that
the Board of Directors of Fannie Mae, or a duly authorized committee thereof, in its sole discretion deems equitable.

(b) In the event Fannie Mae shall redeem any or all of the Series M Preferred Stock as aforesaid, Fannie Mae will give notice of any such
redemption to Holders of Series M Preferred Stock not less than 30 days prior to the date fixed by the Board of Directors of Fannie Mae, or
duly authorized committee thereof, for such redemption. Each such notice will state: (1) the number of shares of Series M Preferred Stock to be
redeemed and, if fewer than all of the shares of Series M Preferred Stock held by a Holder are to be redeemed, the number of shares to be
redeemed from such Holder; (2) the redemption price; (3) the redemption date; and (4) the place at which a Holder’s certificate(s) representing
shares of Series M Preferred Stock must be presented upon such redemption. Failure to give notice, or any defect in the notice,
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to any Holder of Series M Preferred Stock shall not affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of shares of any other Holder of
Series M Preferred Stock being redeemed.

(c) Notice having been given as herein provided, from and after the redemption date, dividends on the Series M Preferred Stock called for
redemption shall cease to accrue and such Series M Preferred Stock called for redemption will no longer be deemed outstanding, and all rights
of the Holders thereof as registered holders of such shares of Series M Preferred Stock will cease. Upon surrender in accordance with said
notice of the certificate(s) representing shares of Series M Preferred Stock so redeemed (properly endorsed or assigned for transfer, if the
Board of Directors of Fannie Mae, or a duly authorized committee thereof, shall so require and the notice shall so state), such shares shall be
redeemed by Fannie Mae at the redemption price aforesaid. Any shares of Series M Preferred Stock that shall at any time have been redeemed
shall, after such redemption, be cancelled and not reissued. In case fewer than all the shares represented by any such certificate are redeemed, a
new certificate shall be issued representing the unredeemed shares without cost to the Holder thereof.

(d) The Series M Preferred Stock will not be subject to any mandatory redemption, sinking fund or other similar provisions. In addition,
Holders of Series M Preferred Stock will have no right to require redemption of any shares of Series M Preferred Stock.

4. Liquidation Rights.

(a) Upon any voluntary or involuntary dissolution, liquidation or winding up of Fannie Mae, after payment or provision for the liabilities of
Fannie Mae and the expenses of such dissolution, liquidation or winding up, the Holders of outstanding shares of the Series M Preferred Stock
will be entitled to receive out of the assets of Fannie Mae or proceeds thereof available for distribution to stockholders, before any payment or
distribution of assets is made to holders of Fannie Mae’s common stock (or any other stock of Fannie Mae ranking, as to the distribution of
assets upon dissolution, liquidation or winding up of Fannie Mae, junior to the Series M Preferred Stock), the amount of $50 per share plus an
amount equal to the dividend (whether or not declared) for the then-current quarterly dividend period accrued to but excluding the date of such
liquidation payment, but without accumulation of unpaid dividends on the Series M Preferred Stock for prior dividend periods.

(b) If the assets of Fannie Mae available for distribution in such event are insufficient to pay in full the aggregate amount payable to Holders
of Series M Preferred Stock and holders of all other classes or series of stock of Fannie Mae, if any, ranking, as to the distribution of assets
upon dissolution, liquidation or winding up of Fannie Mae, on a parity with the Series M Preferred Stock, the assets will be distributed to the
Holders of Series M Preferred Stock and holders of all such other stock pro rata, based on the full respective preferential amounts to which they
are entitled (but without, in the case of any noncumulative preferred stock, accumulation of unpaid dividends for prior dividend periods).

(c) Notwithstanding the foregoing, Holders of Series M Preferred Stock will not be entitled to be paid any amount in respect of a
dissolution, liquidation or winding up of Fannie Mae until holders of any classes or series of stock of Fannie Mae ranking, as to the distribution
of assets upon dissolution, liquidation or winding up of Fannie Mae, prior to the Series M Preferred Stock have been paid all amounts to which
such classes or series are entitled.

(d) Neither the sale, lease or exchange (for cash, shares of stock, securities or other consideration) of all or substantially all of the property
and assets of Fannie Mae, nor the merger, consolidation or combination of Fannie Mae into or with any other corporation or the merger,
consolidation or combination of any other corporation or entity into or with Fannie Mae, shall be deemed to be a dissolution, liquidation or
winding up, voluntary or involuntary, for the purposes of this Section 4.

(e) After payment of the full amount of the distribution of assets upon dissolution, liquidation or winding up of Fannie Mae to which they
are entitled pursuant to paragraphs (a), (b) and (c) of this Section 4, the Holders of Series M Preferred Stock will not be entitled to any further
participation in any distribution of assets by Fannie Mae.



5. No Conversion or Exchange Rights.

The Holders of shares of Series M Preferred Stock will not have any rights to convert such shares into or exchange such shares for shares of
any other class or classes, or of any other series of any class or classes, of stock or obligations of Fannie Mae.

6. No Pre-Emptive Rights.

No Holder of Series M Preferred Stock shall be entitled as a matter of right to subscribe for or purchase, or have any pre-emptive right with
respect to, any part of any new or additional issue of stock of any class whatsoever, or of securities convertible into any stock of any class
whatsoever, or any other shares, rights, options or other securities of any class whatsoever, whether now or hereafter authorized and whether
issued for cash or other consideration or by way of dividend.

7. Voting Rights; Amendments.
(a) Except as provided below, the Holders of Series M Preferred Stock will not be entitled to any voting rights, either general or special.

(b) Without the consent of the Holders of Series M Preferred Stock, Fannie Mae will have the right to amend, alter, supplement or repeal
any terms of this Certificate or the Series M Preferred Stock (1) to cure any ambiguity, or to cure, correct or supplement any provision
contained in this Certificate of Designation that may be defective or inconsistent with any other provision herein or (2) to make any other
provision with respect to matters or questions arising with respect to the Series M Preferred Stock that is not inconsistent with the provisions of
this Certificate of Designation so long as such action does not materially and adversely affect the interests of the Holders of Series M Preferred
Stock; provided, however, that any increase in the amount of authorized or issued Series M Preferred Stock or the creation and issuance, or an
increase in the authorized or issued amount, of any other class or series of stock of Fannie Mae, whether ranking prior to, on a parity with or
junior to the Series M Preferred Stock, as to the payment of dividends or the distribution of assets upon dissolution, liquidation or winding up
of Fannie Mae, or otherwise, will not be deemed to materially and adversely affect the interests of the Holders of Series M Preferred Stock.

(c) Except as set forth in paragraph (b) of this Section 7, the terms of this Certificate or the Series M Preferred Stock may be amended,
altered, supplemented, or repealed only with the consent of the Holders of at least two-thirds of the shares of Series M Preferred Stock then
outstanding, given in person or by proxy, either in writing or at a meeting of stockholders at which the Holders of Series M Preferred Stock
shall vote separately as a class. On matters requiring their consent, Holders of Series M Preferred Stock will be entitled to one vote per share.

(d) The rules and procedures for calling and conducting any meeting of Holders (including, without limitation, the fixing of a record date in
connection therewith), the solicitation and use of proxies at such a meeting, the obtaining of written consents, and any other aspect or matter
with regard to such a meeting or such consents shall be governed by any rules that the Board of Directors of Fannie Mae, or a duly authorized
committee thereof, in its discretion, may adopt from time to time, which rules and procedures shall conform to the requirements of any national
securities exchange on which the Series M Preferred Stock are listed at the time.

8. Additional Classes or Series of Stock.

The Board of Directors of Fannie Mae, or a duly authorized committee thereof, shall have the right at any time in the future to authorize,
create and issue, by resolution or resolutions, one or more additional classes or series of stock of Fannie Mae, and to determine and fix the
distinguishing characteristics and the relative rights, preferences, privileges and other terms of the shares thereof. Any such class or series of
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stock may rank prior to, on a parity with or junior to the Series M Preferred Stock as to the payment of dividends or the distribution of assets
upon dissolution, liquidation or winding up of Fannie Mae, or otherwise.

9. Priority.
For purposes of this Certificate of Designation, any stock of any class or series of Fannie Mae shall be deemed to rank:

(a) Prior to the shares of Series M Preferred Stock, either as to the payment of dividends or the distribution of assets upon dissolution,
liquidation or winding up of Fannie Mae, if the holders of such class or series shall be entitled to the receipt of dividends or of amounts
distributable upon dissolution, liquidation or winding up of Fannie Mae, as the case may be, in preference or priority to the Holders of shares of
Series M Preferred Stock.

(b) On a parity with shares of Series M Preferred Stock, either as to the payment of dividends or the distribution of assets upon dissolution,
liquidation or winding up of Fannie Mae, whether or not the dividend rates or amounts, dividend payment dates or redemption or liquidation
prices per share, if any, be different from those of the Series M Preferred Stock, if the holders of such class or series shall be entitled to the
receipt of dividends or of amounts distributable upon dissolution, liquidation or winding up of Fannie Mae, as the case may be, in proportion to
their respective dividend rates or amounts or liquidation prices, without preference or priority, one over the other, as between the holders of
such class or series and the Holders of shares of Series M Preferred Stock.

(c) Junior to shares of Series M Preferred Stock, either as to the payment of dividends or the distribution of assets upon dissolution,
liquidation or winding up of Fannie Mae, if such class shall be common stock of Fannie Mae or if the Holders of shares of Series M Preferred
Stock shall be entitled to the receipt of dividends or of amounts distributable upon dissolution, liquidation or winding up of Fannie Mae, as the
case may be, in preference or priority over the holders of such class or series.

(d) The shares of Preferred Stock of Fannie Mae designated “5.25% Non-Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series D” (the “Series D Preferred
Stock™), “5.10% Non-Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series E” (the “Series E Preferred Stock™), “Variable Rate Non-Cumulative Preferred
Stock, Series F” (the “Series F Preferred Stock™), “Variable Rate Non-Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series G” (the “Series G Preferred Stock™),
“5.81% Non-Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series H” (the “Series H Preferred Stock™), “5.375% Non-Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series I’ (the
“Series I Preferred Stock™), “Variable Rate Non- Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series J (the “Series J Preferred Stock™), “Variable Rate Non-
Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series K” (the “Series K Preferred Stock™) and “5.125% Non-Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series L (the
“Series L Preferred Stock”) shall be deemed to rank on a parity with shares of Series M Preferred Stock as to the payment of dividends and the
distribution of assets upon dissolution, liquidation or winding up of Fannie Mae. Accordingly, the holders of record of Series D Preferred
Stock, the holders of record of Series E Preferred Stock, the holders of record of Series F Preferred Stock, the holders of record of Series G
Preferred Stock, the holders of record of Series H Preferred Stock, the holders of record of Series I Preferred Stock, the holders of record of
Series J Preferred Stock, the holders of record of Series K Preferred Stock, the holders of record of Series L Preferred Stock and the holders of
record of Series M Preferred Stock shall be entitled to the receipt of dividends and of amounts distributable upon dissolution, liquidation or
winding up of Fannie Mae, as the case may be, in proportion to their respective dividend rates or amounts or liquidation prices, without
preference or priority, one over the other.

10. Transfer Agent, Dividend Disbursing Agent and Registrar.

Fannie Mae hereby appoints EquiServe Trust Company, N.A., as its initial transfer agent, dividend disbursing agent and registrar for the
Series M Preferred Stock. Fannie Mae may at any time designate an additional or substitute transfer agent, dividend disbursing agent and
registrar for the Series M Preferred Stock.



11. Notices.

Any notice provided or permitted by this Certificate of Designation to be made upon, or given or furnished to, the Holders of Series M
Preferred Stock by Fannie Mae shall be made by first-class mail, postage prepaid, to the addresses of such Holders as they appear on the books
and records of Fannie Mae. Such notice shall be deemed to have been sufficiently made upon deposit thereof in the United States mail.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, in the case of the suspension of regular mail service or by reason of any other cause
it shall be impracticable, in Fannie Mae’s judgment, to give notice by mail, then such notification may be made, in Fannie Mae’s discretion, by
publication in a newspaper of general circulation in The City of New York or by hand delivery to the addresses of Holders as they appear on
the books and records of Fannie Mae.

Receipt and acceptance of a share or shares of the Series M Preferred Stock by or on behalf of a Holder shall constitute the
unconditional acceptance by such Holder (and all others having beneficial ownership of such share or shares) of all of the terms and
provisions of this Certificate of Designation. No signature or other further manifestation of assent to the terms and provisions of this
Certificate of Designation shall be necessary for its operation or effect as between Fannie Mae and the Holder (and all such others).
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EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT, effective as of the 21st day of May, 1998, is by and between FANNIE MAE (the “Corporation”)
and FRANKLIN D. RAINES (“Employee”).

WITNESSETH THAT:

WHEREAS, the Corporation desires to employ Employee, from the date of this Agreement through December 31, 1998, as Chairman of
the Board-Designate and Chief Executive Officer-Designate of the Corporation and, commencing on January 1, 1999, as Chief Executive
Officer and Chairman of the Board, and Employee desires to serve in such capacities;

WHEREAS, the Corporation and Employee desire to set forth the terms and conditions of such employment; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Corporation (the “Board”) duly approved and authorized the terms of this Agreement for and on
behalf of the Corporation at a meeting held on July 21, 1998, at which meeting a quorum was present, and the Board authorized the Chairman
of the



Board to finalize and enter into this Agreement with Employee on behalf of the Corporation;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual promises and covenants herein contained, the parties hereto
agree as follows:

A. EMPLOYMENT TERM

1. Term and Duties

(a) The Corporation hereby agrees to employ Employee, and Employee hereby agrees to serve, as Chairman of the Board-Designate and
Chief Executive Officer-Designate of the Corporation, upon the terms and conditions herein contained, for a term commencing on May 21,
1998 (the “Effective Date”) and, subject to the terms hereof, terminating on December 31, 1998, and, as Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer of the Corporation, upon the terms and conditions herein contained, for a term commencing on January 1, 1999 and, subject
to the terms hereof, terminating on June 30, 2004 (the “Termination Date”). As used in this Agreement, “Employment Term” shall mean the
period from the Effective Date through the Termination Date, plus any extension of such period pursuant to the written agreement of the
parties.
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(b) During the Employment Term, Employee shall be nominated for election to the Board, and shall be identified as a nominee
recommended for election by the Board, at each annual meeting of the stockholders of the Corporation, beginning with the annual meeting held
in 1998.

(c) While serving as Chairman of the Board-Designate and Chief Executive Officer-Designate, Employee shall perform such duties for the
Corporation as may be determined from time to time by the Chairman of the Board, provided that such duties are reasonable and customary for
a chairman of the board-designate and chief executive officer-designate. While serving as Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer,
Employee shall perform such duties for the Corporation as may be determined from time to time by the Board, provided that such duties are
reasonable and customary for a chairman of the board and chief executive officer.

(d) The Corporation and Employee acknowledge that the Employment Term may be extended for an additional period by mutual written
agreement entered into at any time prior to the expiration of the Employment Term.
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2. Annual Salary

(a) Commencing on the Effective Date and, subject to Paragraphs 4, 5, 7 and 8 below, during the remainder of the Employment Term, the
Corporation shall pay to Employee an annual base salary of not less than $900,000 (such amount to be prorated for 1998), payable in equal
biweekly installments on the same dates the other senior officers of the Corporation are paid. Employee’s annual base salary payable pursuant
to this Paragraph 2 (including any increases in such salary approved by the Board pursuant to this Paragraph 2) is hereinafter referred to as
“Employee’s Basic Compensation.”

(b) The Board shall, from time to time, review Employee’s Basic Compensation and may increase (but in no event decrease) such
compensation for any year after 1999 by such amounts as the Board deems proper. The criteria that the Board may take into consideration in
providing for any such increases are the base compensation payable to chairmen and chief executive officers and other comparable officers of
comparable financial institutions and corporations, Employee’s ability and performance, any increases in the responsibilities assumed by
Employee, the success achieved by the Corporation, any increase or change

-



in the volume, character or variety of the business of the Corporation, increases in the cost of living and any other criteria the Board may deem
relevant.

3. Employee’s Rights Under Certain Plans and Other Benefits

(a) Executive Pension Plan. Employee and the Corporation acknowledge that the Corporation has previously designated Employee as a
participant in the Executive Pension Plan of the Federal National Mortgage Association (the “Executive Pension Plan”’). Notwithstanding any
of the provisions of the Executive Pension Plan to the contrary, the following provisions shall apply to Employee:

(6] Employee’s Pension Goal under the Executive Pension Plan shall at all times be equal to at least 60% of his High-Three Total
Compensation (as such terms are defined in the Executive Pension Plan as modified in this Agreement);

(ii) Employee’s Total Compensation and High-Three Total Compensation shall be determined solely by reference to Employee’s
Employment Term;
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(iii)

@iv)

As of the Effective Date, Employee shall be 60% vested in his Pension Goal in recognition of his prior service as Vice-Chairman
and in recognition of his agreement to serve in the positions described in this Agreement. Employee’s vesting in his Pension Goal
shall be increased an additional 10% per year in accordance with the provisions of the Executive Pension Plan, calculated on the
basis of Employee’s Hours of Service in each year, starting in 1998, so that, assuming that Employee’s employment under this
Agreement has not been terminated for any reason, Employee would become 100% vested in his Pension Goal in 2001.

At termination of his employment with the Corporation for any reason (including non-extension of the Employment Term) upon

and after reaching the age of 55, Employee shall commence to receive, within 30 days after the date his employment terminates,
his vested normal
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™)

retirement benefit (as determined under the Executive Pension Plan as modified in this Agreement and in the form provided in the
Executive Pension Plan). If Employee’s employment with the Corporation is terminated for any reason (including non-extension
of the Employment Term) prior to Employee’s reaching the age of 55, then, within 30 days after Employee’s reaching the age of
55, he shall commence to receive his vested normal retirement benefit (as determined under the Executive Pension Plan as
modified in this Agreement and in the form provided in the Executive Pension Plan). There shall be no actuarial adjustment to
any benefits payable under this Paragraph 3(a)(iv) by reason of the commencement of benefit payments prior to age 60.

If Employee dies after the commencement of payments to him under the Executive Pension Plan, his Surviving Spouse, as
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(vi)

such term is defined in such plan, shall receive (regardless of her age at the time of Employee’s death) monthly payments,
commencing on the first day of the month coincident with or next following the date of Employee’s death and continuing for her
lifetime, equal to 100% of the monthly amount which was being paid to Employee at the time of his death.

If Employee dies before the commencement of payments to him under the Executive Pension Plan, his Surviving Spouse, as such
term is defined in such plan, shall receive (regardless of her age at the time of Employee’s death) a monthly preretirement
surviving spouse’s benefit, commencing within 30 days of Employee’s death and continuing for her lifetime, equal to the
monthly normal retirement benefit that Employee would have received (under the Executive Pension Plan as modified in this
Agreement) had he



(vii)

terminated employment on the day prior to the date of his death and had he attained at least age 55 prior to his death. There shall
be no age-based actuarial reduction in the preretirement surviving spouse’s benefit, except that, where Employee dies before
reaching the age of 55, there shall be an age-based actuarial reduction based solely on the number of years, if any, that
Employee’s age at the date of his death is less than 55.

The Corporation may amend the Executive Pension Plan from time to time; provided, however, that no such amendment shall
adversely modify the vesting schedule or decrease Employee’s Pension Goal or the vested benefits to which Employee or his
Surviving Spouse, if any, would have been entitled under such plan, as modified in this Agreement, as in effect on the date hereof
or, if benefits are improved, as of the date of such improvement.
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(b) Stock Options. The Corporation has granted to Employee, as of May 21, 1998, a Nonqualified Stock Option (the “May 1998 Option”),
pursuant to the Fannie Mae Stock Compensation Plan of 1993 (the “1993 Stock Compensation Plan”), to purchase 358,830 shares of common
stock of the Corporation (the “Stock”) for a price equal to the Fair Market Value (as defined in the 1993 Stock Compensation Plan) of the
Stock on the date of such grant. The Corporation shall also grant to Employee, as of January 4, 1999 (the first business day following
January 1, 1999), a Nonqualified Stock Option (the “January 1999 Option”), pursuant to the 1993 Stock Compensation Plan, to purchase
195,000 shares of Stock for a price equal to the Fair Market Value (as defined in the 1993 Stock Compensation Plan) of the Stock on the date
of such grant. Employee shall be considered for additional grants of Nonqualified Stock Options or Incentive Stock Options at any time the
Corporation grants Nonqualified Stock Options or Incentive Stock Options to other officers. Notwithstanding the foregoing or any provision of
the 1993 Stock Compensation Plan or any successor plan, the following provisions shall apply to Employee:
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(i)

The May 1998 Option shall expire on May 21, 2008 and shall become exercisable with respect to 25% of the Stock covered
thereby on May 21 of each of 1999, 2000, 2001 and 2002, or earlier as provided in (iv) below, provided, however, that in the case
of termination pursuant to Paragraph 5(a) or 5(b) below, any portion of the May 1998 Option not exercisable on the date of such
termination shall become exercisable from and after the date of such termination only as provided in the 1993 Stock
Compensation Plan.

The January 1999 Option shall expire on January 2, 2009 and shall become exercisable with respect to 25% of the Stock covered
thereby on January 4 of each of 2000, 2001, 2002, and 2003, or earlier as provided in (iv) below, provided, however, that in the
case of termination pursuant to Paragraph 5(a) or 5(b) below, any portion of the January 1999 Option not exercisable on the date
of such termination shall become
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(iii)

@iv)

exercisable from and after the date of such termination only as provided in the 1993 Stock Compensation Plan.

Any additional Nonqualified Stock Option or any Incentive Stock Option granted to Employee shall become exercisable as
provided in the 1993 Stock Compensation Plan or any successor plan, or earlier as provided in (iv) below, provided, however,
that in the case of termination pursuant to Paragraph 5(a) or 5(b) below, any portion of such Nonqualified Stock Option or
Incentive Stock Option not exercisable on the date of such termination shall become exercisable from and after the date of such
termination only as provided in the 1993 Stock Compensation Plan or any successor plan.

In the event that (v) Employee is terminated without Cause pursuant to Paragraph 4(a) below, (w) Employee is terminated or

resigns within six (6) months following a Change of Control (as defined in Paragraph 4(d) below), (x) the Employment Term
expires
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because of the failure of the Corporation to extend this Agreement as set forth in Paragraph 4(a) below, (y) Employee is
terminated by reason of serious illness or disability pursuant to Paragraph 7(a) below, or (z) Employee dies while employed under
this Agreement, all of Employee’s Incentive Stock Options and Nonqualified Stock Options, including the May 1998 Option and
the January 1999 Option specified above in this Paragraph 3(b), shall become immediately exercisable.

Employee (or, in the case of serious illness, disability or death, the person or persons to whom Employee’s rights under any
Incentive Stock Option or any Nonqualified Stock Option pass by will or applicable law or, if no such person has such rights,
Employee’s executors or administrators) shall have the right to exercise any exercisable Incentive Stock Option and any
exercisable Nonqualified Stock Option, until it expires by its terms, regardless of
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whether Employee is employed by the Corporation at the time of such exercise, provided, however, that in the case of a
termination pursuant to Paragraph 5(a) or 5(b) below, all stock options, including the May 1998 Option and the January 1999
Option specified above in this Paragraph 3(b), may be exercised from and after the date of such termination only as provided in
the 1993 Stock Compensation Plan or any successor plan.

(c) Annual Incentive Plan. Employee’s Maximum Potential Award (as defined in the Federal National Mortgage Association Annual
Incentive Plan (the “Annual Incentive Plan”)) for each year during the Employment Term shall be at least 200% of Employee’s Basic
Compensation. The amount to be paid with respect to such award for each such year shall be determined by the extent to which any Corporate
Goals (as defined in the Annual Incentive Plan) are attained. Employee shall be entitled to participate in the Annual Incentive Plan for 1998 on
a pro rata basis. Notwithstanding any provision of the
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Annual Incentive Plan to the contrary, the following provisions shall apply to Employee:

(i)  In the event that (w) Employee is terminated without Cause pursuant to Paragraph 4(a) below, (x) Employee is terminated or
resigns within six (6) months following a Change of Control (as defined in Paragraph 4(d) below), (y) Employee is terminated by
reason of serious illness or disability pursuant to Paragraph 7(a) below or (z) Employee dies while employed under this
Agreement, the Corporation shall pay to Employee at the time of payment of awards to other participants in the Annual Incentive
Plan (regardless of whether Employee is employed by the Corporation on the date of payment) (A) the amount of any bonus
earned by and payable to Employee pursuant to the Annual Incentive Plan for a completed calendar year (with the period May 21-
December 31, 1998 being considered a completed calendar year for
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such purposes) but not yet paid by the Corporation for such year and (B) a pro rata award calculated assuming 100% attainment
of the target Corporate Goal specified by the Board for the Annual Incentive Plan for the year in which such termination or
resignation occurred.

(i)  In the event that the Employment Term expires because of the failure of the Corporation to extend this Agreement, the
Corporation shall pay to Employee the amount of any bonus earned by and payable to Employee pursuant to the Annual Incentive
Plan for a completed calendar year (with the period May 21-December 31, 1998 being considered a completed calendar year for
such purposes) but not yet paid by the Corporation for such year.

(d) Performance Shares. The Corporation has granted to Employee, as of May 21, 1998, Performance Shares pursuant to the 1993 Stock
Compensation Plan for the 1996-1998, 1997-1999 and 1998-2000 Award Periods (as defined in
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the 1993 Stock Compensation Plan) in amounts equal to 14,973, 20,251 and 55,132 Performance Shares, respectively. The Corporation shall
also grant to Employee, as of January 4, 1999 (the first business day following January 1, 1999), Performance Shares pursuant to the 1993
Stock Compensation Plan for the 1997-1999 and 1998-2000 Award Periods (as defined in the 1993 Stock Compensation Plan) in amounts
equal to 938 and 3,162 Performance Shares, respectively. The Employee shall be considered for additional grants of Performance Shares at any
time the Corporation grants Performance Shares to other employees. Notwithstanding any provision of the 1993 Stock Compensation Plan to
the contrary, the following provisions shall apply to Employee:

(1)  In the event that (w) Employee is terminated without Cause pursuant to Paragraph 4(a) below, (x) Employee is terminated or
resigns within six (6) months following a Change of Control (as defined in Paragraph 4(d) below), (y) the Employment Term
expires because of the failure of the Corporation to extend this Agreement or (z) Employee is terminated
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by reason of serious illness or disability pursuant to Paragraph 7(a) below, the Corporation shall pay to Employee, after the end of
each such Award Period, Actual Awards with respect to Performance Shares awarded for each Award Period of the Performance
Share Plan in which Employee has completed at least 18 months of service, in each case on a pro rata basis reflecting Employee’s
completed months of service in the Award Period, based on the actual achievement of Program Targets for the Award Period and
using as the Valuation Date (as defined in the 1993 Stock Compensation Plan) (A) in the case of a termination upon a Change in
Control, the date of such Change in Control, and (B) in the case of a termination without Cause, the failure of the Corporation to
extend the Employment Term or a termination because of serious illness or disability, the last day of the Award Period.
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(i)  In the event that Employee dies while employed under this Agreement, the Corporation shall pay to Employee’s designated
beneficiary or, if none, Employee’s estate as soon as is practicable after the date of Employee’s death, Actual Awards with
respect to Performance Shares awarded for each Award Period of the Performance Share Plan, in each case on a pro rata basis
reflecting the Board’s determination of the likelihood of the Corporation’s achievement of Program Targets for the Award Period
and using the date of death as the Valuation Date (as defined in the 1993 Stock Compensation Plan).

(e) Restricted Stock. In the event that (i) Employee is terminated without Cause pursuant to Paragraph 4(a) below, (ii) Employee is
terminated or resigns within six (6) months following a Change of Control (as defined in Paragraph 4(d) below), (iii) the Employment Term
expires because of the failure of the Corporation to extend this Agreement or (iv) Employee is terminated by reason of
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serious illness or disability pursuant to Paragraph 7(a) below, any grants of restricted stock made to Employee shall continue to vest in
accordance with the schedule included in each such grant through the end of the Employment Term, but any unvested shares at the end of the
Employment Term shall be forfeited. Upon the death of Employee, all grants of restricted stock made to Employee, not previously forfeited,
but not yet vested on the date of death, shall immediately vest. In the case of a termination pursuant to Paragraph 5(a) or 5(b) below, Employee
shall receive any restricted stock vested on or prior to the date of such termination, but shall forfeit any restricted stock not vested on the date
of such termination.

(f) Other Benefits. The Corporation shall also provide Employee with the following benefits:

(6] The Corporation shall reimburse Employee for actual expenses incurred by Employee while Employee is employed under this
Agreement in obtaining tax and investment assistance and advice.

(i)  The Corporation shall pay the legal expenses incurred by Employee in
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(iii)

@iv)

)

(vi)

connection with the negotiation of this Agreement.

The Corporation shall provide Employee with access to a car and driver for transportation relating to business purposes while
Employee is employed under this Agreement.

The Corporation shall, on no more than a yearly basis, pay or reimburse Employee for actual expenses incurred by Employee
while Employee is employed under this Agreement for a complete physical examination at a medical facility of his choice.

The Corporation shall pay or reimburse Employee for all reasonable travel expenses incurred by Employee’s spouse in
accompanying Employee on his trips made on behalf of the Corporation while Employee is employed under this Agreement.

While Employee is employed under this Agreement, the Corporation shall provide
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Employee, at its own expense, term life insurance in the face amount of $900,000.

(vii)  If Employee incurs a Reimbursable Expense, as described below, and the Corporation includes the amount of any reimbursement
for that expense on Employee’s Wage and Tax Statement, the Corporation agrees to pay to Employee, in addition to
reimbursement for the amount of the expense, any additional amount necessary to make Employee whole on an after-tax basis.
Reimbursable Expense means any expense for travel (including travel expenses of Employee’s spouse as described in this
Paragraph 3(f)), entertainment or other activity undertaken in connection with the performance of Employee’s duties for the
Corporation.

(viii)  In the event that (w) Employee is terminated without Cause pursuant to Paragraph 4(a) below, (x) Employee is terminated or
resigns within six (6)
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months following a Change of Control (as defined in Paragraph 4(d) below), (y) the Employment Term expires because of the
failure of the Corporation to extend this Agreement or (z) Employee is terminated by reason of serious illness or disability
pursuant to Paragraph 7(a) below, the Corporation shall continue to provide to Employee, until the later of (A) the expiration of
the Employment Term or (B) one year following the date of such termination, resignation or expiration, an office and secretary
and job assistance services, as appropriate to his position held on the last date of his employment under this Agreement.

(g) General Rights Under Benefit Plans. Nothing contained herein is intended to or shall be deemed to affect adversely any of Employee’s
rights as a participant under any long- or short-term bonus, stock option, restricted stock or other executive compensation plans, or under any
program of perquisites or disability, retirement, stock purchase, retirement savings, health, medical, life
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insurance, expense reimbursement or similar plans of the Corporation now or hereafter in effect. Employee shall at all times during the
Employment Term be entitled to participate in all long- or short-term bonus, stock option, restricted stock, and other executive compensation
plans, and in all perquisite programs and disability, retirement, stock purchase, thrift and savings, health, medical, life insurance, expense
reimbursement and similar plans of the Corporation which are from time to time in effect and in which other senior officers of the Corporation
generally are entitled to participate. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, Employee’s participation in such plans and programs
shall be in accordance with the provisions of such plans and programs applicable from time to time, it being the intent of the parties hereto that
nothing in this Agreement shall decrease the rights and benefits of Employee under any such plans and programs as may be in effect from time
to time. Except as specifically set forth in this Agreement, or as specifically permitted by the terms of any such plan or program, no right or
benefit under any such plan or program shall become vested or exercisable after the termination of Employee’s employment by the
Corporation. If for any reason any benefits payable
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pursuant to this Agreement cannot be paid under the Corporation’s employee benefit or executive compensation plans, such payments shall be
made out of the general assets of the Corporation.

4. Termination Without Cause, Termination or Resignation Upon a Change of Control or Failure to Extend

(a) Notwithstanding any other provision hereunder, the Corporation shall have the right to terminate Employee’s employment hereunder
without Cause (as defined in Paragraph 5(b) below) at any time for any reason in its sole discretion on not less than thirty (30) days’ prior
written notice to Employee. In the event that (i) the Corporation terminates Employee’s employment pursuant to the immediately preceding
sentence, (ii) Employee is terminated or resigns within six (6) months following a Change of Control (as defined in Paragraph 4(d) below) or
(iii) the Employment Term expires because of the failure of the Corporation to extend this Agreement, the Corporation shall, subject to
Paragraph 4(b) below, continue to pay Employee’s Basic Compensation to Employee at the rate in effect at the time of such termination,
resignation or expiration until the later of (A) the expiration of the Employment Term or (B) one year following the date of such
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termination, resignation or expiration. Employee shall, subject to Paragraph 4(b) below, continue to participate in all Employee Welfare
Benefit Plans (as such term is defined in Section 3(1) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, and the
regulations promulgated thereunder) maintained by the Corporation during the remainder of the Employment Term or until such later date as
may be expressly provided under the terms of any such plan.

(b) Following a termination or resignation pursuant to Paragraph 4(a) above or the expiration of the Employment Term because of the
failure of the Corporation to extend this Agreement, Employee shall have the duty, commencing on the date six (6) months after the date of
such termination, resignation or expiration, to seek other employment or to become self-employed; provided, however, that Employee shall not
be required to accept other employment or to become self-employed in any position not at least substantially equivalent (in terms of
importance, dignity and responsibilities) to his position last held pursuant to this Agreement. Any income received from such employment
(including self-employment but excluding service on boards of directors) after such six-month period shall reduce, on
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a dollar-for-dollar basis (but not below zero), the Corporation’s obligation to pay Employee’s Basic Compensation. Any employee benefits
provided to Employee in consideration of such employment after such six (6) month period shall relieve the Corporation of its obligation to
provide comparable benefits hereunder to the extent of the benefits so provided; provided, however, that Employee’s retirement benefit, if any,
pursuant to Paragraph 3(a) above shall not be reduced on account of any such income or benefits resulting from such employment.

(c) If at any time during the Employment Term, (i) there is a material reduction of Employee’s authority or any material change in
Employee’s functions, duties or responsibilities which would in any material way cause Employee’s position to become less important, (ii) the
Corporation shall require Employee to relocate his office outside the Washington, D.C. area, or (iii) the Corporation shall breach materially any
other material obligation under this Agreement, Employee shall have the right, upon not less than thirty (30) days’ written notice to the
Corporation, which notice must be given within four calendar months after the event giving rise to said right, to treat such event as a
termination by the Corporation of
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his employment without Cause pursuant to Paragraph 4(a) above for all purposes under this Agreement, and all of the provisions of this
Agreement applicable to such a termination without Cause shall be operative with respect to such termination.

(d) A “Change of Control” shall have occurred if there is a change in the composition of a majority of the Board of Directors elected by the
stockholders within twelve (12) months after any “person” (as defined in Sections 3(a)(9) and 13(d)(3) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
(the “Exchange Act”), as such sections are in effect on the Effective Date) is or becomes the “beneficial owner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3
under the Exchange Act, as such rule is in effect on the Effective Date) of securities representing 25% or more of the combined voting power
of the then outstanding securities of the Corporation.

5. Termination by Employee; Breach by Employee

(a) Notwithstanding any other provision hereunder, Employee shall have the right to terminate his employment by the Corporation at any
time for any reason in his sole discretion on not less than thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the Corporation. Upon receipt of any such
notice from Employee, the Corporation shall have the option,
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exercisable by giving Employee written notice within thirty (30) days of such receipt, to designate any date after the date of such notice to
Employee and prior to the expiration of the aforesaid notice period as the date on which Employee shall cease to be an officer and employee of
the Corporation, and the effective date of termination hereunder shall be any such earlier date so designated by the Corporation. In no event
shall the termination of Employee’s employment by the Corporation without Cause pursuant to Paragraph 4(a) above, Employee’s termination
or resignation within six (6) months following a Change of Control pursuant to Paragraph 4(a) above or the expiration of the Employment
Term because of the failure of the Corporation to extend this Agreement be deemed to be a termination by Employee pursuant to this
Paragraph 5(a).

(b) Notwithstanding any other provision hereunder, the Corporation may terminate Employee’s employment hereunder for “Cause,” which
shall mean that Employee has materially harmed the Corporation by, in connection with his service under this Agreement, engaging in
dishonest or fraudulent actions or willful misconduct, or performing his duties in a negligent manner. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
Employee shall not be deemed to have been
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terminated for Cause unless the Corporation shall have provided (i) reasonable notice to Employee setting forth the reasons for the
Corporation’s intention to terminate for Cause, (ii) where remedial action is feasible, a reasonable opportunity for such action, (iii) an
opportunity for Employee, together with his counsel, to be heard before the Board and (iv) Employee with a notice of termination stating that
Employee was guilty of the conduct set forth in this Paragraph 5(b) and specifying the particulars thereof in detail. No act or failure to act will
be considered “willful” unless it is done, or omitted to be done, by Employee in bad faith or without reasonable belief that his action or
omission was in the best interests of the Corporation.

(c) In the event of a termination pursuant to Paragraph 5(a) or 5(b) above, Employee shall be entitled to all of Employee’s Basic
Compensation which has accrued to the date of termination and any benefits or awards (whether of options, stock or other property) which
have vested prior to such date. The Corporation shall have no further obligations to Employee.

(d) In the event of a termination by Employee pursuant to Paragraph 5(a) above, during the period from
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the effective date of termination to the earlier of (i) the first anniversary thereof and (ii) the expiration of the Employment Term, Employee
shall not, directly or indirectly (x) Compete with the Corporation in the United States, (y) solicit any officer or employee of the Corporation or
any of its affiliates to engage in any conduct prohibited hereby for Employee or to terminate any existing relationship with the Corporation or
such affiliate or (z) assist any other person to engage in any activity in any manner prohibited hereby to Employee. As used herein, “Compete”
shall mean to engage directly or indirectly in any business, or to become connected directly or indirectly with any business or firm, if a
substantial part of such business or the business of any such firm involves transactions in what is commonly known as the secondary market in
residential mortgages; provided, however, that Employee shall not be deemed, directly or indirectly, to Compete with the Corporation solely by
virtue of Employee’s employment with any corporation or firm involved in transactions in what is commonly known as the secondary market
in residential mortgages so long as Employee himself does not participate in such corporation’s or firm’s involvement in such transactions.
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(e) The need to protect the Corporation against Employee’s competition, as well as the nature and scope of such protection, has been
carefully considered by the parties hereto in light of the uniqueness of Employee’s talent and his importance to the Corporation. Accordingly,
Employee agrees that, in addition to any other relief to which the Corporation may be entitled, the Corporation shall be entitled to seek and
obtain injunctive relief (without the requirement of a bond) from a court of competent jurisdiction for the purpose of restraining Employee
from any actual or threatened breach of the covenant contained in Paragraph 5(d) above. If for any reason a final decision of any court
determines that the restrictions under Paragraph 5(d) above are not reasonable or that consideration therefor is inadequate, such restrictions
shall be interpreted, modified or rewritten by such court to include as much of the duration, scope and geographic area identified in Paragraph 5
(d) above as will render such restrictions valid and enforceable.

6. Resignation as Board Member

In the event Employee ceases to be employed by the Corporation and Employee is then a member of the Board, Employee hereby agrees
that, unless otherwise requested by
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the Board, he shall submit his resignation as a member of the Board and of the Fannie Mae Foundation in writing on or before the date he
ceases to be an officer of the Corporation. If Employee fails or neglects to submit such resignations in writing, this Paragraph 6 may be deemed
by the Corporation to constitute Employee’s written resignation as a member of the Board and of the Fannie Mae Foundation effective on the
same date that Employee ceases to be employed by the Corporation.

B. DISABILITY

7. Disability

(a) In the event that, while employed under this Agreement, Employee is prevented from performing his duties hereunder by reason of
serious illness or disability, the Corporation may, on sixty (60) days’ prior written notice to Employee, terminate Employee’s employment. If,
within sixty (60) days of such notice, Employee recovers and is again able to perform his duties hereunder, such notice shall be void, and the
Employee’s employment shall not be terminated thereby. Upon the termination of Employee’s employment pursuant to this Paragraph 7(a), the
Corporation shall, subject to Paragraphs 7(b) and (c) below, continue
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to pay Employee’s Basic Compensation at the rate in effect at the time of such termination until the later of (A) the expiration of the
Employment Term or (B) one year following the date of such termination. Employee shall, subject to Paragraph 7(b) below, continue to
participate in all Employee Welfare Benefit Plans maintained by the Corporation and receive benefits to which he is entitled under such plans
during the remainder of the Employment Term or until such later date as may be expressly provided under the terms of any such plan.

(b) Employee may, in his sole discretion, after the date he ceases to be employed by the Corporation pursuant to Paragraph 7(a) above,
engage in regular employment (whether as the employee of another or as a self-employed person). Any income received from such
employment, including self-employment, shall reduce, on a dollar-for-dollar basis (but not below zero), the Corporation’s obligation to pay
Employee’s Basic Compensation under Paragraph 7(a) above. Any employee benefits provided to Employee in consideration of such
employment shall relieve the Corporation of its obligation to provide comparable benefits hereunder to the extent of the benefits so provided;
provided, however, that Employee’s retirement
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benefits, if any, pursuant to Paragraph 3(a) above shall not be reduced on account of any such income or benefits resulting from such
employment.

(c) If Employee becomes entitled to and receives disability benefits under any disability payment plan, including disability insurance, the
amount of Employee’s Basic Compensation otherwise payable by the Corporation to Employee pursuant to Paragraph 7(a) above shall be
reduced, on a dollar-for-dollar basis (but not below zero), by the amount of any such disability benefits received by him, but only to the extent
such benefits are attributable to premium payments made by the Corporation.

C.DEATH
8. Death

(a) In the event Employee dies while employed under this Agreement, the Corporation shall pay Employee’s designated beneficiary or, if
none, Employee’s estate, in one cash payment an amount equal to 200% of Employee’s Basic Compensation in effect on the date of his death.

(b) At all times while employed under this Agreement, Employee shall be covered at the Corporation’s expense under the Corporation’s
Executive Insurance Plan by
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a whole life insurance policy in a face amount equal to 200% of Employee’s Basic Compensation. In order to eliminate the income tax burden
on Employee by reason of the imputation of income as a result of such insurance coverage, the Corporation shall pay to Employee an amount
equal to the income taxes imposed on such imputed income plus the income taxes imposed on such payment. In the event this Agreement
terminates or expires other than pursuant to Paragraph 5(a) or 5(b) above, Employee may, pursuant to the terms of the insurance policy through
which such benefits are provided and the agreement between the Corporation and Employee entered into thereunder, acquire such insurance
policy by paying the Corporation an amount equal to the sum of all premium payments made by the Corporation on such policy, and the
Corporation shall pay to Employee an amount equal to the income taxes imposed on Employee with respect to such acquisition plus the income
taxes imposed on such payment. In the event Employee completes thirteen (13) years of service with the Corporation pursuant to this
Agreement, such insurance policy shall automatically be transferred to Employee pursuant to the terms of such policy and the agreement
between the Corporation and Employee entered into
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thereunder. In the event of any such transfer, in order to eliminate the income tax burden on Employee by reason of the income arising from
such transfer, the Corporation shall pay to Employee an amount equal to the income taxes imposed on such income plus the income taxes
imposed on such payment. Nothing contained herein shall reduce any benefit payable pursuant to Paragraph 3(a) above or under the terms of
any other qualified or nonqualified pension, executive compensation or welfare plan of the Corporation.

(c) Unless Employee’s employment shall have terminated pursuant to Paragraph 5(a) or 5(b) above, after Employee’s death at any time
during or after the expiration of the Employment Term, the Corporation shall continue the health and medical coverage elected by the
Employee, without direct premium payments by Employee’s family, for Employee’s surviving spouse for her life, and for his other dependents
so long as they remain dependents as defined in said health and medical plan.

D. MISCELLANEOUS

9. Payment of Certain Expenses

The Corporation agrees to pay promptly as incurred, to the fullest extent permitted by law, all legal fees and
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expenses which Employee may reasonably incur as a result of any contest by the Corporation, Employee or others of the validity or
enforceability of, or liability under, any provision of this Agreement (including as a result of any contest initiated by Employee about the
amount of any payment due pursuant to this Agreement), plus in each case interest on any delayed payment at the applicable federal rate
provided for in Section 7872(f)(2)(A) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended; provided, however, that the Corporation shall not be
obligated to make such payment with respect to any contest in which the Corporation prevails over Employee.

10. Secretary and Office

If Employee’s employment under this Agreement is terminated on or after his reaching age fifty-five (55), other than pursuant to
Paragraph 5(a) or 5(b) above, the Corporation shall provide to Employee, at any time Employee is not employed by any person on a full-time
basis, an office and secretary.
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11. Assignment by Employee

Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, the rights and benefits of Employee pursuant hereto are personal to him, and no
such right or benefit shall be subject to voluntary or involuntary alienation, assignment or transfer.

12. Funding Prohibitions

All payments to be made under this Agreement shall be paid from the general funds of the Corporation or from the funds set aside or
reserved for payment of the Corporation’s obligations under its employee benefit or executive compensation plans, if any. Employee shall have
no right, title or interest in or to any investments which the Corporation may make to aid it in meeting its obligations under this Agreement. All
such assets shall be the property solely of the Corporation and shall be subject to the claims of the Corporation’s unsecured general creditors.
To the extent Employee or any other person acquires a right to receive payments from the Corporation under this Agreement, such right shall
be no greater than the right of any unsecured general creditor of the Corporation and such person shall have only the unsecured

-39-



contractual agreement of the Corporation that such payments shall be made.

13. Disclosure of Information to the Corporation

In the event Paragraph 4 or 7 above becomes applicable, Employee or, in the event of Employee’s incapacity or death, his personal
representative shall make available to the Corporation on a confidential basis such records, documents and other information reasonably
necessary to enable the Corporation to verify the amount of income available to offset the payments otherwise due Employee pursuant to
Paragraph 4 or 7 above.

14. Nondisclosure of Confidential Information

Employee shall not, without the prior written consent of the Corporation, divulge, disclose or make accessible to any other person, firm,
partnership, corporation or other entity any Confidential Information pertaining to the business of the Corporation, except (i) while employed
by the Corporation, in the business of and for the benefit of the Corporation, or (ii) when required to do so by a court of competent jurisdiction,
by any governmental agency having supervisory authority over the
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business of the Corporation, or by any administrative body or legislative body (including a committee thereof) with purported or apparent
jurisdiction to order Employee to divulge, disclose or make accessible such information. For purposes of this Paragraph 14, “Confidential
Information” shall mean nonpublic information concerning the Corporation’s financial data, strategic business plans, product development (or
other proprietary product data), marketing plans and other nonpublic, proprietary and confidential information of the Corporation that is not
otherwise available to the public. Confidential Information, however, shall not include information the disclosure of which cannot reasonably
be expected to affect adversely the business of the Corporation to a material degree.

15. Waiver

The failure of either party hereto to insist upon strict compliance by the other party with any term, covenant or condition hereof shall not be
deemed a waiver of such term, covenant or condition, nor shall any waiver or relinquishment or failure to insist upon strict compliance of any
right or power hereunder at any one time
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or more times be deemed a waiver or relinquishment of such right or power at any other time or times.
16. Notice

Any notice required or desired to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be sufficient if in writing transmitted by hand delivery or sent
by prepaid courier or registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, to the addresses hereinafter set forth or to such other address as any party
hereto may designate in writing and transmit in such manner. Any such notice shall be deemed given when delivered, if transmitted by hand
delivery, 24 hours after deposit with a prepaid courier service or 72 hours after deposit in the United States mail, if sent by registered or
certified mail.

17. Applicable Law

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the District of Columbia without regard to any otherwise applicable conflict of laws
principles.
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18. Taxes

The Corporation shall deduct from all amounts payable under this Agreement all federal, state, local and other taxes required by law to be
withheld with respect to such payments.

19. Benefit

Except as is otherwise herein expressly provided, this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the Corporation, its
successors and assigns, and upon Employee, his spouse, heirs, executors and administrators; provided, however, that the obligations of
Employee hereunder shall not be delegated. The Corporation shall require any successor (whether direct or indirect, by purchase, merger,
reorganization, consolidation, acquisition of property or stock, liquidation, or otherwise) to all or a substantial portion of its assets, by
agreement in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to Employee, expressly to assume and agree to perform this Agreement in the same
manner and to the same extent that the Corporation would be required to perform this Agreement if no such succession had taken place.
Regardless of whether such an agreement is executed, this Agreement shall
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be binding upon any successor of the Corporation in accordance with the operation of law, and such successor shall be deemed the
“Corporation” for purposes of this Agreement.

20. Entire Agreement

The parties hereto agree that this Agreement contains the entire understanding and agreement between them and cannot be amended,
modified or supplemented in any respect except by an agreement in writing signed by both parties.

21. Arbitration

Except as to any controversy or claim which Employee elects, by written notice to the Corporation, to have adjudicated by a court of
competent jurisdiction, any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the breach hereof shall be settled by arbitration
in the District of Columbia in accordance with the laws of the District of Columbia. The arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with the
rules of the American Arbitration Association. The costs and expenses of the arbitrator(s) shall be borne by the Corporation.
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The award of the arbitrator(s) shall be binding upon the parties. Judgment upon the award rendered by the arbitrator(s) may be entered in any
court having jurisdiction.

22. Interpretation

Wherever reference is made herein to the “failure of the Corporation to extend this Agreement,” such a failure shall be deemed to have
occurred if and only if the Corporation either notifies Employee that it does not desire to extend this Agreement or that it desires to do so only
on terms in the aggregate materially less favorable to Employee than those contained herein. If the Corporation notifies Employee it desires to
extend this Agreement on terms that are in the aggregate substantially equivalent to or more favorable to Employee than those contained
herein, any nonextension shall not be deemed to be a “failure of the Corporation to extend this Agreement.”

23. Severability

It is the intent and understanding of each party hereto that, if any term, restriction, covenant, or promise is found to be invalid or otherwise
unenforceable, then
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such term, restriction, covenant, or promise shall not thereby be terminated but shall be deemed modified to the extent necessary to make it
enforceable and, if it cannot be so modified, shall be deemed amended to delete therefrom such provision or portion found to be invalid or
unenforceable, such modification or amendment in any event to apply only with respect to the operation of this Agreement in the particular

jurisdiction in which such finding is made.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Corporation has caused its name to be ascribed to this Agreement by its duly authorized representative and
Employee has executed this Agreement, each as of the day and the year first above written.

Attest: FANNIE MAE
3900 Wisconsin Avenue, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20016

/s/ Elizabeth Berg By: /s/James A. Johnson

Chairman of the Board
of Directors

Witness:

/s/ Equilla Ford /s/ Franklin D. Raines

FRANKLIN D. RAINES
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EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT, effective as of the 23rd day of February, 2000, is by and between FANNIE MAE (the
“Corporation”) and DANIEL H. MUDD (“Employee”).

WITNESSETH THAT:

WHEREAS, the Corporation desires to employ Employee as Vice Chairman of the Board and Chief Operating Officer of the Corporation,
and Employee desires to serve in such capacity;

WHEREAS, the Corporation and Employee desire to set forth the terms and conditions of such employment; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Corporation (the “Board”) duly approved and authorized the terms of this Agreement for and on
behalf of the Corporation at a meeting held on February 23, 2000, at which meeting a quorum was present, and the Board authorized the
Chairman of the Board to finalize and enter into this Agreement with Employee on behalf of the Corporation;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual promises and covenants herein contained, the parties hereto agree
as follows:



A. EMPLOYMENT TERM

1. Term and Duties

(a) The Corporation hereby agrees to employ Employee, and Employee hereby agrees to serve, as Vice Chairman of the Board and Chief
Operating Officer of the Corporation, upon the terms and conditions herein contained, for a term commencing on February 23, 2000 (the
“Effective Date”) and, subject to the terms hereof, terminating on June 30, 2004 (the “Termination Date”). As used in this Agreement,
“Employment Term” shall mean the period from the Effective Date until the Termination Date, plus any extension of such period pursuant to
the written agreement of the parties.

(b) The Corporation hereby agrees that, as of February 23, 2000, Employee shall become a member of the Board. During the Employment
Term (including any extension thereof), Employee shall be nominated for election to the Board, and shall be identified as a nominee
recommended for election by the Board, at each annual meeting of the stockholders of the Corporation, beginning with the annual meeting held
in 2000.

(c) Employee shall perform such duties for the Corporation as may be determined from time to time by the Chairman of the Board, provided
that such duties are reasonable and customary for a corporate vice chairman and chief operating officer.

(d) The Corporation and Employee acknowledge that the Employment Term may be extended for an additional period by mutual written
agreement entered into at any time prior to the expiration of the Employment Term.
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2. Annual Salary; Certain Reimbursements and Fringe Benefits

(a) Commencing on the Effective Date and, subject to Paragraphs 4, 5, 7 and 8 below, during the remainder of the Employment Term, the
Corporation shall pay to Employee an annual base salary of not less than $625,170 (such amount being prorated for 2000), payable in equal
biweekly installments on the same dates the other senior officers of the Corporation are paid. Employee’s annual base salary payable pursuant
to this Paragraph 2 (including any increases in such salary approved by the Board pursuant to this Paragraph 2) is hereinafter referred to as
“Employee’s Basic Compensation.”

(b) The Board shall, from time to time, review Employee’s Basic Compensation and may increase (but in no event decrease) such
compensation for any year after 2000 by such amounts as the Board deems proper. The criteria that the Board may take into consideration in
providing for any such increases are the recommendation of the Chairman of the Board, the base compensation payable to vice chairmen or
chief operating officers and other comparable officers of comparable financial institutions and corporations, Employee’s ability and
performance, any increases in the responsibilities assumed by Employee, the success achieved by the Corporation, any increase or change in
the volume, character or variety of the business of the Corporation, increases in the cost of living and any other criteria the Board may deem
relevant.

(c) The Corporation shall reimburse Employee for actual expenses incurred by Employee while Employee is employed under this
Agreement or any successor agreement in obtaining tax and investment assistance and advice; provided, however, that in no event shall the
Corporation be obligated to reimburse Employee under this Paragraph 2(c) for more than $25,000 for expenses incurred in any calendar year.
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(d) The Corporation shall provide Employee with access to a car and driver for transportation relating to business purposes while Employee
is employed under this Agreement or any successor agreement on the same terms as the other members of the Office of the Chairman.

3. Employee’s Rights Under Certain Plans

(a) Executive Pension Plan. The Corporation hereby designates Employee as a participant in the Executive Pension Plan of the Federal
National Mortgage Association (the “Executive Pension Plan”) with a Pension Goal at all times equal to no less than 50% of his High-Three
Total Compensation (as such terms are defined in the Executive Pension Plan), as of the Effective Date. The Corporation may amend the
Executive Pension Plan from time to time; provided, however, that no such amendment shall adversely modify the vesting schedule or decrease
Employee’s Pension Goal or the vested benefits to which Employee or his surviving spouse, if any, would have been entitled under such plan
as in effect on the date hereof or, if benefits are improved, as of the date of such improvement.

(b) Stock Options. The Corporation shall grant the following stock options to Employee.

(i) The Corporation shall grant to Employee, as of February 23, 2000, a Nonqualified Stock Option (the “Option”), pursuant to the
Federal National Mortgage Association Stock Compensation Plan of 1993 (the “1993 Stock Compensation Plan”), to purchase
114,855 shares of common stock of the Corporation (the “Stock™)
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for a price equal to the Fair Market Value (as defined in such plan) of the Stock on the date of such grant. The Option shall
expire on February 23, 2010 and shall become exercisable with respect to 25% of the Stock covered thereby on February 23, of
each of 2001, 2002, 2003 and 2004; provided, in each case, that Employee is still employed by the Corporation on such date.
Notwithstanding the foregoing or any provision of the 1993 Stock Compensation Plan to the contrary, in the event that (v)
Employee is terminated without Cause pursuant to Paragraph 4(a) below, (w) Employee is terminated or resigns within six

(6) months following a Change of Control (as defined in Paragraph 4(d) below), (x) the Employment Term expires because of
the failure of the Corporation to extend this Agreement or any successor agreement, (y) Employee is terminated by reason of
serious illness or disability pursuant to Paragraph 7(a) below or (z) Employee dies while employed under this Agreement or
any successor agreement, Employee (or, in the case of serious illness, disability or death, the person or persons to whom
Employee’s rights under the Option pass by will or applicable law or, if no such person has such rights, Employee’s executors
or administrators) shall be entitled to exercise the Option with respect to 100% of the Stock covered thereby until February 23,
2010.
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(i) The Corporation shall grant to Employee, as of February 23, 2000, an Earnings Per Share Challenge Option (“EPS Option”™),
pursuant to the 1993 Stock Compensation Plan, to purchase 116,710 shares of stock for a price equal to the Fair Market Value
(as defined in such plan) of the Stock on the date of such grant. The EPS Option shall expire on January 18, 2010. If the
Corporation’s earnings per share for 2003 is $6.46 or greater, the EPS Option shall become exercisable with respect to all of the
Stock covered thereby on the date of the Corporation’s January 2004 Board meeting; however, if the Corporation’s earnings
per share for 2003 is less than $6.46, the EPS Option shall become exercisable with respect to 25% of the Stock covered
thereby on January 18 of each 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008; provided, in each case, that Employee is still employed by the
Corporation on such date. Notwithstanding the foregoing or any provision of the 1993 Stock Compensation Plan to the
contrary, in the event that (v) Employee is terminated without Cause pursuant to Paragraph 4(a) below, (w) Employee is
terminated or resigns within six (6) months following a Change of Control (as defined in Paragraph 4(d) below), (x) the
Employment Term expires because of the failure of the Corporation to extend this Agreement or any successor agreement,

(y) Employee is terminated by reason of serious illness or disability pursuant to Paragraph 7(a) below or (z) Employee dies
while employed under
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this Agreement or any successor agreement, Employee (or, in the case of serious illness, disability or death, the person or
persons to whom Employee’s rights under the EPS Option pass by will or applicable law or, if no such person has such rights,
Employee’s executors or administrators) shall be entitled to exercise the EPS Option with respect to 100% of the Stock covered
thereby until January 18, 2010.

(c) Annual Incentive Plan. Employee’s Maximum Potential Award (as defined in the Federal National Mortgage Association Annual
Incentive Plan (the “Annual Incentive Plan”)) for each year during the Employment Term shall be 137.5% of Employee’s Basic Compensation.
The amount to be paid with respect to such award for each such year shall be determined by the extent to which any Corporate Goals (as
defined in the Annual Incentive Plan) are attained. Employee shall be entitled to participate in the Annual Incentive Plan for 2000 on a pro rata
basis. Notwithstanding any provision of the Annual Incentive Plan to the contrary, the following provisions shall apply to Employee:

(i) In the event that (x) Employee is terminated without Cause pursuant to Paragraph 4(a) below, (y) Employee is terminated or
resigns within six (6) months following a Change of Control (as defined in Paragraph 4(d) below) or (z) Employee is
terminated by reason of serious illness, disability pursuant to Paragraph 7(a) below, or death, the Corporation shall pay to
Employee at the time of payment of awards to other participants in the Plan (A) the amount of any bonus earned by and
payable to Employee pursuant



to the Annual Incentive Plan for a completed calendar year (with the period February 23-December 31, 2000 being considered
a completed calendar year for such purposes) but not yet paid by the Corporation for such year and (B) an award calculated
assuming 100% attainment of the target corporate goal specified by the Board for the Annual Incentive Plan for the year in
which such termination or resignation occurred.

(ii) In the event that the Employment Term expires because of the failure of the Corporation to extend this Agreement or any
successor agreement, the Corporation shall pay to Employee the amount of any bonus earned by and payable to Employee
pursuant to the Annual Incentive Plan for a completed calendar year (with the period February 23-December 31, 2000 being
considered a completed calendar year for such purposes) but not yet paid by the Corporation for such year.

(d) Restricted Stock. The Corporation shall grant to Employee, as of February 23, 2000, 25,000 shares of Restricted Common Stock
(“Restricted Stock™) pursuant to the 1993 Stock Compensation Plan. Twenty percent (20%) of such shares of Restricted Stock shall vest, and
the Restricted Period applicable to such shares shall end, on February 23 in each of 2001, 2002, 2003, 2004 and 2005; provided, in each case,
that Employee is still employed by the Corporation under this Agreement or any successor agreement on such date. Notwithstanding the
foregoing or any provision of the 1993
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Stock Compensation Plan to the contrary, the following provisions shall apply to Employee:

®

(i)

In the event that (w) Employee is terminated without Cause pursuant to Paragraph 4(a) below, (x) Employee is terminated or
resigns within six (6) months following a Change of Control (as defined in Paragraph 4(d) below), (y) the Employment Term
expires because of the failure of the Corporation to extend this Agreement or any successor agreement or (z) Employee is
terminated by reason of serious illness or disability pursuant to Paragraph 7(a) below, Employee’s rights with respect to

(A) shares of Restricted Stock awarded on February 23, 2000 shall become immediately vested and the Restricted Period
applicable to all such shares shall end in accordance with the terms of the 1993 Stock Compensation Plan and (B) shares of
Restricted Stock awarded after February 23, 2000 shall continue to vest and the Restricted Period applicable to such shares
shall end in accordance with the schedule included in each such grant through the end of the Employment Term.

In the event that Employee dies while employed under this Agreement or any successor agreement, Employee’s rights with
respect to all shares of Restricted Stock shall become immediately vested and the Restricted Period applicable to such shares
shall end
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in accordance with the terms of the 1993 Stock Compensation Plan.

(e) Performance Shares. The Corporation shall grant to Employee, as of February 23, 2000, Performance Shares pursuant to the 1993 Stock
Compensation Plan for the 1998-2000, 1999-2001 and 2000-2002 Award Periods (as defined in the 1993 Stock Compensation Plan) in
amounts equal to 7,028, 16,152 and 34,620 Performance Shares, respectively. The 7,028 Performance Shares represent a proration of a full
24,610 Performance Share Grant for the 1998-2000 Award Period, prorated to reflect Employee’s employment by the Corporation for a portion
(313 days) of such three-year Award Period. The 16,152 Performance Shares represent a proration of a full 26,110 Performance Share grant for
the 1999-2001 Award Period, prorated to reflect Employee’s employment by the Corporation for a portion (678 days) of such three-year
Award Period. The grant of 34,620 Performance Shares for the 2000-2002 Award Period has not been prorated. If grants are made to other
Participants for future Award Periods, Employee shall likewise be awarded a grant for each such future Award Period. Notwithstanding any
provision of the 1993 Stock Compensation Plan to the contrary, the following provisions shall apply to Employee:

(1) In the event that (w) Employee is terminated without Cause pursuant to Paragraph 4(a) below, (x) Employee is terminated or
resigns within six (6) months following a Change of Control (as defined in Paragraph 4(d) below), (y) the Employment Term
expires because of the failure of the Corporation to extend this Agreement or any successor agreement or (z) Employee is
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(i)

terminated by reason of serious illness or disability pursuant to Paragraph 7(a) below, the Corporation shall pay to Employee,
after the end of each such Award Period, Actual Awards with respect to Performance Shares previously awarded for each
Award Period of the Performance Share Plan in which Employee has completed at least 18 months of service, in each case on a
pro rata basis reflecting Employee’s completed months of service in the Award Period, based on the actual achievement of
Program Targets for the Award Period and using as the Valuation Date (as defined in the 1993 Stock Compensation Plan)

(A) in the case of a termination upon a Change in Control, the date of such Change in Control, and (B) in the case of a
termination without Cause, the failure of the Corporation to extend the Employment Term or a termination because of serious
illness or disability, the last day of the Award Period.

In the event that Employee dies while employed under this Agreement or any successor agreement, the Corporation shall pay to
Employee’s designated beneficiary or, if none, Employee’s estate as soon as is practicable after the date of Employee’s death,
Actual Awards with respect to Performance Shares previously awarded for (x) the 1999-2001 Award Period, if Employee’s
death occurs after February 22, 2001, and (y) each other Award Period of the Performance Share Plan in which Employee has
completed at least

-11-



18 months of service, in each case on a pro rata basis reflecting Employee’s completed months of service in the Award Period,
based on the Board’s determination of the likelihood of the Corporation’s achievement of Program Targets for the Award
Period and using the date of death as the Valuation Date (as defined in the 1993 Stock Compensation Plan).

(f) General Rights Under Benefit Plans. Nothing contained herein is intended to or shall be deemed to affect adversely any of Employee’s
rights as a participant under any long- or short-term bonus, stock option, restricted stock or other executive compensation plans, or under any
program of perquisites or disability, retirement, stock purchase, retirement savings, health, medical, life insurance, or similar plans of the
Corporation now or hereafter in effect. Employee shall at all times during the Employment Term be entitled to participate in all long- or short-
term bonus, stock option, restricted stock, and other executive compensation plans, and in all perquisite programs and disability, retirement
stock purchase, thrift and savings, health, medical, life insurance, and similar plans of the Corporation which are from time to time in effect
and in which other senior officers of the Corporation generally are entitled to participate. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement,
Employee’s participation in such plans and programs shall be in accordance with the provisions of such plans and programs applicable from
time to time, it being the intent of the parties hereto that nothing in this Agreement shall decrease the rights and benefits of Employee under
any such plans and programs as may be in effect from time to time. Except as specifically set forth in this Agreement, or as specifically
permitted by the terms of any such plan or program, no

-12-



right or benefit under any such plan or program shall become vested or exercisable after the termination of Employee’s employment by the
Corporation. If for any reason any benefits payable pursuant to this Agreement cannot be paid under the Corporation’s employee benefit or
executive compensation plans, such payments shall be made out of the general assets of the Corporation.

4. Termination Without Cause, Termination or Resignation Upon a Change of Control or Failure to Extend

(a) Notwithstanding any other provision hereunder, the Corporation shall have the right to terminate Employee’s employment hereunder
without Cause (as defined in Paragraph 5(b) below) at any time for any reason in its sole discretion on not less than ninety (90) days’ prior
written notice to Employee. In the event that (i) the Corporation terminates Employee’s employment pursuant to the immediately preceding
sentence, (ii) Employee is terminated or resigns within six (6) months following a Change of Control (as defined in Paragraph 4(d) below) or
(iii) the Employment Term expires because of the failure of the Corporation to extend this Agreement or any successor agreement, the
Corporation shall, subject to Paragraph 4(b) below, continue to pay Employee’s Basic Compensation to Employee at the rate in effect at the
time of such termination, resignation or expiration until the later of (A) the expiration of the Employment Term or (B) one year following the
date of such termination or resignation or notification to Employee of such failure to extend. Employee shall, subject to Paragraph 4(b) below,
continue to participate in all Employee Welfare Benefit Plans (as such term is defined in Section 3(1) of the Employee Retirement Income
Security Act of 1974, as amended, and
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the regulations promulgated thereunder) maintained by the Corporation during the remainder of the Employment Term or until such later date
as may be expressly provided under the terms of any such plan.

(b) Following a termination or resignation pursuant to Paragraph 4(a) above or the expiration of the Employment Term because of the
failure of the Corporation to extend this Agreement or any successor agreement, Employee shall have the duty, commencing on the date six
(6) months after the date of such termination, resignation or expiration, to seek other employment or to become self-employed; provided,
however, that Employee shall not be required to accept other employment or to become self-employed in any position not at least substantially
equivalent (in terms of importance, dignity and responsibilities) to his position as Vice Chairman of the Board and Chief Operating Officer of
the Corporation pursuant to this Agreement. Any income received from such employment (including self-employment but excluding service on
boards of directors) after such six-month period shall reduce, on a dollar-for-dollar basis (but not below zero), the Corporation’s obligation to
pay Employee’s Basic Compensation. Any employee benefits received by Employee in consideration of such employment after such six
(6) month period shall relieve the Corporation of its obligation to provide comparable benefits hereunder to the extent of the benefits so
received; provided, however, that Employee’s retirement benefit, if any, pursuant to Paragraph 3(a) above shall not be reduced on account of
any such income or benefits received from such employment.

(c) If at any time during the Employment Term, there is a material reduction of Employee’s authority as Vice Chairman of the Board and
Chief Operating Officer of
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the Corporation, or any material change in Employee’s functions, duties or responsibilities which would in any material way cause Employee’s
position to become less important or if Employee reports to anyone other than the Chairman of the Board or if the Corporation appoints a
person other than Employee to the position of President, Deputy Chairman or a similar position superior to Employee’s position and inferior to
the position of Chairman of Fannie Mae, with the understanding that a change in the functions reporting to him is not per se material, or if the
Corporation shall require Employee to relocate outside the Washington, D.C. area, Employee shall have the right, upon not less than ninety
(90) days’ written notice to the Corporation, which notice must be given within four calendar months after the event giving rise to said right, to
treat such event as a termination by the Corporation of his employment without Cause pursuant to Paragraph 4(a) above for all purposes under
this Agreement, and all of the provisions of this Agreement applicable to such a termination without Cause shall be operative with respect to
such termination.

(d) “Change of Control” shall have occurred if there is a change in the composition of a majority of the Board of Directors elected by the
stockholders within twelve (12) months after any “person” (as defined in Sections 3(a)(9) and 13(d)(3) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
(the “Exchange Act”), as such sections are in effect on the Effective Date) is or becomes the “beneficial owner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3
under the Exchange Act, as such rule is in effect on the Effective Date) of securities representing 25% or more of the combined voting power
of the then outstanding securities of the Corporation.
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5. Termination by Employee; Breach by Employee

(a) Notwithstanding any other provision hereunder, Employee shall have the right to terminate his employment by the Corporation at any
time for any reason in his sole discretion on not less than ninety (90) days’ prior written notice to the Corporation. Upon receipt of any such
notice from Employee, the Corporation shall have the option, exercisable by giving Employee written notice within thirty (30) days of such
receipt, to designate any date after the date of such notice to Employee and prior to the expiration of the aforesaid notice period as the date on
which Employee shall cease to be an officer and employee of the Corporation, and the effective date of termination hereunder shall be any such
earlier date so designated by the Corporation. In no event shall the termination of Employee’s employment by the Corporation without Cause
pursuant to Paragraph 4(a) above, Employee’s termination or resignation within six (6) months following a Change of Control pursuant to
Paragraph 4(a) above or the expiration of the Employment Term because of the failure of the Corporation to extend this Agreement or any
successor agreement be deemed to be a termination by Employee pursuant to this Paragraph 5(a).

(b) Notwithstanding any other provision hereunder, the Corporation may terminate Employee’s employment hereunder for “Cause,” which
shall mean that Employee has materially breached this Agreement by engaging in dishonest or fraudulent actions or willful misconduct or has
materially harmed the Corporation by performing his duties in a negligent manner. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Employee shall not be
deemed to have been terminated for Cause unless the Corporation shall have provided (i) reasonable notice to Employee setting forth the
reasons for the Corporation’s intention to terminate for Cause, (ii) an opportunity for Employee, together with his counsel, to be
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heard before the Board and (iii) Employee with a notice of termination stating that Employee was guilty of the conduct set forth in this
Paragraph 5(b) and specifying the particulars thereof in detail.

(c) In the event of a termination pursuant to Paragraph 5(a) or 5(b) above, Employee shall be entitled to all of Employee’s Basic
Compensation which has accrued to the date of termination and any benefits or awards (whether of options, stock or other property) which
have vested prior to such date. The Corporation shall have no further obligations to Employee.

(d) In the event of a termination by Employee pursuant to Paragraph 5(a) above, during the period from the effective date of termination to
the earlier of (i) the first anniversary thereof and (ii) the expiration of the Employment Term, Employee shall not, directly or indirectly
(x) Compete with the Corporation in the United States of America, (y) solicit any officer or employee of the Corporation or any of its affiliates
to engage in any conduct prohibited hereby for Employee or to terminate any existing relationship with the Corporation or such affiliate or
(z) assist any other person to engage in any activity in any manner prohibited hereby to Employee. As used herein, “Compete” shall mean to
engage directly or indirectly in any business, or to become connected directly or indirectly with any business or firm, if a substantial part of
such business or the business of any such firm involves transactions in what is commonly known as the secondary market in residential
mortgages; provided, however, that Employee shall not be deemed, directly or indirectly, to Compete with the Corporation solely by virtue of
Employee’s employment with any corporation or firm involved in transactions in what is commonly
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known as the secondary market in residential mortgages so long as Employee himself does not participate in such corporation’s or firm’s
involvement in such transactions.

(e) The need to protect the Corporation against Employee’s competition, as well as the nature and scope of such protection, has been
carefully considered by the parties hereto in light of the uniqueness of Employee’s talent and his importance to the Corporation. Accordingly,
Employee agrees that, in addition to any other relief to which the Corporation may be entitled, the Corporation shall be entitled to seek and
obtain injunctive relief (without the requirement of a bond) from a court of competent jurisdiction for the purpose of restraining Employee
from any actual or threatened breach of the covenant contained in Paragraph 5(d) above. If for any reason a final decision of any court
determines that the restrictions under Paragraph 5(d) above are not reasonable or that consideration therefor is inadequate, such restrictions
shall be interpreted, modified or rewritten by such court to include as much of the duration, scope and geographic area identified in Paragraph 5
(d) above as will render such restrictions valid and enforceable.

6. Resignation as Board Member

In the event Employee ceases to be employed by the Corporation and Employee is then a member of the Board, Employee hereby agrees
that, unless otherwise requested by the Board, he shall submit his resignation as a member of the Board and of the Fannie Mae Foundation in
writing on or before the date he ceases to be an officer of the Corporation. If Employee fails or neglects to submit such resignations in writing,
this Paragraph 6 may be deemed by the Corporation to constitute Employee’s written
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resignation as a member of the Board and of the Fannie Mae Foundation effective on the same date that Employee ceases to be an officer of the
Corporation.

B. DISABILITY
7. Disability

(a) In the event that, while employed under this Agreement or any successor agreement, Employee is prevented from performing his duties
hereunder by reason of serious illness or disability, the Corporation may, on sixty (60) days’ prior written notice to Employee, terminate
Employee’s employment. Upon the termination of Employee’s employment pursuant to this Paragraph 7(a), the Corporation shall, subject to
Paragraphs 7(b) and (c) below, continue to pay Employee’s Basic Compensation at the rate in effect at the time of such termination until the
later of (A) the expiration of the Employment Term or (B) one year following the date of such termination. Employee shall, subject to
Paragraph 7(b) below, continue to participate in all Employee Welfare Benefit Plans maintained by the Corporation during the remainder of the
Employment Term or until such later date as may be expressly provided under the terms of any such plan.

(b) Employee may, in his sole discretion, after the date he ceases to be employed by the Corporation pursuant to Paragraph 7(a) above,
engage in regular employment (whether as the employee of another or as a self-employed person). Any income received from such
employment, including self-employment, shall reduce, on a dollar-for-dollar basis (but not below zero), the Corporation’s obligation to pay
Employee’s Basic Compensation under Paragraph 7(a) above. Any employee benefits received by Employee in consideration of such
employment shall relieve the Corporation
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of its obligation to provide comparable benefits hereunder to the extent of the benefits so received; provided, however, that Employee’s
retirement benefits, if any, pursuant to Paragraph 3(a) above shall not be reduced on account of any such income or benefits resulting from
such employment.

(c) If Employee becomes entitled to and receives disability benefits under any disability payment plan, including disability insurance, the
amount of Employee’s Basic Compensation otherwise payable by the Corporation to Employee pursuant to Paragraph 7(a) above shall be
reduced, on a dollar-for-dollar basis (but not below zero), by the amount of any such disability benefits received by him, but only to the extent
such benefits are attributable to premium payments made by the Corporation.

C. DEATH
8. Death

(a) In the event Employee dies while employed under this Agreement or any successor agreement, the Corporation shall pay Employee’s
designated beneficiary or, if none, Employee’s estate, in one cash payment an amount equal to 100% of Employee’s Basic Compensation at the
rate in effect on the date of his death.

(b) At all times while employed under this Agreement or any successor agreement, Employee shall be covered at the Corporation’s expense
under the Corporation’s Executive Insurance Plan by a whole life insurance policy in a face amount equal to 200% of Employee’s Basic
Compensation. In order to eliminate the income tax burden on Employee by reason of the imputation of income as a result of such insurance
coverage, the Corporation shall pay to Employee an amount equal to the income taxes
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imposed on such imputed income plus the income taxes imposed on such payment. In the event this Agreement or any successor agreement
expires because of the failure of the Corporation to extend such agreement, Employee may, pursuant to the terms of the insurance policy
through which such benefits are provided and the agreement between the Corporation and Employee entered into thereunder, acquire such
insurance policy by paying the Corporation an amount equal to the sum of all premium payments made by the Corporation on such policy. In
the event Employee completes sixteen (16) years of service with the Corporation pursuant to this Agreement or any successor agreement, such
insurance policy shall automatically be transferred to Employee pursuant to the terms of such policy and the agreement between the
Corporation and Employee entered into thereunder. In the event of any such transfer, in order to eliminate the income tax burden on Employee
by reason of the income arising from such transfer, the Corporation shall pay to Employee an amount equal to the income taxes imposed on
such income plus the income taxes imposed on such payment. Nothing contained herein shall reduce any benefit payable pursuant to Paragraph
3(a) above or under the terms of any other qualified or nonqualified pension, executive compensation or welfare plan of the Corporation.

D. MISCELLANEOUS

9. Assignment by Employee

Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, the rights and benefits of Employee pursuant hereto are personal to him and no
such right or benefit shall be subject to voluntary or involuntary alienation, assignment or transfer.
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10. Funding Prohibitions

All payments to be made under this Agreement shall be paid from the general funds of the Corporation or from the funds set aside or
reserved for payment of the Corporation’s obligations under its employee benefit or executive compensation plans, if any. Employee shall have
no right, title or interest in or to any investments which the Corporation may make to aid it in meeting its obligations under this Agreement. All
such assets shall be the property solely of the Corporation and shall be subject to the claims of the Corporation’s unsecured general creditors.
To the extent Employee or any other person acquires a right to receive payments from the Corporation under this Agreement, such right shall
be no greater than the right of any unsecured general creditor of the Corporation and such person shall have only the unsecured contractual
agreement of the Corporation that such payments shall be made.

11. Disclosure of Information to the Corporation

In the event Paragraph 4 or 7 above becomes applicable, Employee or, in the event of Employee’s incapacity or death, his personal
representative shall make available to the Corporation on a confidential basis such records, documents and other information reasonably
necessary to enable the Corporation to verify the amount of income available to offset the payments otherwise due Employee pursuant to

Paragraph 4 or 7 above.

0.



12. Nondisclosure of Confidential Information

Employee shall not, without the prior written consent of the Corporation, divulge, disclose or make accessible to any other person, firm,
partnership, corporation or other entity any Confidential Information pertaining to the business of the Corporation, except (i) while employed
by the Corporation, in the business of and for the benefit of the Corporation, or (ii) when required to do so by a court of competent jurisdiction,
by any governmental agency having supervisory authority over the business of the Corporation, or by any administrative body or legislative
body (including a committee thereof) with purported or apparent jurisdiction to order Employee to divulge, disclose or make accessible such
information. For purposes of this Paragraph 12, “Confidential Information” shall mean nonpublic information concerning the Corporation’s
financial data, strategic business plans, product development (or other proprietary product data), marketing plans and other nonpublic,
proprietary and confidential information of the Corporation that is not otherwise available to the public. Confidential Information, however,
shall not include information the disclosure of which cannot reasonably be expected to affect adversely the business of the Corporation to a
material degree.

13. Waiver

The failure of either party hereto to insist upon strict compliance by the other party with any term, covenant or condition hereof shall not be
deemed a waiver of such term, covenant or condition, nor shall any waiver or relinquishment or failure to insist upon strict compliance of any
right or power hereunder at any one time or more times be deemed a waiver or relinquishment of such right or power at any other time or
times.
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14. Notice

Any notice required or desired to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be sufficient if in writing transmitted by hand delivery or sent
by prepaid courier or registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, to the addresses hereinafter set forth or to such other address as any party
hereto may designate in writing and transmit in such manner. Any such notice shall be deemed given when delivered, if transmitted by hand

delivery, 24 hours after deposit with a prepaid courier service or 72 hours after deposit in the United States mail, if sent by registered or
certified mail.

15. Applicable Law

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the District of Columbia without regard to any otherwise applicable conflict of laws
principles.

16. Taxes

The Corporation shall deduct from all amounts payable under this Agreement all federal, state, local and other taxes required by law to be
withheld with respect to such payments.

17. Benefit

Except as is otherwise herein expressly provided, this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the Corporation, its
successors and assigns, and upon
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Employee, his spouse, heirs, executors and administrators; provided, however, that the obligations of Employee hereunder shall not be
delegated.

18. Entire Agreement

The parties hereto agree that this Agreement contains the entire understanding and agreement between them and cannot be amended,
modified or supplemented in any respect except by an agreement in writing signed by both parties.

19. Interpretation

Wherever reference is made herein to the “failure of the Corporation to extend this Agreement or any successor agreement,” such a failure
shall be deemed to have occurred if and only if the Corporation either notifies Employee that it does not desire to extend this Agreement or any
successor agreement or that it desires to do so only on terms in the aggregate that are materially less favorable to Employee than those
applicable to Employee at the time of said notice. If the Corporation notifies Employee it desires to extend this Agreement or any successor
agreement on terms that are in the aggregate substantially similar to or more favorable than those applicable to Employee at the time of said
notice, any nonextension shall not be deemed to be a “failure of the Corporation to extend this Agreement or any successor agreement.”

20. Severability

Except as provided in Section 21, it is the intent and understanding of each party hereto that, if any term, restriction, covenant, or promise is
found to be invalid or
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otherwise unenforceable, then such term, restriction, covenant, or promise shall not thereby be terminated but shall be deemed modified to the
extent necessary to make it enforceable and, if it cannot be so modified, shall be deemed amended to delete therefrom such provision or portion
found to be invalid or unenforceable, such modification or amendment in any event to apply only with respect to the operation of this
Agreement in the particular jurisdiction in which such finding is made.

21. Regulatory Approved

The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that pursuant to Section 309(d) of the Federal National Mortgage Association Charter Act, as
amended by the Federal Housing Enterprises Financial Safety and Soundness Act of 1992 (as so amended, the “Act”), 12 U.S.C. 1723a(d), no
provision of this Agreement relating to the terms of Employee’s termination of employment shall be effective unless and until such provision
has been reviewed and approved by the Director (the “Director”) of the Office of Federal Housing Enterprise Oversight (“OFHEO”). The
parties therefore agree as follows:

(a) The Corporation shall promptly hereafter submit this Agreement to the Director for his review and approval of those terms hereof
relating to termination of employment and shall seek diligently to obtain such approval;

(b) No such provisions shall become effective unless and until the Director’s approval thereof shall have been obtained; and

(c) The Director’s approval of all such provisions shall be a condition subsequent to the continued effectiveness of this Agreement such that,
in the event that the Director shall reject or otherwise refuse to approve any such provision in a timely
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manner, this Agreement shall thereafter be voidable by Employee on thirty (30) days notice to the Corporation.

IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the Corporation has caused its name to be ascribed to this Agreement by its duly authorized representative, and
Employee has executed this Agreement, each as of the day and the year first above written.

Attest: FANNIE MAE
3900 Wisconsin Avenue, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20016

/s/ Rebecca Culverson By: /s/ Franklin D. Raines
Chairman of the Board of
Directors

Witness:

/s/ Thomas R. Nides /s/ Daniel H. Mudd

DANIEL H. MUDD
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EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT, effective as of the 1st day of July, 2003, is by and between FANNIE MAE (the “Corporation”) and
J. TIMOTHY HOWARD (“Employee”).

WITNESSETH THAT:

WHEREAS, the Corporation desires to employ Employee as Vice Chairman of the Board and Chief Financial Officer of the Corporation,
and Employee desires to serve in such capacity;

WHEREAS, the Corporation and Employee desire to set forth the terms and conditions of such employment; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Corporation (the “Board”) duly approved and authorized the terms of this Agreement for and on
behalf of the Corporation at a meeting held on June 27, 2003, at which meeting a quorum was present, and the Board authorized the Chairman
of the Board to finalize and enter into this Agreement with Employee on behalf of the Corporation;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual promises and covenants herein contained, the parties hereto agree
as follows:



A. EMPLOYMENT TERM

1. Term and Duties

(a) The Corporation hereby agrees to continue to employ Employee, and Employee hereby agrees to continue to serve, as Vice Chairman of
the Board and Chief Financial Officer of the Corporation, upon the terms and conditions herein contained, for a term commencing on July 1,
2003 (the “Effective Date”) and, subject to the terms hereof, terminating on June 30, 2004 (the “Termination Date”). As used in this
Agreement, “Employment Term” shall mean the period from the Effective Date until the Termination Date, plus any extension of such period
pursuant to the written agreement of the parties.

(b) Employee is currently a member of the Board. During the Employment Term (including any extension thereof), Employee shall be
nominated for election to the Board, and shall be identified as a nominee recommended for election by the Board, at each annual meeting of the
stockholders of the Corporation, beginning with the annual meeting held in 2004.

(c) Employee shall perform such duties for the Corporation as may be determined from time to time by the Chairman of the Board, provided
that such duties are reasonable and customary for a corporate vice chairman and chief financial officer.

(d) The Corporation and Employee acknowledge that the Employment Term may be extended for an additional period by mutual written
agreement entered into at any time prior to the expiration of the Employment Term.
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2. Annual Salary; Certain Reimbursements and Fringe Benefits

(a) Commencing with 2003 and, subject to Paragraphs 4, 5, 7 and 8 below, during the remainder of the Employment Term, the Corporation
shall pay to Employee an annual base salary at a rate of (starting May 20, 2003) not less than $675,000, payable in equal biweekly installments
on the same dates the other senior officers of the Corporation are paid. Employee’s annual base salary payable pursuant to this Paragraph 2
(including any increases in such salary approved by the Board pursuant to this Paragraph 2) is hereinafter referred to as “Employee’s Basic
Compensation.”

(b) The Board shall, from time to time, review Employee’s Basic Compensation and may increase (but in no event decrease) such
compensation for any year after 2003 by such amounts as the Board deems proper. The criteria that the Board may take into consideration in
providing for any such increases are the recommendation of the Chairman of the Board, the base compensation payable to vice chairmen or
chief financial officers and other comparable officers of comparable financial institutions and corporations, Employee’s ability and
performance, any increases in the responsibilities assumed by Employee, the success achieved by the Corporation, any increase or change in
the volume, character or variety of the business of the Corporation, increases in the cost of living and any other criteria the Board may deem
relevant.

(c) The Corporation shall reimburse Employee for actual expenses incurred by Employee while Employee is employed under this
Agreement or any successor agreement in obtaining tax and investment assistance and advice; provided, however, that in no event shall the
Corporation be obligated to reimburse Employee under this Paragraph 2(c) for more than $25,000 for expenses incurred in any calendar year.
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(d) The Corporation shall provide Employee with access to a car and driver for transportation relating to business purposes while Employee
is employed under this Agreement or any successor agreement on the same terms as the other members of the Office of the Chairman.

3. Employee’s Rights Under Certain Plans

(a) Executive Pension Plan. The Corporation hereby confirms the designation of Employee as a participant in the Executive Pension Plan of
the Federal National Mortgage Association (the “Executive Pension Plan) with a Pension Goal at all times equal to no less than 50% of his
High-Three Total Compensation (as such terms are defined in the Executive Pension Plan), as of the Effective Date. The Corporation may
amend the Executive Pension Plan from time to time; provided, however, that no such amendment shall adversely modify the vesting schedule
or decrease Employee’s Pension Goal or the vested benefits to which Employee or his surviving spouse, if any, would have been entitled under
such plan as in effect on the date hereof or, if benefits are improved, as of the date of such improvement.

(b) Annual Incentive Plan. Employee’s Maximum Potential Award (as defined in the Federal National Mortgage Association Annual
Incentive Plan (the “Annual Incentive Plan”)) for each year during the Employment Term, including for this purpose calendar year 2003, shall
be 137.5% of Employee’s Basic Compensation. The amount to be paid with respect to such award for each such year shall be determined by
the extent to which any Corporate Goals (as defined in the Annual Incentive Plan) are attained. Notwithstanding any provision of the Annual
Incentive Plan to the contrary, the following provisions shall apply to Employee:
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(i) In the event that (x) Employee is terminated without Cause pursuant to Paragraph 4(a) below, (y) Employee is terminated or resigns
within six (6) months following a Change of Control (as defined in Paragraph 4(d) below) or (z) Employee is terminated by reason
of serious illness, disability pursuant to Paragraph 7(a) below, or death, the Corporation shall pay to Employee at the time of
payment of awards to other participants in the Plan (A) the amount of any bonus earned by and payable to Employee pursuant to the
Annual Incentive Plan for a completed calendar year but not yet paid by the Corporation for such year and (B) an award calculated
assuming 100% attainment of the target corporate goal specified by the Board for the Annual Incentive Plan for the year in which
such termination or resignation occurred.

(ii) In the event that the Employment Term expires because of the failure of the Corporation to extend this Agreement or any successor
agreement, the Corporation shall pay to Employee the amount of any bonus earned by and payable to Employee pursuant to the
Annual Incentive Plan for a completed calendar year but not yet paid by the Corporation for such year.

(c) Restricted Stock. Notwithstanding any provision of the Fannie Mae Stock Compensation Plan of 2003 (together with any predecessor or
successor plans, the “Stock Compensation Plan”) to the contrary, the following provisions shall apply to Employee:
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(1) In the event that (w) Employee is terminated without Cause pursuant to Paragraph 4(a) below, (x) Employee is terminated or
resigns within six (6) months following a Change of Control (as defined in Paragraph 4(d) below), (y) the Employment Term
expires because of the failure of the Corporation to extend this Agreement or any successor agreement or (z) Employee is
terminated by reason of serious illness or disability pursuant to Paragraph 7(a) below, Employee’s rights with respect to shares of
Restricted Stock awarded after July 1, 2003 shall continue to vest and the Restricted Period applicable to such shares shall end in
accordance with the schedule included in each such grant through the end of the Employment Term.

(i1) In the event that Employee dies while employed under this Agreement or any successor agreement, Employee’s rights with respect
to all shares of Restricted Stock shall become immediately vested and the Restricted Period applicable to such shares shall end in
accordance with the terms of the Stock Compensation Plan.

(d) Performance Shares. If grants of Performance Shares are made to other Participants for future Award Periods under the Stock
Compensation Plan, Employee shall likewise be awarded a grant for each such future Award Period. Notwithstanding any provision of the
Stock Compensation Plan to the contrary, the following provisions shall apply to Employee with respect to Performance Share awards to him
under the Stock Compensation Plan:
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(1) In the event that (w) Employee is terminated without Cause pursuant to Paragraph 4(a) below, (x) Employee is terminated or
resigns within six (6) months following a Change of Control (as defined in Paragraph 4(d) below), (y) the Employment Term
expires because of the failure of the Corporation to extend this Agreement or any successor agreement or (z) Employee is
terminated by reason of serious illness or disability pursuant to Paragraph 7(a) below, the Corporation shall pay to Employee, after
the end of each such Award Period, Actual Awards with respect to Performance Shares previously awarded for each Award Period
of the Performance Share Plan in which Employee has completed at least 18 months of service, in each case on a pro rata basis
reflecting Employee’s completed months of service in the Award Period, based on the actual achievement of Program Targets for
the Award Period and using as the Valuation Date (as defined in the Stock Compensation Plan) (A) in the case of a termination
upon a Change in Control, the date of such Change in Control, and (B) in the case of a termination without Cause, the failure of the
Corporation to extend the Employment Term or a termination because of serious illness or disability, the last day of the Award
Period.

(ii) In the event that Employee dies while employed under this Agreement or any successor agreement, the Corporation shall pay
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to Employee’s designated beneficiary or, if none, Employee’s estate as soon as is practicable after the date of Employee’s death,
Actual Awards with respect to each Award Period of the Performance Share Plan in which Employee has completed at least

18 months of service, in each case on a pro rata basis reflecting Employee’s completed months of service in the Award Period,
based on the Board’s determination of the likelihood of the Corporation’s achievement of Program Targets for the Award Period
and using the date of death as the Valuation Date (as defined in the Stock Compensation Plan).

(f) General Rights Under Benefit Plans. Nothing contained herein is intended to or shall be deemed to affect adversely any of Employee’s
rights as a participant under any long- or short-term bonus, stock option, restricted stock or other executive compensation plans, or under any
program of perquisites or disability, retirement, stock purchase, retirement savings, health, medical, life insurance, or similar plans of the
Corporation now or hereafter in effect. Employee shall at all times during the Employment Term be entitled to participate in all long- or short-
term bonus, stock option, restricted stock, and other executive compensation plans, and in all perquisite programs and disability, retirement
stock purchase, thrift and savings, health, medical, life insurance, and similar plans of the Corporation which are from time to time in effect
and in which other senior officers of the Corporation generally are entitled to participate. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement,
Employee’s participation in such plans and programs shall be in accordance with the provisions of such plans and programs
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applicable from time to time, it being the intent of the parties hereto that nothing in this Agreement shall decrease the rights and benefits of
Employee under any such plans and programs as may be in effect from time to time. Except as specifically set forth in this Agreement, or as
specifically permitted by the terms of any such plan or program, no right or benefit under any such plan or program shall become vested or
exercisable after the termination of Employee’s employment by the Corporation. If for any reason any benefits payable pursuant to this
Agreement cannot be paid under the Corporation’s employee benefit or executive compensation plans, such payments shall be made out of the
general assets of the Corporation.

4. Termination Without Cause, Termination or Resignation Upon a Change of Control or Failure to Extend

(a) Notwithstanding any other provision hereunder, the Corporation shall have the right to terminate Employee’s employment hereunder
without Cause (as defined in Paragraph 5(b) below) at any time for any reason in its sole discretion on not less than ninety (90) days’ prior
written notice to Employee. In the event that (i) the Corporation terminates Employee’s employment pursuant to the immediately preceding
sentence, (ii) Employee is terminated or resigns within six (6) months following a Change of Control (as defined in Paragraph 4(d) below) or
(iii) the Employment Term expires because of the failure of the Corporation to extend this Agreement or any successor agreement, the
Corporation shall, subject to Paragraph 4(b) below, continue to pay Employee’s Basic Compensation to Employee at the rate in effect at the
time of such termination, resignation or expiration until the later of (A) the expiration of the Employment Term or

9-



(B) one year following the date of such termination or resignation or notification to Employee of such failure to extend. Employee shall,
subject to Paragraph 4(b) below, continue to participate in all Employee Welfare Benefit Plans (as such term is defined in Section 3(1) of the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, and the regulations promulgated thereunder) maintained by the Corporation
during the remainder of the Employment Term or until such later date as may be expressly provided under the terms of any such plan.

(b) Following a termination or resignation pursuant to Paragraph 4(a) above or the expiration of the Employment Term because of the
failure of the Corporation to extend this Agreement or any successor agreement, Employee shall have the duty, commencing on the date six
(6) months after the date of such termination, resignation or expiration, to seek other employment or to become self-employed; provided,
however, that Employee shall not be required to accept other employment or to become self-employed in any position not at least substantially
equivalent (in terms of importance, dignity and responsibilities) to his position as Vice Chairman of the Board and Chief Financial Officer of
the Corporation pursuant to this Agreement. Any income received from such employment (including self-employment but excluding service on
boards of directors) after such six-month period shall reduce, on a dollar-for-dollar basis (but not below zero), the Corporation’s obligation to
pay Employee’s Basic Compensation. Any employee benefits received by Employee in consideration of such employment after such six
(6) month period shall relieve the Corporation of its obligation to provide comparable benefits hereunder to the extent of the benefits so
received; provided, however, that Employee’s retirement benefit, if any, pursuant to Paragraph 3(a)
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above shall not be reduced on account of any such income or benefits received from such employment.

(c) If at any time during the Employment Term, there is a material reduction of Employee’s authority as Vice Chairman of the Board and
Chief Financial Officer of the Corporation, or any material change in Employee’s functions, duties or responsibilities which would in any
material way cause Employee’s position to become less important, with the understanding that a change in the functions reporting to him is not
per se material, or if the Corporation shall require Employee to relocate outside the Washington, D.C. area, Employee shall have the right,
upon not less than ninety (90) days’ written notice to the Corporation, which notice must be given within four calendar months after the event
giving rise to said right, to treat such event as a termination by the Corporation of his employment without Cause pursuant to Paragraph 4(a)
above for all purposes under this Agreement, and all of the provisions of this Agreement applicable to such a termination without Cause shall
be operative with respect to such termination.

(d) “Change of Control” shall have occurred if there is a change in the composition of a majority of the Board of Directors elected by the
stockholders within twelve (12) months after any “person” (as defined in Sections 3(a)(9) and 13(d)(3) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
(the “Exchange Act”), as such sections are in effect on the Effective Date) is or becomes the “beneficial owner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3
under the Exchange Act, as such rule is in effect on the Effective Date) of securities representing 25% or more of the combined voting power
of the then outstanding securities of the Corporation.
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5. Termination by Employee; Breach by Employee

(a) Notwithstanding any other provision hereunder, Employee shall have the right to terminate his employment by the Corporation at any
time for any reason in his sole discretion on not less than ninety (90) days’ prior written notice to the Corporation. Upon receipt of any such
notice from Employee, the Corporation shall have the option, exercisable by giving Employee written notice within thirty (30) days of such
receipt, to designate any date after the date of such notice to Employee and prior to the expiration of the aforesaid notice period as the date on
which Employee shall cease to be an officer and employee of the Corporation, and the effective date of termination hereunder shall be any such
earlier date so designated by the Corporation. In no event shall the termination of Employee’s employment by the Corporation without Cause
pursuant to Paragraph 4(a) above, Employee’s termination or resignation within six (6) months following a Change of Control pursuant to
Paragraph 4(a) above or the expiration of the Employment Term because of the failure of the Corporation to extend this Agreement or any
successor agreement be deemed to be a termination by Employee pursuant to this Paragraph 5(a).

(b) Notwithstanding any other provision hereunder, the Corporation may terminate Employee’s employment hereunder for “Cause,” which
shall mean that Employee has materially breached this Agreement by engaging in dishonest or fraudulent actions or willful misconduct or has
materially harmed the Corporation by performing his duties in a negligent manner. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Employee shall not be
deemed to have been terminated for Cause unless the Corporation shall have provided (i) reasonable notice to Employee setting forth the
reasons for the Corporation’s intention to terminate for Cause, (ii) an opportunity for Employee, together with his counsel, to be heard before
the Board and (iii) Employee with a notice of termination stating that
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Employee was guilty of the conduct set forth in this Paragraph 5(b) and specifying the particulars thereof in detail.

(c) In the event of a termination pursuant to Paragraph 5(a) or 5(b) above, Employee shall be entitled to all of Employee’s Basic
Compensation which has accrued to the date of termination and any benefits or awards (whether of options, stock or other property) which
have vested prior to such date. The Corporation shall have no further obligations to Employee.

(d) In the event of a termination by Employee pursuant to Paragraph 5(a) above, during the period from the effective date of termination to
the earlier of (i) the first anniversary thereof and (ii) the expiration of the Employment Term, Employee shall not, directly or indirectly
(x) Compete with the Corporation in the United States of America, (y) solicit any officer or employee of the Corporation or any of its affiliates
to engage in any conduct prohibited hereby for Employee or to terminate any existing relationship with the Corporation or such affiliate or
(z) assist any other person to engage in any activity in any manner prohibited hereby to Employee. As used herein, “Compete” shall mean to
engage directly or indirectly in any business, or to become connected directly or indirectly with any business or firm, if a substantial part of
such business or the business of any such firm involves transactions in what is commonly known as the secondary market in residential
mortgages; provided, however, that Employee shall not be deemed, directly or indirectly, to Compete with the Corporation solely by virtue of
Employee’s employment with any corporation or firm involved in transactions in what is commonly known as the secondary market in
residential mortgages so long as Employee himself does not participate in such corporation’s or firm’s involvement in such transactions.
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(e) The need to protect the Corporation against Employee’s competition, as well as the nature and scope of such protection, has been
carefully considered by the parties hereto in light of the uniqueness of Employee’s talent and his importance to the Corporation. Accordingly,
Employee agrees that, in addition to any other relief to which the Corporation may be entitled, the Corporation shall be entitled to seek and
obtain injunctive relief (without the requirement of a bond) from a court of competent jurisdiction for the purpose of restraining Employee
from any actual or threatened breach of the covenant contained in Paragraph 5(d) above. If for any reason a final decision of any court
determines that the restrictions under Paragraph 5(d) above are not reasonable or that consideration therefor is inadequate, such restrictions
shall be interpreted, modified or rewritten by such court to include as much of the duration, scope and geographic area identified in Paragraph 5
(d) above as will render such restrictions valid and enforceable.

6. Resignation as Board Member

In the event Employee ceases to be employed by the Corporation and Employee is then a member of the Board, Employee hereby agrees
that, unless otherwise requested by the Board, he shall submit his resignation as a member of the Board and of the Fannie Mae Foundation in
writing on or before the date he ceases to be an officer of the Corporation. If Employee fails or neglects to submit such resignations in writing,
this Paragraph 6 may be deemed by the Corporation to constitute Employee’s written resignation as a member of the Board and of the Fannie
Mae Foundation effective on the same date that Employee ceases to be an officer of the Corporation.
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B. DISABILITY
7. Disability

(a) In the event that, while employed under this Agreement or any successor agreement, Employee is prevented from performing his duties
hereunder by reason of serious illness or disability, the Corporation may, on sixty (60) days’ prior written notice to Employee, terminate
Employee’s employment. Upon the termination of Employee’s employment pursuant to this Paragraph 7(a), the Corporation shall, subject to
Paragraphs 7(b) and (c) below, continue to pay Employee’s Basic Compensation at the rate in effect at the time of such termination until the
later of (A) the expiration of the Employment Term or (B) one year following the date of such termination. Employee shall, subject to
Paragraph 7(b) below, continue to participate in all Employee Welfare Benefit Plans maintained by the Corporation during the remainder of the
Employment Term or until such later date as may be expressly provided under the terms of any such plan.

(b) Employee may, in his sole discretion, after the date he ceases to be employed by the Corporation pursuant to Paragraph 7(a) above,
engage in regular employment (whether as the employee of another or as a self-employed person). Any income received from such
employment, including self-employment, shall reduce, on a dollar-for-dollar basis (but not below zero), the Corporation’s obligation to pay
Employee’s Basic Compensation under Paragraph 7(a) above. Any employee benefits received by Employee in consideration of such
employment shall relieve the Corporation of its obligation to provide comparable benefits hereunder to the extent of the benefits so received;
provided, however, that Employee’s retirement benefits, if any, pursuant to Paragraph 3(a) above shall not be reduced on account of any such
income or benefits resulting from such employment.
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(c) If Employee becomes entitled to and receives disability benefits under any disability payment plan, including disability insurance, the
amount of Employee’s Basic Compensation otherwise payable by the Corporation to Employee pursuant to Paragraph 7(a) above shall be
reduced, on a dollar-for-dollar basis (but not below zero), by the amount of any such disability benefits received by him, but only to the extent
such benefits are attributable to premium payments made by the Corporation.

C. DEATH
8. Death

(a) In the event Employee dies while employed under this Agreement or any successor agreement, the Corporation shall pay Employee’s
designated beneficiary or, if none, Employee’s estate, in one cash payment an amount equal to 100% of Employee’s Basic Compensation at the
rate in effect on the date of his death.

(b) The parties acknowledge that Employee is covered at the Corporation’s expense under the Corporation’s Executive Insurance Plan by a
whole life insurance policy. In addition, during the Employment Term the Corporation shall provide additional insurance coverage for
Employee such that the total death benefit provided by such coverage plus the death benefit provided by the whole life insurance contract
described in the immediately preceding sentence is 200% of Employee’s Basic Compensation. In order to eliminate the income tax burden on
Employee by reason of the imputation of income as a result of such insurance coverages, the Corporation shall pay to Employee an amount
equal to the income taxes imposed on such imputed income plus the income taxes imposed on such payment. In the event this Agreement or
any successor agreement expires because of the failure of the Corporation to extend such
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agreement, Employee may, pursuant to the terms of the insurance policy described in the first sentence of this Paragraph 8(b) and the
agreement between the Corporation and Employee entered into with respect thereto, acquire such insurance policy by paying the Corporation
an amount equal to the sum of all premium payments made by the Corporation on such policy. In the event Employee continues in service with
the Corporation until January 1, 2004, such insurance policy shall automatically be transferred to Employee pursuant to the terms of such
policy and the agreement between the Corporation and Employee entered into thereunder. In the event of any such transfer, in order to
eliminate the income tax burden on Employee by reason of the income arising from such transfer, the Corporation shall pay to Employee an
amount equal to the income taxes imposed on such income plus the income taxes imposed on such payment. Nothing contained herein shall
reduce any benefit payable pursuant to Paragraph 3(a) above or under the terms of any other qualified or nonqualified pension, executive
compensation or welfare plan of the Corporation.

D. MISCELLANEOUS

9. Assignment by Employee

Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, the rights and benefits of Employee pursuant hereto are personal to him and no
such right or benefit shall be subject to voluntary or involuntary alienation, assignment or transfer.

10. Funding Prohibitions

All payments to be made under this Agreement shall be paid from the general funds of the Corporation or from the funds set aside or
reserved for payment of the
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Corporation’s obligations under its employee benefit or executive compensation plans, if any. Employee shall have no right, title or interest in
or to any investments which the Corporation may make to aid it in meeting its obligations under this Agreement. All such assets shall be the
property solely of the Corporation and shall be subject to the claims of the Corporation’s unsecured general creditors. To the extent Employee
or any other person acquires a right to receive payments from the Corporation under this Agreement, such right shall be no greater than the
right of any unsecured general creditor of the Corporation and such person shall have only the unsecured contractual agreement of the
Corporation that such payments shall be made.

11. Disclosure of Information to the Corporation

In the event Paragraph 4 or 7 above becomes applicable, Employee or, in the event of Employee’s incapacity or death, his personal
representative shall make available to the Corporation on a confidential basis such records, documents and other information reasonably
necessary to enable the Corporation to verify the amount of income available to offset the payments otherwise due Employee pursuant to
Paragraph 4 or 7 above.

12. Nondisclosure of Confidential Information

Employee shall not, without the prior written consent of the Corporation, divulge, disclose or make accessible to any other person, firm,
partnership, corporation or other entity any Confidential Information pertaining to the business of the Corporation, except (i) while employed
by the Corporation, in the business of and for the benefit of the Corporation, or (ii) when required to do so by a court of competent jurisdiction,
by any governmental agency having supervisory authority over the business of the Corporation,
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or by any administrative body or legislative body (including a committee thereof) with purported or apparent jurisdiction to order Employee to
divulge, disclose or make accessible such information. For purposes of this Paragraph 12, “Confidential Information” shall mean nonpublic
information concerning the Corporation’s financial data, strategic business plans, product development (or other proprietary product data),
marketing plans and other nonpublic, proprietary and confidential information of the Corporation that is not otherwise available to the public.
Confidential Information, however, shall not include information the disclosure of which cannot reasonably be expected to affect adversely the
business of the Corporation to a material degree.

13. Waiver

The failure of either party hereto to insist upon strict compliance by the other party with any term, covenant or condition hereof shall not be
deemed a waiver of such term, covenant or condition, nor shall any waiver or relinquishment or failure to insist upon strict compliance of any
right or power hereunder at any one time or more times be deemed a waiver or relinquishment of such right or power at any other time or
times.

14. Notice

Any notice required or desired to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be sufficient if in writing transmitted by hand delivery or sent
by prepaid courier or registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, to the addresses hereinafter set forth or to such other address as any party
hereto may designate in writing and transmit in such manner. Any such notice shall be deemed given when delivered, if transmitted by hand
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delivery, 24 hours after deposit with a prepaid courier service or 72 hours after deposit in the United States mail, if sent by registered or
certified mail.

15. Applicable Law

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the District of Columbia without regard to any otherwise applicable conflict of laws
principles.

16. Taxes

The Corporation shall deduct from all amounts payable under this Agreement all federal, state, local and other taxes required by law to be
withheld with respect to such payments.

17. Benefit

Except as is otherwise herein expressly provided, this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the Corporation, its
successors and assigns, and upon Employee, his spouse, heirs, executors and administrators; provided, however, that the obligations of
Employee hereunder shall not be delegated.

18. Entire Agreement

The parties hereto agree that this Agreement contains the entire understanding and agreement between them and cannot be amended,
modified or supplemented in any respect except by an agreement in writing signed by both parties.

19. Interpretation
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Wherever reference is made herein to the “failure of the Corporation to extend this Agreement or any successor agreement,” such a failure
shall be deemed to have occurred if and only if the Corporation either notifies Employee that it does not desire to extend this Agreement or any
successor agreement or that it desires to do so only on terms in the aggregate that are materially less favorable to Employee than those
applicable to Employee at the time of said notice. If the Corporation notifies Employee it desires to extend this Agreement or any successor
agreement on terms that are in the aggregate substantially similar to or more favorable than those applicable to Employee at the time of said
notice, any nonextension shall not be deemed to be a “failure of the Corporation to extend this Agreement or any successor agreement.”

20. Severability

Except as provided in Section 21, it is the intent and understanding of each party hereto that, if any term, restriction, covenant, or promise is
found to be invalid or otherwise unenforceable, then such term, restriction, covenant, or promise shall not thereby be terminated but shall be
deemed modified to the extent necessary to make it enforceable and, if it cannot be so modified, shall be deemed amended to delete therefrom
such provision or portion found to be invalid or unenforceable, such modification or amendment in any event to apply only with respect to the
operation of this Agreement in the particular jurisdiction in which such finding is made.

21. Regulatory Approved

The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that pursuant to Section 309(d) of the Federal National Mortgage Association Charter Act, as
amended by the Federal Housing
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Enterprises Financial Safety and Soundness Act of 1992 (as so amended, the “Act”), 12 U.S.C. 1723a(d), no provision of this Agreement
relating to the terms of Employee’s termination of employment shall be effective unless and until such provision has been reviewed and
approved by the Director (the “Director”) of the Office of Federal Housing Enterprise Oversight (“OFHEO”). The parties therefore agree as
follows:

(a) The Corporation shall promptly hereafter submit this Agreement to the Director for his review and approval of those terms hereof
relating to termination of employment and shall seek diligently to obtain such approval;

(b) No such provisions shall become effective unless and until the Director’s approval thereof shall have been obtained; and

(c) The Director’s approval of all such provisions shall be a condition subsequent to the continued effectiveness of this Agreement such that,
in the event that the Director shall reject or otherwise refuse to approve any such provision in a timely manner, this Agreement shall thereafter
be voidable by Employee on thirty (30) days notice to the Corporation.

IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the Corporation has caused its name to be ascribed to this Agreement by its duly authorized representative, and
Employee has executed this Agreement, each as of the day and the year first above written.
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Attest: FANNIE MAE

3900 Wisconsin Avenue, N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20016

/s/ Anthony F. Marra By: /s/Franklin D. Raines
Chairman of the Board of
Directors

Witness:

/s/ K. G. Gallo /s/ J. Timothy Howard

J. TIMOTHY HOWARD
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Exhibit 10.4
FANNIE MAE STOCK COMPENSATION PLAN OF 2003
I. The Plan

1.1 Purpose. The purpose of the Fannie Mae Stock Compensation Plan of 2003 is to promote the success of Fannie Mae by providing stock
compensation to employees and directors that is comparable to that provided by similar companies; to attract, motivate, retain and
reward employees of Fannie Mae; to provide incentives for high levels of individual performance and improved financial performance
of Fannie Mae; to attract, motivate and retain experienced and knowledgeable independent directors; and to promote a close identity of
interests between directors, officers, employees and shareholders.

1.2 Definitions.
The following terms shall have the meanings set forth below:

(1) “Award” shall mean an award of any Option, Stock Appreciation Right, Restricted Stock, Performance Share Award, Stock
Bonus or any other award authorized under Section 1.6, or any combination thereof, whether alternative or cumulative, or an
award of any Options or Restricted Stock authorized under Articles VI and VIIL.

(2) “Award Date” shall mean the date upon which the Committee takes the action granting an Award or a later date designated by the
Committee as the Award Date at the time it grants the Award, or, in the case of Awards under Sections 6.2 or 7.2, the applicable
dates set forth therein.

(3) “Award Document” shall mean any writing (including in electronic or other form approved by the Committee), which may be an
agreement, setting forth the terms of an Award that has been granted by the Committee.

(4) “Award Period” shall mean the period beginning on an Award Date and ending on the expiration date of such Award.

(5) “Beneficiary” shall mean the person or persons designated by a Participant or Permitted Transferee in writing to the senior-
ranking officer in the Human Resources department of Fannie Mae to receive the benefits specified in an Award Document and
under the Plan in the event of the death of the Participant or Permitted Transferee.

(6) “Benefit Plans Committee” shall mean the Benefit Plans Committee established by the Board, consisting of employees of Fannie
Mae.

(7) “Board” shall mean the Board of Directors of Fannie Mae.

(8) “Cause” shall mean significant harm to Fannie Mae in connection with a Participant’s employment by Fannie Mae, by the
Participant’s engaging in dishonest or fraudulent actions or willful misconduct or performing the Participant’s duties in a
negligent manner, as determined by the Committee for a member of the Board who is an officer or employee of Fannie Mae and
for the General Counsel of Fannie Mae, and by the General Counsel of Fannie Mae for all other employees; provided that no act
or failure to act will be considered “willful” unless it is done, or omitted to be done, by the Participant in bad faith or without
reasonable belief that the act or failure to act was in the interest of Fannie Mae.

(9) “Change in Control Event” shall mean a change in the composition of a majority of the Board elected by shareholders within
12 months after any “person” (as such term is used in Sections 3(a)(9), 13(d)(3) and 14(d)(2) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934) is or becomes the beneficial owner, directly or indirectly, of securities of Fannie Mae representing more than 25 percent of
the combined voting power of the then-outstanding securities of Fannie Mae entitled to then vote generally in the election of
directors of Fannie Mae.
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(16)
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(18)

(19)

(20)
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(23)

“Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time.
“Committee” shall mean the Compensation Committee of the Board.

“Common Stock” shall mean the common stock of Fannie Mae and, in the event such common stock is converted to another
security or property pursuant to Section 8.2, such other security or property.

“Director Term” shall mean the period starting immediately following the annual meeting of the shareholders at which directors
are elected to serve on the Board and ending at the close of the next annual meeting at which directors are elected.

“Early Retirement” means separation from service with Fannie Mae at or after the attainment of age 60 (but before attainment of
age 65) with five years of service with Fannie Mae, or at an earlier age only if permitted by the Committee in its sole discretion.
For purposes of this Section 1.2(14), a year of service shall be determined in accordance with the Federal National Mortgage
Association Retirement Plan for Employees Not Covered Under Civil Service Retirement Law.

“Eligible Employee” shall mean any employee of Fannie Mae.
“ERISA” shall mean the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended.

“Fair Market Value” shall mean the per share value of Common Stock as determined by using the mean between the high and
low selling prices of such Common Stock, on the date of determination, as reported on the NYSE. If such prices are not available
or if the Common Stock is no longer traded on the NYSE, the Fair Market Value shall be determined by the Committee, in good
faith, using any reasonable method.

“Fannie Mae” shall mean Fannie Mae and its successors and, where the context requires, its Subsidiaries.

"Immediate Family Member” shall mean, with respect to a Participant, (i) the Participant’s child, stepchild, grandchild, parent,
stepparent, grandparent, spouse, former spouse, sibling, half-sibling, stepsibling, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law,
daughter-in-law, brother-in-law or sister-in-law (including adoptive relations where the adopted individual shall not have attained
the age of 18 years prior to such adoption); (ii) the Participant’s Domestic Partner (as defined in Section 2.18 of the Federal
National Mortgage Association Retirement Plan for Employees Not Covered Under Civil Service Retirement Law and determined
pursuant to the guidelines and procedures established thereunder); (iii) any lineal ascendant or descendant of any individual
described in (i) or (ii) above; (iv) any partnership, limited liability company, association, corporation or other entity all of whose
beneficial interests (including without limitation all pecuniary interests, voting rights and investment power) are held by and for
the benefit of the Participant and/or one or more individuals described in (i), (ii) or (iii) above; or (v) any trust for the sole benefit
of the Participant and/or one or more individuals described in (i), (ii) or (iii) above.

“Incentive Stock Option” shall mean an Option that is designated as an incentive stock option within the meaning of Section 422
of the Code, or any successor provision, and that otherwise satisfies the requirements of that section.

“NMD Participant” shall mean a Nonmanagement Director who has been granted an Award under Article VI or Article VII.
“Nonmanagement Director” shall mean a member of the Board who is not an officer or employee of Fannie Mae.
“Nongqualified Stock Option” shall mean an Option that is not an Incentive Stock Option.
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(34)

(35)

(36)
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“NYSE” shall mean the New York Stock Exchange.
“Option” shall mean an option to purchase shares of Common Stock pursuant to an Award.

“Participant” shall mean a Nonmanagement Director who has been granted an Award under the Plan or an Eligible Employee
who has been granted an Award under the Plan.

“Performance Share Award” shall mean an Award granted under Section 5.1.

“Permitted Transferee” shall mean (i) any Immediate Family Member with respect to the Participant, and (ii) in the case of an
Eligible Employee, any organization described in Section 170(c) of the Code that is eligible to receive tax-deductible, charitable
contributions or any intermediary designated to exercise an Option for the benefit of such organization.

“Personal Representative” shall mean the person or persons who, upon the incompetence of a Participant or Permitted
Transferee, shall have acquired, by legal proceeding or power of attorney, the power to exercise the rights under the Plan, and who
shall have become the legal representative of the Participant or Permitted Transferee, or, in the event of the death of the
Participant or the Permitted Transferee, the executor or administrator of the estate of the Participant or Permitted Transferee.

“Plan” shall mean this Fannie Mae Stock Compensation Plan of 2003.

“Plan Termination Date” shall mean the tenth anniversary of the date of the meeting at which shareholders of Fannie Mae
approve the Plan.

“ODRO” shall mean a qualified domestic relations order as defined in Section 414(p) of the Code or Section 206(d)(3) of ERISA
(to the same extent as if this Plan were subject thereto) and the applicable rules thereunder.

“Restricted Stock” shall mean shares or bookkeeping units of Common Stock awarded to a Participant subject to payment of the
consideration, if any, and the conditions on vesting and transfer and other restrictions as are established under the Plan, for so long
as such shares or units remain nonvested under the terms of the applicable Award Document.

"Retirement” shall mean, in the case of an Eligible Employee, separation from service with Fannie Mae under conditions entitling
such Eligible Employee to an immediate annuity under the Federal National Mortgage Association Retirement Plan for
Employees Not Covered Under Civil Service Retirement Law or under the Civil Service retirement law, whichever is applicable
to such Eligible Employee, at or after the attainment of age 65.

"Stand-Alone SAR” shall mean a Stock Appreciation Right granted independently of any other Award.

“Stock Appreciation Right” shall mean a right pursuant to an Award to receive a number of shares of Common Stock or an
amount of cash, or a combination of shares of Common Stock and cash, the aggregate amount or value of which is determined by
reference to a change in the Fair Market Value of the Common Stock.

“Stock Bonus” shall mean an Award of shares of Common Stock under Section 5.2.
“STSP” shall mean the Fannie Mae Securities Transactions Supervision Program and the guidelines thereunder.

“Subsidiary” shall mean an organization whose employees are identified by the Board as eligible to participate in benefit plans of
Fannie Mae.
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(40) “Total Disability” shall mean complete and permanent inability by reason of illness or accident to perform the duties of the
occupation at which the Participant was employed when the illness commenced or accident occurred, as determined by Fannie
Mae’s independent medical consultant.

(41) “Without Consideration” shall mean, with respect to a transfer of an Option, that the transfer is being made purely as a gift or
donation, with no promise or receipt of payment, goods, services or other thing of value in exchange for the Option; provided,
however, if the terms of a transfer of Options to an otherwise Permitted Transferee require that, upon proper notice of exercise of
such Options, (i) Fannie Mae may reduce the number of shares of Common Stock or sell such number of shares of Common Stock
otherwise deliverable thereunder to the extent required to fund any additional withholding tax on behalf of the Eligible Employee
necessitated by the exercise, delivering only the balance of the shares of Common Stock due upon exercise of the Option to the
Permitted Transferee, and/or (ii) the Permitted Transferee sell the shares of Common Stock so received upon exercise of the
Option, apply a portion of the net proceeds of the exercise to the payment of any additional taxes, fees or other costs or expenses
incurred by the donor Eligible Employee in connection with or as a result of such transfer and then deliver (if an intermediary) or
retain (if an organization described in Section 170(c) of the Code) the remaining net proceeds from such sales of shares of
Common Stock, the transfer shall nevertheless continue to be Without Consideration for the purposes hereof. A distribution of an
Option by an entity or trust described in Section 1.2(19)(iv) or (v) to an owner or beneficiary thereof shall be treated as a transfer
Without Consideration.

1.3 Administration and Authorization; Power and Procedure.

(@) The Committee. The Plan shall be administered by, and all Awards to Eligible Employees shall be authorized by, the Committee,
unless otherwise required by law or regulation. Action of the Committee with respect to the administration of the Plan shall be
taken by majority vote or unanimous written consent of the respective members.

(b) Plan Awards; Interpretation; Powers. Subject to the express provisions of the Plan, the Committee shall have the authority:
(i) to determine the Eligible Employees who will receive an Award;

(ii) to grant an Award to such Eligible Employees, to determine the amount of and the price at which shares of Common Stock
will be offered or awarded, to determine the other specific terms and conditions of such Award consistent with the express
limits of the Plan, to establish the installments (if any) in which such Award shall become exercisable or shall vest, and to
establish the expiration date and the events of termination of such Award;

(iii) to construe and interpret the Plan and any Award Documents, to further define the terms used in the Plan, and to prescribe,
amend and rescind rules and regulations relating to the administration of the Plan;

(iv) to cancel, modify or waive Fannie Mae’s rights with respect to, or modify, discontinue, suspend or terminate, an Award
being granted or an outstanding Award granted to or held by an Eligible Employee, subject to any required consents under
Section 8.5;

(v) as part of any Eligible Employee’s employment agreement approved by the Committee, to modify or change an Award;

(vi) to accelerate the vesting of, extend the ability to exercise, or extend the term of an Award being granted or an outstanding
Award; and
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(vii) to make all other determinations and take such other actions as contemplated by the Plan or as may be necessary or
advisable for the administration of the Plan and the effectuation of its purposes.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the provisions of Articles VI and VII (except Sections 6.7 and 7.5) relating to
Nonmanagement Director Awards shall be automatic and, to the maximum extent possible, self-effectuating. Ministerial,
non-discretionary actions with respect to implementation of the Plan shall be performed by individuals who are officers or
employees of Fannie Mae at the direction of the senior ranking officer in the Human Resources department of Fannie Mae.
The senior ranking officer in the Human Resources department of Fannie Mae may also direct that certain administrative
functions shall be performed by service providers outside of Fannie Mae.

(c) Binding Determinations. Any action taken by, and any inaction of, Fannie Mae, any Subsidiary, the Board, the Committee or the
Benefit Plans Committee relating or pursuant to the Plan shall be within the absolute discretion of that entity or body and shall be
conclusive and binding upon all persons. Subject only to compliance with the express provisions of the Plan, the Board, the
Committee and the Benefit Plans Committee may act in their absolute discretion in matters within their authority related to this
Plan.

(d) Reliance on Experts. In making any determination or in taking or not taking any action under the Plan, the Board, the Committee
and the Benefit Plans Committee may obtain and may rely upon the advice of experts, including professional advisors to Fannie
Mae.

(e) Delegation. The Committee may delegate, subject to such terms and conditions as it may impose, some or all of its authority
under the Plan to one or more members of the Board or, for Awards to Eligible Employees below the rank of Senior Vice
President, to the senior-ranking officer in the Human Resources department. In addition, the Committee may delegate ministerial,
non-discretionary functions to individuals who are officers, employees, contractors or vendors of Fannie Mae.

(f) No Liability. No member of the Board, the Committee or the Benefit Plans Committee, or director, officer or employee of Fannie
Mae or any Subsidiary shall be liable, responsible or accountable in damages or otherwise for any determination made or other
action taken or any failure to act by such person in connection with the administration of the Plan, so long as such person is not
determined by a final adjudication to be guilty of willful misconduct with respect to such determination, action or failure to act.

(g) Indemnification. To the extent permitted by law, each of the members of the Board, the Committee and the Benefit Plans
Committee and each of the directors, officers and employees of Fannie Mae and any Subsidiary shall be held harmless and be
indemnified by Fannie Mae for any liability, loss (including amounts paid in settlement), damages or expenses (including
reasonable attorneys’ fees) suffered by virtue of any determinations, acts or failures to act, or alleged acts or failures to act, in
connection with the administration of the Plan so long as such person is not determined by a final adjudication to be guilty of
willful misconduct with respect to such determination, action or failure to act.

1.4 Participation. Awards may be granted by the Committee to Eligible Employees. An Eligible Employee who has been granted an Award
may be granted, if otherwise eligible, additional Awards if the Committee shall so determine. Nonmanagement Directors shall be
eligible to receive Awards granted automatically under Sections 6.2 and 7.2 and Awards granted under Sections 6.7 and 7.5.
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1.5 Shares Available for Awards.

(a)

(b)

(©)

Common Stock. Subject to the provisions of Section 8.2, the shares of Common Stock that may be delivered under this Plan shall
be shares of Fannie Mae’s authorized but unissued Common Stock, shares of Common Stock held by Fannie Mae as treasury
shares or shares of Common Stock purchased by Fannie Mae on the open market.

Number of Shares. Subject to adjustments in accordance with Section 8.2, the maximum number of shares of Common Stock that
may be delivered under Awards granted to Eligible Employees and Nonmanagement Directors under the Plan shall not exceed
40,000,000 shares.

Calculation of Available Shares and Replenishment. A good faith estimate of the number of shares of Common Stock subject to
outstanding Awards that will be satisfied by delivery of shares of Common Stock, plus the number of shares of Common Stock
referenced in calculating an Award paid in cash, shall be reserved from the number of shares of Common Stock available for
Awards under the Plan. The aggregate number of shares of Common Stock delivered under the Plan plus the number of shares of
Common Stock referenced with respect to Awards paid in cash shall reduce the number of shares of Common Stock remaining
available for Awards under the Plan. If any Award shall expire or be canceled or terminated without having been exercised in full,
or any Common Stock subject to a Restricted Stock Award or other Award shall not vest or be delivered, the unpurchased,
nonvested or undelivered shares of Common Stock subject thereto or the shares of Common Stock referenced with respect thereto
shall again be available under the Plan. In the case of Awards granted in combination such that the exercise of one results in a
proportionate cancellation of the other, the number of shares of Common Stock reserved for issuance shall be the greater of the
number that would be reserved if one or the other alone were outstanding. If Fannie Mae withholds shares of Common Stock
pursuant to Section 8.4, the number of shares of Common Stock that would have been deliverable with respect to an Award but
that are withheld pursuant to the provisions of Section 8.4 shall be treated as delivered, and the aggregate number of shares of
Common Stock deliverable with respect to the applicable Award and under the Plan shall be reduced by the number of shares of
Common Stock so withheld, and such withheld shares shall not be available for additional Awards.

1.6 Grant of Awards. Subject to the express provisions of the Plan, the Committee shall determine the number of shares of Common Stock

1.7

subject to each Award, the price (if any) to be paid for such shares or Award and other terms and conditions of the Award. Each Award
to an Eligible Employee shall be evidenced by an Award Document, which, if required by the Committee, shall be signed by the
Eligible Employee. Awards are not restricted to any specified form or structure and may include, without limitation, the types of
Awards set forth in Articles II, III, IV and V or, without limitation, any other transfers of Common Stock or any options or warrants to
acquire shares of Common Stock, or any similar right with value related to or derived from the value of Common Stock, as may be
determined by the Committee. An Award may consist of one such benefit, or two or more of them in any combination or alternative.

Award Period. Each Award and all executory rights or obligations under the related Award Document shall expire on such date (if any)
as shall be determined by the Committee.

1.8 Limitations on Exercise and Vesting of Awards.

(a)

Provisions for Exercise. An Award shall be exercisable or shall vest as determined by the Committee.
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(b)

(©)

Procedure. Any exercisable Award shall be exercised when the person appointed by the Committee or the Committee’s designee
receives written notice of exercise from the Participant or by any other method, including in electronic form, approved by the
Committee, together with satisfactory arrangements for any required payment to be made in accordance with Sections 2.2 or 8.4
or the terms of the Award Document, as the case may be.

Fractional Shares. Fractional share interests shall be disregarded, but may be accumulated, or the Committee may determine that
cash will be paid or transferred in lieu of any fractional share interests.

1.9 Transferability.

(a)

(b)

(©)

General Restrictions. Awards may be exercised only by the Participant; the Participant’s Personal Representative, if any; the
Participant’s Beneficiary, if the Participant has died; the recipient of an Award by will or the laws of descent and distribution or,
in the case of a Nonqualified Stock Option, pursuant to a QDRO; in the case of a Nonqualified Stock Option, a person who was a
Permitted Transferee at the time the Option was transferred to such person; a Permitted Transferee’s Personal Representative, if
any; or a Permitted Transferee’s Beneficiary, if the Permitted Transferee has died. Amounts payable or shares of Common Stock
issuable under an Award shall be paid to (or registered in the name of) the person or persons specified by the person exercising the
Award. Other than (i) by will or the laws of descent and distribution or, in the case of a Nonqualified Stock Option, pursuant to a
QDRO or (ii) to a Permitted Transferee in the case of any Nonqualified Stock Option and (subject to (b), (c), (d), and (e) below),
no right or benefit under this Plan or any Award, whether vested or not vested, shall be transferable by a Participant or Permitted
Transferee or shall be subject in any manner to anticipation, alienation, sale, transfer, assignment, pledge, encumbrance or charge
(other than to Fannie Mae), and any such attempted action shall be void. Fannie Mae shall disregard any attempt at transfer,
assignment or other alienation prohibited by the preceding sentences and shall pay or deliver such cash or shares of Common
Stock only in accordance with the provisions of this Plan. The designation of a Beneficiary hereunder shall not constitute a
transfer for these purposes.

Tax Withholding. An Eligible Employee may not transfer Options (“Transferred Options”) to a Permitted Transferee, other than a
charitable organization described in Section 1.2(28)(ii), unless the Eligible Employee agrees to retain, and not to exercise until the
exercise of the Transferred Options, at least 50 percent of the exercisable Options held by the Eligible Employee with the same
exercise price and expiration date as the Transferred Options. The condition set forth in the first sentence of this Section 1.9(b),
however, may be waived at any time by (A) the Chairman of the Committee in the case of an Eligible Employee who is either a
member of the Board or the senior-ranking officer in the Human Resources department of Fannie Mae, or (B) the senior-ranking
officer in the Human Resources department of Fannie Mae in the case of any other Eligible Employee, and, as a condition of such
waiver, the Chairman of the Committee or the senior-ranking officer in the Human Resources department of Fannie Mae, as the
case may be, may specify other steps that the Eligible Employee must take to provide for the collection by Fannie Mae of all
federal, state, local and other taxes required by law to be withheld upon the exercise of such Transferred Options.

Notice of Transfer. A transfer of an Option to a Permitted Transferee shall not be effective unless, prior to making the transfer, the
transferor (i) provides written notice of the transfer to (A) the Chairman of the Committee in the case of a transfer by a Participant
who is either a member of the Board, the senior-ranking officer in the Human Resources department of Fannie Mae or the General
Counsel of Fannie Mae (or a transfer by a Permitted Transferee of an Option originally granted to a member of the Board or to
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(d

(e)

1.10

II. Options

the senior-ranking officer in the Human Resources department of Fannie Mae), or (B) the senior-ranking officer in the Human
Resources department of Fannie Mae in the case of any other transfer, and (ii) certifies in writing to the Chairman of the
Committee or the senior-ranking officer in the Human Resources department of Fannie Mae, as the case may be, that the transfer
will be Without Consideration.

Approval of Transfer. A transfer of an Option to a charitable organization described in section 1.2(28)(ii) shall not be effective
unless, after receiving the notice described in (c) above, the Chairman of the Committee or, after consultation with the General
Counsel of Fannie Mae, the senior-ranking officer in the Human Resources department of Fannie Mae, as the case may be, either
approves the proposed transfer in writing or does not disapprove the proposed transfer in writing within ten business days after
receipt of such notice. The Chairman of the Committee or, after consultation with the General Counsel of Fannie Mae, the senior-
ranking officer in the Human Resources department of Fannie Mae, as the case may be, may disapprove a proposed transfer if he
or she determines, in his or her good faith judgment, that (i) the proposed Permitted Transferee has philosophies, purposes,
policies, objectives, goals or practices inconsistent with those of Fannie Mae or (ii) the Participant has not taken such steps as may
be necessary or appropriate to provide for the collection by Fannie Mae of all federal, state, local and other taxes required by law
to be withheld upon exercise of the Option.

Transfer of Nonvested Options. A nonvested Option may be transferred only to an Immediate Family Member described in section
1.2(28)(1) and only with the prior consent of (A) the Chairman of the Committee in the case of a Participant who is either a
member of the Board, the senior-ranking officer in the Human Resources department of Fannie Mae or the General Counsel of
Fannie Mae, or (B) after consultation with the General Counsel, the senior-ranking officer in the Human Resources department of
Fannie Mae, after consultation with the General Counsel of Fannie Mae, in the case of any other Participant.

Section 83(b) Elections. If a Participant shall file an election with the Internal Revenue Service under Section 83(b) of the Code to
include the value of any Award in the Participant’s gross income while the Award remains subject to restrictions, the Participant
shall promptly furnish Fannie Mae with a copy of such election.

2.1 Grants. One or more Options may be granted under this Article II to any Eligible Employee. Each Option granted may be either an
Incentive Stock Option or a Nonqualified Stock Option.

2.2 Option Price.

(a)

(b)

Pricing Limits. The exercise price for shares of Common Stock covered by an Option shall be determined by the Committee at the
time of the Award, but shall not be less than 100 percent of the Fair Market Value of the Common Stock on the Award Date.
Notwithstanding any provision of the Plan, an Option may not be modified so as to reduce the exercise price of the Option.

Payment Provisions. The exercise price for any shares of Common Stock purchased on exercise of an Option granted under this
Article II shall be paid in full at the time of each exercise in one or a combination of the following methods: (i) by electronic funds
transfer; (ii) by check payable to the order of Fannie Mae; (iii) by notice and third party payment; (iv) by the delivery of shares of
Common Stock already owned by the Participant; or (v) by cashless exercise, or any other method, if permitted by law and
authorized by the Committee, in its discretion, or specified in the applicable Award Document; provided, however, that the
Committee, in its discretion, may limit the
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Participant’s ability to exercise an Option by delivering shares of Common Stock, including by imposing a requirement that the
Participant satisfy a minimum holding period with respect to the shares so delivered. Shares of Common Stock used to satisfy the
exercise price of an Option shall be valued at their Fair Market Value on the date of exercise.

2.3 Limitations on Incentive Stock Options. There shall be imposed in any Award Document relating to Incentive Stock Options such terms
and conditions as from time to time are required in order that the Option be an “incentive stock option” as that term is defined in
Section 422 of the Code, or any successor provision.

2.4 Option Period.

(a)

(b)

(©)

Award Period. Each Option shall specify the Award Period for which the Option is granted and shall provide that the Option shall
expire at the end of such Award Period. The Committee may extend the Award Period by amendment of an Option or in an
Eligible Employee’s employment agreement approved by the Committee. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Award Period with
respect to an Incentive Stock Option, including all extensions, shall not exceed ten years.

Effect of Termination of Employment. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 2.4(a), unless otherwise provided by the
Committee or in an Eligible Employee’s employment agreement approved by the Committee, (i) for a Participant whose
employment is terminated for any reason other than for Cause, Retirement, Early Retirement, Total Disability, death or having
attained at least age 55 with at least five years of service and is not covered by Section 2.5(d), an Option shall expire on the earlier
to occur of (A) the end of the Award Period or (B) the date three months following the Participant’s termination of employment,
(ii) for a Participant whose employment is terminated and is covered by Section 2.5(d), an Option shall expire on the earlier to
occur of (A) the end of the Award Period or (B) the date 12 months following the Participant’s termination of employment,

(iii) for a Participant whose employment is terminated by reason of Retirement, Early Retirement, Total Disability, death or
having attained at least age 55 with at least five years of service, an Option shall expire on the end of the Award Period and

(iv) for a Participant whose employment is terminated by Fannie Mae for Cause, an Option shall expire upon the Participant’s
termination.

Death of Permitted Transferee. Unless otherwise provided by the Committee, an Option held by a Permitted Transferee shall
expire on the earlier of the date on which it would expire pursuant to Section 2.4(a) or (b) or the date 12 months following the
Permitted Transferee’s death.

2.5 Vesting; Forfeiture.

(a)

(b)

(©)

Vesting Generally. An Option shall be exercisable and vested upon such terms and conditions or pursuant to such schedule as the
Committee shall determine. Except as otherwise provided in this Section 2.5 or unless otherwise specified by the Committee or in
an Eligible Employee’s employment agreement approved by the Committee, an Option that is not vested upon a Participant’s
termination of employment shall be forfeited. If a Participant’s employment is terminated by Fannie Mae for Cause, an Option
that is not vested upon the Participant’s termination shall be forfeited.

Change in Control. The Committee, in its discretion, may grant Options that by their terms shall become immediately exercisable
and fully vested upon a Change in Control Event.

Retirement, Early Retirement, Total Disability or Death. Unless otherwise specified by the Committee, an Option shall become
immediately exercisable and fully vested upon the Participant’s Total Disability or the Participant’s termination of employment by
reason of Retirement, Early Retirement or death.
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(d) Vesting Upon Termination with Separation Agreements. Notwithstanding the foregoing, (i) for a Participant who, prior to the
termination of employment, executes a separation agreement with Fannie Mae pursuant to Fannie Mae’s Voluntary Separation
Agreement program (“VSA”) or Voluntary Separation Option program (“VSO”), one-half of the portion of each Award that
would have vested within 12 months of the date of such Participant’s termination of employment shall become immediately
exercisable and fully vested upon the Participant’s termination; (ii) for a Participant who accepts Fannie Mae’s offer to terminate
employment voluntarily and, prior to such termination, executes a separation agreement with Fannie Mae pursuant to an Elective
Severance Window under the Federal National Mortgage Association Discretionary Severance Benefit Plan, the portion of each
Award that would have vested within 12 months of the date of such Participant’s termination of employment by Fannie Mae, and
one-half of the portion of each Award that would have vested within 13-24 months of the date of termination, shall become
immediately exercisable and fully vested upon termination; and (iii) for a Participant who, prior to the termination of his or her
employment, executes a separation agreement with Fannie Mae pursuant to a Displacement Program under the Federal National
Mortgage Association Discretionary Severance Benefit Plan or pursuant to the Fannie Mae Individual Severance Plan, the portion
of each Award that would have vested within 12 months of the date of termination of employment shall become immediately
exercisable and fully vested upon the Participant’s termination. If the Committee approves an employment agreement with an
Eligible Employee that provides for vesting of certain Awards upon the employee’s termination, such Awards shall vest in
accordance with the terms of such Eligible Employee’s employment agreement.

(e) “EPS Challenge Grants.” Section 2.5(d) shall not apply to Options granted under the “EPS Challenge Grant” program established
by the Board on January 18, 2000 or, if so provided by the Committee, to Options granted under other special incentive Option
programs.

2.6 Option Amendments or Waiver of Restrictions. Subject to Sections 1.5 and 8.5 and the specific limitations on Awards contained in the
Plan, the Committee from time to time may authorize, generally or in specific cases only, for the benefit of any Participant who is an
Eligible Employee, any adjustment in the vesting schedule, the restrictions upon or the term of an Award granted under this Article II
by amendment, waiver or other legally valid means. The amendment or other action may provide, among other changes, for a longer or
shorter vesting or exercise period.

2.7 Gain Deferral. Any Participant who is eligible to participate in the Fannie Mae Stock Option Gain Deferral Plan may elect to exercise a
Nonqualified Stock Option under the provisions of such plan.

III. Stock Appreciation Rights

3.1 Grants. In its discretion, the Committee may grant to any Eligible Employee Stock Appreciation Rights either concurrently with the
grant of another Award or in respect of an outstanding Award, in whole or in part, or may grant to any Eligible Employee Stand-Alone
SARs. Any Stock Appreciation Right granted in connection with an Incentive Stock Option shall contain such terms as may be required
to comply with the provisions of Section 422 of the Code (or any successor provision). Each Stand-Alone SAR shall specify the Award
Period for which the Stand-Alone SAR is granted and shall provide that the Stand-Alone SAR shall expire at the end of such Award
Period. The Committee may extend the Award Period by amendment of a Stand-Alone SAR.

3.2 Exercise of Stock Appreciation Rights.

(a) Related Awards. Unless the Award Document or the Committee otherwise provides, a Stock Appreciation Right related to another
Award shall be exercisable at such time or times, and to the extent, that the related Award shall be exercisable.
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(b) Stand-Alone SARs. Stand-Alone SARs shall be exercisable and vest upon such terms and conditions or pursuant to such schedule
as the Committee shall determine at the time of the Award. Unless otherwise provided by the Committee or in an Eligible
Employee’s employment agreement approved by the Committee, (i) in the case of a Participant’s termination of employment for
Cause, Stand-Alone SARs shall expire and no longer be exercisable upon the Participant’s termination; (ii) in the case of a
Participant’s Total Disability or a Participant’s termination of employment by reason of Retirement, Early Retirement or death or
having attained at least age 55 with at least five years of service, Stand-Alone SARs shall become immediately exercisable and
fully vested upon the Participant’s Total Disability or termination of employment, and Stand-Alone SARs shall expire and no
longer be exercisable at the end of the Award Period; and (iii) in the case of a Participant’s termination of employment for any
reason other than for Cause, Retirement, Early Retirement, Total Disability or death or having attained at least age 55 with at least
five years of service, Stand-Alone SARs shall expire and no longer be exercisable on the earlier to occur of (A) the end of the
Award Period or (B) the date three months following the Participant’s termination. The Committee, in its discretion, may grant
Stand-Alone SARs that by their terms shall become immediately exercisable and fully vested upon a Change in Control Event.

3.3 Payment.

(a) Amount. Unless the Committee otherwise provides, upon exercise of a Stock Appreciation Right and surrender of the appropriate
exercisable portion of any related Award, the Participant shall be entitled to receive payment of an amount determined by
multiplying

(i) the difference obtained by subtracting the exercise price per share of Common Stock under the related Award (if applicable)
or the initial share value specified in the Award from the Fair Market Value on the date of exercise, by

(ii) the number of shares of Common Stock with respect to which the Participant is exercising the Stock Appreciation Right.

(b) Form of Payment. The Committee, in its discretion, shall determine the form in which payment shall be made of the amount
determined under paragraph (a) above, which may be solely in cash, solely in shares of Common Stock (valued at their Fair
Market Value on the date of exercise of the Stock Appreciation Right), or partly in shares and partly in cash. If the Committee
permits the Participant to elect to receive cash or shares of Common Stock (or a combination thereof) on such exercise, any such
election shall be subject to such conditions as the Committee may impose.

IV. Restricted Stock Awards

4.1 Grants. The Committee, in its discretion, may grant one or more Restricted Stock Awards to any Eligible Employee. Each Restricted
Stock Award Document shall specify the number of shares or units of Common Stock to be issued to the Participant, the date of such
issuance, the consideration for the Restricted Stock, if any, to be paid by the Participant, the restrictions imposed on the Restricted
Stock, and the conditions of release or lapse of such restrictions. Promptly after the lapse of restrictions on Restricted Stock, shares of
Common Stock equal to the number of shares or units as to which the restrictions have lapsed (or such lesser number as may be
permitted pursuant to Section 8.4) shall be delivered or credited to the Participant or other person entitled under the Plan to receive the
shares. The Participant or such other person shall deliver to Fannie Mae such further assurance and documents as the Committee may
require.

4.2 Restrictions.

(a) Pre-Vesting Restraints. Except as provided in Section 1.9, shares or units of Restricted Stock may not be sold, assigned,
transferred, pledged or otherwise disposed of or encumbered, either voluntarily or involuntarily, until the restrictions have lapsed.
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(b) Dividend and Voting Rights. Unless otherwise provided in the applicable Award Document, a Participant receiving shares (but not
units) of Restricted Stock shall be entitled to cash dividend and voting rights for all shares of Common Stock issued even though
they are not vested, provided that such rights shall terminate immediately as to any shares of Restricted Stock that cease to be
eligible for vesting. If provided in the applicable Award Document, a Participant receiving units of Restricted Stock shall be
entitled to cash dividend and voting rights for such units even though they are not vested, provided that such rights shall terminate
immediately as to any units of Restricted Stock that cease to be eligible for vesting.

(c) Accelerated Vesting. Unless otherwise provided by the Committee or in an Eligible Employee’s employment agreement approved
by the Committee, the restrictions on Restricted Stock shall lapse upon the Participant’s Total Disability or termination of
employment by reason of Retirement, Early Retirement, or death, and, if provided in the applicable Award Document, restrictions
on Restricted Stock held for more than one year from the Award Date by Participants shall lapse upon a Change in Control Event.

(d) Vesting Upon Termination with Separation Agreements. Notwithstanding the foregoing, (i) for a Participant who, prior to the
termination of employment, executes a separation agreement with Fannie Mae pursuant to Fannie Mae’s Voluntary Separation
Agreement program (“VSA”) or Voluntary Separation Option program (“VSO”), one-half of the portion of each Award of
Restricted Stock that would have vested within 12 months of the date of such Participant’s termination of employment shall
become fully vested upon the Participant’s termination; (ii) for a Participant who accepts Fannie Mae’s offer to terminate
employment voluntarily and, prior to such termination, executes a separation agreement with Fannie Mae pursuant to an Elective
Severance Window under the Federal National Mortgage Association Discretionary Severance Benefit Plan, the portion of each
Award of Restricted Stock that would have vested within 12 months of the date of such Participant’s termination of employment
by Fannie Mae, and one-half of the portion of each Award of Restricted Stock that would have vested within 13-24 months of the
date of termination, shall become fully vested upon termination; and (iii) for a Participant who, prior to the termination of his or
her employment, executes a separation agreement with Fannie Mae pursuant to a Displacement Program under the Federal
National Mortgage Association Discretionary Severance Benefit Plan or pursuant to the Fannie Mae Individual Severance Plan,
the portion of each Award of Restricted Stock that would have vested within 12 months of the date of termination of employment
shall become fully vested upon the Participant’s termination. If the Committee approves an employment agreement with an
Eligible Employee that provides for vesting of certain Awards upon the employee’s termination, such Awards shall vest in
accordance with the terms of such Eligible Employee’s employment agreement.

(e) Forfeiture. Unless otherwise provided by the Committee or in an Eligible Employee’s employment agreement approved by the
Committee, Restricted Stock as to which the restrictions have not lapsed in accordance with the provisions of the Award or
pursuant to Section 4.2(c) shall be forfeited upon a Participant’s termination of employment. Upon the occurrence of any
forfeiture of Restricted Stock, the forfeited Restricted Stock shall be automatically transferred to Fannie Mae without payment of
any consideration by Fannie Mae and without any action by the Participant.

V. Performance Share Awards and Stock Bonuses
5.1 Grants of Performance Share Awards.

(a) The Committee, in its discretion, may grant Performance Share Awards to Eligible Employees. An Award shall specify the
maximum number of shares of Common Stock (if any) subject to the Performance Share Award and its terms and conditions. The
Committee shall establish the specified period (a “performance cycle”) for the

C-12



Performance Share Award and the measure(s) of the performance of Fannie Mae (or any part thereof) or the Eligible Employee.
The Committee, during the performance cycle, may make such adjustments to the measure(s) of performance as it may deem
appropriate to compensate for, or reflect, any significant changes that may occur in accounting practices, tax laws and other laws
or regulations that alter or affect the computation of the measure(s). The Award Document shall specify how the degree of
attainment of the measure(s) over the performance cycle is to be determined.

(b) In its discretion, the Committee may grant Performance Share Awards which, by their terms, provide that, upon a Change in
Control Event, payments shall be made with respect to a Performance Share Award held for more than one year from the Award
Date by an Eligible Employee, based on the assumption that the performance achievement specified in the Award would have
been attained by the end of the performance cycle. If the Committee approves an employment agreement with an Eligible
Employee that provides for payments with respect to a Performance Share Award upon the employee’s termination, payments
shall be made with respect to such Performance Share Awards in accordance with the terms of such Eligible Employee’s
employment agreement.

(c) Unless otherwise provided by the Committee or in an Eligible Employee’s employment agreement approved by the Committee, if
an Eligible Employee’s employment is terminated because of Retirement, Total Disability or Early Retirement prior to the end of
the performance cycle, but at least 18 months after the first day of the performance cycle, such Eligible Employee shall receive a
pro rata Performance Share Award, calculated as if the Eligible Employee were employed by Fannie Mae at the end of the
performance cycle but adjusted to reflect the portion of the performance cycle in which the Participant actually was employed by
Fannie Mae, payable in full as soon as practicable after the end of the performance cycle.

(d) Unless otherwise provided by the Committee or in an Eligible Employee’s employment agreement approved by the Committee, if
an Eligible Employee’s employment is terminated because of the Eligible Employee’s death prior to the end of the performance
cycle, but at least 18 months after the first day of the performance cycle, the Eligible Employee shall receive a pro rata
Performance Share Award, payable in full as soon as practicable after the Eligible Employee’s death, in an amount that is based
upon the Committee’s assessment of the likelihood of Fannie Mae’s success in attaining the performance measures by the end of
the performance cycle and the portion of the performance cycle during which the Eligible Employee was employed by Fannie
Mae, and calculated using the date of the Eligible Employee’s death as the date for establishing the Fair Market Value of such
Award.

(e) Unless otherwise provided by the Committee or in an Eligible Employee’s employment agreement approved by the Committee, if,
after the end of the performance cycle, an Eligible Employee’s employment is terminated because of the Eligible Employee’s
Retirement, Total Disability, death or Early Retirement, all portions of the Eligible Employee’s Performance Share Award not yet
paid shall be paid in full as soon as practicable thereafter, except to the extent subject to a deferral election under Section 5.3.

(f) Unless otherwise provided by the Committee or in an Eligible Employee’s employment agreement approved by the Committee,
any Eligible Employee who is not employed by Fannie Mae on the last day of a performance cycle or on the date of a scheduled
payment of any portion of a Performance Share Award (determined without regard to any deferral election under Section 5.3),
other than by reason of the Eligible Employee’s Retirement, Total Disability, death or Early Retirement, shall forfeit such
payment and all future payments with respect to such performance cycle.

5.2 Grants of Stock Bonuses. The Committee may grant a Stock Bonus to any Eligible Employee in such amounts of shares of Common
Stock and on such terms and conditions as determined from time to time by the Committee.
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5.3

Deferred Payments. The Committee, in its discretion, may permit any Eligible Employee to defer receipt of a Performance Share
Award. Such deferral shall be subject to such further conditions, restrictions or requirements as the Committee may impose, subject to
any vested rights of the Eligible Employee.

VI. Nonmanagement Director Options

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

Participation. Awards under this Article VI shall be made only to Nonmanagement Directors.

Annual Option Grants.

(a) Annual Awards. On the first day of the Director Term in 2004 and in each subsequent year prior to the Plan Termination Date
(each of which shall be the Award Date), there shall be granted automatically (without any action by the Board or the Committee)
to each Nonmanagement Director then in office a Nonqualified Stock Option to purchase 4,000 shares of Common Stock. Any
Nonmanagement Director appointed or elected to office during a Director Term shall be granted automatically (without any action
by the Board or the Committee) a Nonqualified Stock Option (the Award Date of which shall be the date such person takes office)
to purchase the nearest whole number of shares of Common Stock equal to 4,000 multiplied by the number of partial or full
calendar months remaining in the Director Term in which the Award is granted divided by 12.

(b) Maximum Number of Shares. Annual grants that would otherwise cause the total Awards under this Plan to exceed the maximum
number of shares of Common Stock under Section 1.5(b) shall be prorated to come within such limitation.

Option Price. The exercise price per share of Common Stock covered by each Option granted under Sections 6.2 or 6.7 shall be

100 percent of the Fair Market Value on the Award Date. Notwithstanding any provision of the Plan, an Option may not be modified so
as to reduce the exercise price of the Option. The exercise price of any Option granted under this Article shall be paid in full at the time
of each purchase, in cash or by check or in shares of Common Stock valued at their Fair Market Value on the date of exercise of the
Option, or partly in shares and partly in cash.

Option Period and Ability to Exercise. Each Option granted under Sections 6.2 or 6.7 shall provide that the Option shall expire ten years
from the Award Date and shall be subject to earlier termination as provided below. Each Option granted under Sections 6.2 or 6.7 shall
vest and become exercisable over a four-year period at a rate of 25 percent each year on the anniversary of the date of grant.

Termination of Directorship. If an NMD Participant’s services as a member of the Board terminate for any reason, any Option granted
under Sections 6.2 or 6.7 held by the NMD Participant shall immediately vest and may be exercised until the earlier of one year after
the date of such termination or the expiration of the stated term of the Option.

Adjustments. Options granted under Sections 6.2 or 6.7 shall be subject to adjustment as provided in Section 8.2, but only to the extent
that such adjustment is based on objective criteria and is consistent with adjustments to Options or other Awards held by persons other
than Nonmanagement Directors.

Additional Option Awards. Under this Article VI, the Committee may grant additional Option Awards to Nonmanagement Directors as
appropriate, based on market compensation data or other information or circumstances.

VII. Nonmanagement Director Restricted Stock

7.1

Participation. Awards under this Article VII shall be made only to Nonmanagement Directors. Neither the Plan nor any action taken
under the Plan shall give any NMD Participant the right to be reappointed or renominated to serve as a member of the Board.
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7.2 Amount of Awards. Each Nonmanagement Director who is a member of the Board immediately following the annual meeting of the
shareholders of Fannie Mae in 2006 or 2010 shall be granted, immediately following such annual meeting, an Award of shares of
Restricted Stock (rounded to the nearest full share) having an aggregate Fair Market Value on the date of grant equal to $75,000 in 2006
and $90,000 in 2010. A Nonmanagement Director who is newly appointed or elected after the annual meeting of shareholders in 2006
or 2010 shall receive an Award of shares of Restricted Stock equal to the number of shares (rounded to the nearest full share) that would
have been granted to such newly appointed or elected Nonmanagement Director had he or she been a member of the Board on the date
of the annual meeting of the shareholders of Fannie Mae in the year 2006 or 2010, as the case may be, multiplied by the number of
partial or full calendar months remaining in the four-year Award cycle from the date of the Nonmanagement Director’s appointment or
election divided by 48.

7.3 Restrictions and Vesting.

(a) Pre-Vesting Restrictions. Except as provided in Section 1.9, shares of Restricted Stock may not be sold, assigned, transferred,
pledged or otherwise disposed of or encumbered, either voluntarily or involuntarily, until the restrictions have lapsed.

(b) Dividend and Voting Rights. A NMD Participant receiving shares of Restricted Stock shall be entitled to cash dividend and voting
rights for all shares of Common Stock issued even though they are not vested, provided that such rights shall terminate
immediately as to any Restricted Stock that is forfeited under Section 7.3(e).

(c) Vesting. Unless otherwise provided by the Committee for Restricted Stock granted under Section 7.5, the restrictions on Restricted
Stock granted under this Article VII shall lapse as follows. On the day before each annual meeting of Fannie Mae’s shareholders,
each Restricted Stock Award granted to a NMD Participant under this Article VII shall vest, and the restrictions on such
Restricted Stock shall lapse, at a rate of 25% per year (or by the appropriate pro-rata percentage for Nonmanagement Directors
newly appointed or elected after the annual meeting in 2006 or 2010). Promptly after the lapse of restrictions on Restricted Stock,
shares of Common Stock equal to the number of shares or units as to which the restrictions have lapsed (or such lesser number as
may be permitted pursuant to Section 8.4) shall be delivered or credited to the NMD Participant or other person entitled under the
Plan to receive the shares.

(d) Accelerated Vesting. Unless otherwise provided by the Committee for Restricted Stock granted under Section 7.5, the restrictions
on Restricted Stock granted under this Article VII shall lapse upon the NMD Participant’s membership on the Board terminating
because of (i) Total Disability, (ii) death, or (iii) as to a Nonmanagement Director who is elected to the Board by the shareholders,
not being renominated after reaching age 70.

(e) Forfeiture. Unless otherwise provided by the Committee for Restricted Stock granted under Section 7.5, Restricted Stock granted
under Article VII as to which the restrictions have not lapsed in accordance with the provisions of the Award or pursuant to
Section 7.3(c) or (d) shall be forfeited upon the termination of a NMD Participant’s membership on the Board. Upon the
occurrence of any forfeiture of Restricted Stock, the forfeited Restricted Stock shall be automatically transferred to Fannie Mae
without payment of any consideration by Fannie Mae and without any action by the NMD Participant.

7.4 Adjustments. Restricted Stock granted under this Article VII shall be subject to adjustment as provided in Section 8.2, but only to the
extent that such adjustment is based on objective criteria and is consistent with adjustments to Restricted Stock or other Awards held by
persons other than Nonmanagement Directors.

7.5 Additional Restricted Stock Awards. Under this Article VII, the Committee may grant additional Restricted Stock Awards to
Nonmanagement Directors as appropriate, based on market compensation data or other information or circumstances.
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VIII. Other Provisions

8.1 Rights of Eligible Employees, Participants and Beneficiaries.

(a)

(b)

(©)

Employment Status. Status as an Eligible Employee shall not be construed as a commitment that any Award will be made under
this Plan to an Eligible Employee or to Eligible Employees generally.

No Employment Contract. Nothing contained in the Plan (or in any other documents related to the Plan or to any Award) shall
confer upon any Participant any right to continue in the employ or other service of Fannie Mae or constitute any contract or
agreement of employment or other service, nor shall the Plan interfere in any way with the right of Fannie Mae to change such
person’s compensation or other benefits or to terminate the employment of such person, with or without cause; provided,
however, that nothing contained in the Plan or any related document shall adversely affect any independent contractual right of
any Participant without the Participant’s consent.

Plan Not Funded. Awards payable under the Plan shall be payable in shares of Common Stock or from the general assets of
Fannie Mae, and (except as provided in Section 1.5(c)) no special or separate reserve, fund or deposit shall be made to assure
payment of Awards. No Participant, Beneficiary or other person shall have any right, title or interest in any fund or in any specific
asset (including shares of Common Stock, except as expressly otherwise provided) of Fannie Mae by reason of any Award
hereunder. Neither the provisions of the Plan (or of any related documents), nor the creation or adoption of the Plan, nor any
action taken pursuant to the provisions of the Plan shall create, or be construed to create, a trust of any kind or a fiduciary
relationship between Fannie Mae and any Participant, Beneficiary or other person. To the extent that a Participant, Beneficiary or
other person acquires a right to receive payment pursuant to any Award hereunder, such right shall be no greater than the right of
any unsecured general creditor of Fannie Mae.

8.2 Adjustments.

(a)

(b)

Events Requiring Adjustments. If any of the following events occur, the Committee shall make the adjustments described in
Section 8.2(b): (i) any recapitalization, stock split (including a stock split in the form of a stock dividend), reverse stock split,
reorganization, merger, combination, consolidation, split-up, spin-off, combination, repurchase or exchange of Common Stock or
other securities of Fannie Mae, (ii) any issuance of warrants or other rights to purchase shares of Common Stock or other
securities of Fannie Mae (other than to employees) at less than 80 percent of Fair Market Value on the date of such issuance, (iii) a
sale of substantially all the assets of Fannie Mae, or (iv) any other similar corporate transaction or event with respect to the
Common Stock.

Adjustments to Awards. If any of the events described in Section 8.2(a) occurs, then the Committee shall, in the manner and to the
extent (if any) as it deems appropriate and equitable, (i) proportionately adjust any or all of (1) the number and type of shares of
Common Stock that thereafter may be made the subject of Awards (including the specific maximum set forth in Section 1.5),

(2) the number, amount and type of shares of Common Stock subject to any or all outstanding Awards, (3) the grant, purchase or
exercise price of any or all outstanding Awards, (4) the shares of Common Stock or cash deliverable upon exercise of any
outstanding Awards, or (5) the performance standards appropriate to any outstanding Awards; or (ii) make provision for a cash
payment or for the substitution or exchange of any or all outstanding Awards based upon the distribution or consideration payable
to holders of Common Stock upon or in respect of the event; provided, however, in each case, that with respect to Awards of
Incentive Stock Options, no adjustment shall be made that would cause the Plan to violate Section 422 or 424(a) of the Code or
any successor provisions thereto.
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8.3 Compliance with Laws. The Plan, the granting and vesting of Awards under the Plan and the issuance and delivery of shares of
Common Stock and the payment of money under the Plan or under Awards granted hereunder are subject to compliance with all
applicable federal and state laws, rules and regulations (including but not limited to state and federal securities law and federal margin
requirements) and to approvals by any listing, regulatory or governmental authority as may, in the opinion of counsel for Fannie Mae,
be necessary or advisable in connection therewith. Any securities delivered under the Plan shall be subject to such restrictions, and the
person acquiring the securities shall, if requested by Fannie Mae, provide such assurances and representations to Fannie Mae, as Fannie
Mae may deem necessary or desirable to assure compliance with all applicable legal requirements.

8.4 Tax Withholding. Upon any exercise, vesting or payment of any Award or upon the disposition of shares of Common Stock acquired
pursuant to the exercise of an Incentive Stock Option prior to satisfaction of the holding period requirements of Section 422 of the Code
(or any successor provision), the Committee may make such provisions and take such steps as it may deem necessary or appropriate for
the withholding by Fannie Mae of all federal, state, local and other taxes required by law to be withheld, including without limitation,
the right, at its option, to the extent permitted by law (i) to require the Participant (or Personal Representative or Beneficiary, as the case
may be) to pay or provide for payment of the amount of any taxes that Fannie Mae may be required to withhold with respect to the
transaction as a condition to the release of the shares of Common Stock or the making of any payment or distribution, or (ii)(a) to
deduct from any amount payable in cash, or (b) to reduce the number of shares of Common Stock otherwise deliverable (or otherwise
reacquire such shares), based upon their Fair Market Value on the date of delivery, or (c) to grant the Participant the right to elect
reduction in the number of shares upon such terms and conditions as it may establish for the amount of any taxes that Fannie Mae may
be required to withhold.

8.5 Plan Amendment, Termination and Suspension.

(a) Board Authorization. Subject to this Section 8.5, the Board may, at any time, terminate or amend, modify or suspend the Plan, in
whole or in part. No Awards may be granted during any suspension of the Plan or after termination of the Plan, but the Committee
shall retain jurisdiction as to Awards then outstanding in accordance with the terms of the Plan.

(b) Shareholder Approval. If any amendment would (i) materially increase the benefits accruing under the Plan, or (ii) materially
increase the aggregate number of shares of Common Stock that may be issued under the Plan (except as provided in Section 8.2),
then to the extent deemed necessary or advisable by the Board or as required by law or the rules of the NYSE, such amendment
shall be subject to shareholder approval.

(c) Amendments to Awards. Without limiting any other express authority granted under the Plan, but subject to its express limits, the
Committee may waive conditions of or limitations on Awards, without the consent of the Participant, and may make other
changes to the terms and conditions of Awards that do not affect the Participant’s rights and benefits under an Award in any
materially adverse manner.

(d) Limitations on Amendments to Plan and Awards. No amendment, suspension or termination of the Plan or any change affecting
any outstanding Award shall, without the written consent of the Participant, Beneficiary or Personal Representative, as applicable,
affect in any manner materially adverse to such person any rights or benefits of any such person or any obligations of Fannie Mae
under any Award granted under the Plan prior to the effective date of such change; however, any changes made pursuant to
Section 8.2 shall not be deemed to constitute changes or amendments for purposes of this Section 8.5.
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8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

8.10

8.11

8.12

8.13

Privileges of Stock Ownership. Except as otherwise expressly authorized by the Committee or the Plan and expressly stated in an Award
Document, a Participant shall not be entitled to any privilege of stock ownership as to any shares of Common Stock not actually
delivered to and held of record by the Participant. No adjustment shall be made for dividends or other shareholder rights for which a
record date is prior to the date of delivery of such shares.

Effective Date of the Plan. The Plan shall be effective as of the date of the meeting at which the shareholders of Fannie Mae approve it.

Term of the Plan. Except for any Award pursuant to Section 7.2 granted to a Nonmanagement Director who is newly appointed or
elected to the Board during the 2010-2014 cycle, no Award shall be granted after the Plan Termination Date. Unless otherwise
expressly provided in the Plan or in an applicable Award Document, any Award may extend beyond the Plan Termination Date, and all
authority of the Committee with respect to Awards hereunder shall continue during any suspension of the Plan and in respect of Awards
outstanding on the Plan Termination Date.

Governing Law/Construction/Severability.

(a) Choice of Law. The Plan, the Awards, all documents evidencing Awards, and all other related documents shall be governed by,
and construed in accordance with the laws of the District of Columbia, without reference to its principles of conflicts of law.

(b) Severability. If any provision shall be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid and unenforceable, the remaining
provisions of the Plan shall continue in effect.

Captions. Captions and headings are given to the sections and subsections of the Plan solely as a convenience to facilitate reference.
The headings shall not be deemed in any way material or relevant to the construction or interpretation of the Plan or of its provisions.

Effect of Change of Subsidiary Status. For purposes of the Plan and any Award, if an entity ceases to be a Subsidiary, the employment
of all Participants who are employed by such entity shall be deemed to have terminated, except any Participant who continues as an
employee of another entity within Fannie Mae.

Nonexclusivity of Plan. Nothing in the Plan shall limit or be deemed to limit the authority of the Board or the Committee to grant
awards or authorize any other compensation, with or without reference to the Common Stock, under any other plan or authority.

Plan Binding on Successors. The obligations of Fannie Mae under the Plan shall be binding upon any successor corporation or
organization resulting from the merger, consolidation or other reorganization of Fannie Mae, or upon any successor corporation or
organization succeeding to substantially all of the assets and business of Fannie Mae. Fannie Mae agrees that it will make appropriate
provisions for the preservation of all Participants’ rights under the Plan in any agreement or plan that it may enter into or adopt to effect
any such merger, consolidation, reorganization or transfer of assets.
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COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES
AND PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS

Income before federal income taxes
Add:
Provision for federal income taxes
Interest expense on all indebtedness

Earnings, as adjusted

Fixed charges:
Interest expense on all indebtedness
Preferred stock dividends

Fixed charges including preferred stock dividends

Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and preferred dividends

Exhibit 12

Three Months Six Months
Ended June 30, Ended June 30,
2003 2002 2003 2002
$ 1,102 $ 1,464 $ 3,042 $ 2,672
263 485 970 848
9,091 10,214 18,619 20,360
$10,456 $12,163 $22,631 $23,880
— — — —
$ 9,091 $10,214 $18,619 $20,360
34 24 64 57
$ 9,125 $10,238 $18,683 $20,417
— — — —
1.15:1 1.19:1 1.21:1 1.17:1
— — — —
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

PURSUANT TO SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT RULE 13a-14

I, Franklin D. Raines, certify that:

1.

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Fannie Mae (formally, the Federal National Mortgage Association);

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) [paragraph omitted pursuant to SEC Release Nos. 33-8238 and 34-47986]

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s control over
internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 14, 2003

/s FRANKLIN D. RAINES

Franklin D. Raines
Chairman of the Board of Directors and
Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT RULE 13a-14
I, J. Timothy Howard, certify that:

1. Ihave reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Fannie Mae (formally, the Federal National Mortgage Association);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) [paragraph omitted pursuant to SEC Release Nos. 33-8238 and 34-47986]

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s

most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s control over
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 14, 2003

/s/ J. TIMOTHY HOWARD

J. Timothy Howard
Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 32.1

Certification by the Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, I, Franklin D. Raines, hereby certify that, to the best of my knowledge,

(a) the Quarterly Report of Fannie Mae (formally, the Federal National Mortgage Association) on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended June 30, 2003 (the “Report”), as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 14, 2003, fully complies
with the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and

(b) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
Fannie Mae.

/s/ Franklin D. Raines

Franklin D. Raines

Chairman of the Board of Directors
and Chief Executive Officer

August 14, 2003
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Exhibit 32.2

Certification by the Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, I, J. Timothy Howard, hereby certify that, to the best of my knowledge,

(a) the Quarterly Report of Fannie Mae (formally, the Federal National Mortgage Association) on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended June 30, 2003 (the “Report”), as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 14, 2003, fully complies
with the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and

(b) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
Fannie Mae.

/s/J. Timothy Howard
J. Timothy Howard
Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Officer

August 14, 2003





